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Financial Summary
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SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

s mimEl D 2 5 S

Revenue from external customers

(284)

REMBEEZWA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(g£=5))
Hong Kong B 36,916 47,784
Mainland China AR A 631,034 522,427
Total s 667,950 570,211
Revenue Shareholders’ funds
(HK$ million ¥ A &) (HK$ million B¥ B EIT)
1,609
668
570
687
407 I I
43 29 41
[ |

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Restated)
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Net asset value per share

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
(Restated) (Restated)

(BE=5) (BF3)

(excluding non-controlling interests)

BREEFE(TBEFERIEES)

(HK cents 7&1ll)

12.3

(8.6)
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The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, total
equity, share capital, results and other financial information of DINGYI
GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March for the last five
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years.

Financials (HK$ Million) B%ER GBEEET) 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\§ CZE—+tf ZERE ZE-nf CZE@Om%
(Restated) (Restated)
(Im=51)) (BE70)
Total assets HWEE 3,055 2,229 2,569 513 509
Total liabilities maf 1,447 1,542 1,758 727 111
Total equity BiEm 1,609 687 811 (214) 398
Non-controlling interests R - - - 70 9)
Shareholders’ funds BRES 1,609 687 811 (284) 407
Share capital BB
— in number (Million) -#E(AER) 6,944 5,318 4,936 3,305 3,305
- in value -¥E 69 53 49 33 33
Revenue A 668 570 4 29 43
Loss attributable to ARARERBA
the owners of the Company FEfhEE (222) (441) (511) (724) (140)
Per Share Basis (HK cents) BREAR (B
Loss - Basic BE-ER (3.79) (8.49) (11.54) (21.92) (4.47)
- Diluted %% (3.79) (8.49) (11.54) (21.92) (4.49)
Dividends fx & - - - - -
Net asset (iability) value (excluding BE(BR)FE
non-controling interests) (MEE G ER) 23.17 12.92 16.43 (8.6) 12.3
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Corporate Information
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LI Kwong Yuk (Chairman)
Mr. CHOW Shiu Ki
Mr. IP Chi Wai

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 2708, 27/F.
Convention Plaza — Office Tower
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
AGENT IN BERMUDA

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 508

WEBSITE
http://www.dingyi.hk
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Chairman’s Statement

A

By abiding the corporate spirit of “seizing early opportunities, pursuing
excellence, progressing proactively and forging ahead innovatively”,
over the years, we have been adhering to the industry intrinsic value
as the core of our investment philosophy. We believe all investment
values are built on the growth and success of business operation. We
applied the comprehensive investment evaluation and management
system to select and invest in those enterprises that have high
growth potential and solid business in their respective industry sector.
Meanwhile, we also worked closely with the management teams of
prominent enterprises, seeking mutual development to maximize our
own investment value through the joint growth with the investees.

Like in the past, we continued to move forward dependably in achieving
to “leap into the world with our foothold in China and become a
professional investment institute with international competitiveness
focusing on scalable industry investment”. Apart from our existing
securities trading, loan financing, financial leasing and food and
beverages businesses, during the year, the Group also added
properties development as a new business segment. During the year,
the Group also completed the issuance of convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$630 million in total.

During the past year, the Company devote much time to continued
to explore different investment opportunities proactively. In addition,
the management team visited different regions in the world to explore
and study other investment opportunities in new energy projects,
high-end manufacturing projects, properties development, finance
and ocean industry. The Company is confident about the prospect of
such investment projects. We will notify our shareholders important
information whenever is available.
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The loss of the Company during the year was mainly attributable to the
fair value loss of derivative financial liabilities on the issued convertible
bonds and share-based payment expenses of over 500 million share
options granted during the year calculated according to the accounting
standard, as well as the loss arising from the changes in fair value
of held for trading securities calculated according to the accounting
standard. However, these accounting losses did not have any effect on
the cash flow of the Group. The Group’s annual revenue was mainly
contributed by sale of properties and loan financing interest income,
which represented a significant increase as compared to last year.

During the year, the Group disposed a wholly-owned subsidiary which
comprises two joint ventures, JV1 which is engaged in wholesale and
retails of radioactive pharmaceuticals and JV2 which is engaged in
investments in hospitals and medical projects. Taking into account
that: () it is expected JV1 can only obtain good manufacturing practice
certification in 2020 and will not commence its trial production for
obtaining necessary pharmaceutical licenses until 2021 and that the
first phase of production of proton medicines will only commence and
will bring revenues to the Group by mid of 2021; and (ii) it is expected
for JV2 that the construction of proton medical centres will only be
completed in 2021. The Disposal would allow the Group to recover the
investment costs soonest possible so that the Group’s financial and
management resources could be allocated to other existing businesses
and other potential acquisition opportunities with reasonable payback
period and returns and to improve the financial position of the Group by
providing additional funds for general working capital of the Group.

* For identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement

N §ih

During the year, the Group completed the acquisition of the 100%
indirect equity interest in Xintai Investment Company Limited* (&
IERKEARAR) (“Xintai”). Xintai is principally engaged in the
development, operation and investment of property. Xintai also holds
One Parkview* (‘A& —3%), a complex land use development which is
located at Chikan District, Zhanjiang, Guangdong Province, the PRC
(the “Properties”). Xintai holds the Existing Land Use Right Certificates
(with a total site area of approximately 106,140 square meters) in
respect of the Properties. The Properties comprises of three phases, (i)
phase | comprises of two blocks of residential buildings with a number
of retail shops, car parks and facilities; (i) phase Il comprises of four
blocks of residential buildings with a number of car parks and facilities;
and (jii) phase Ill is a vacant land. The Company is very optimistic about
the revenue and profit to be brought by the property development
industry in which it will engage in the PRC in future.

| am also pleased to share with the Shareholders that the Company has
been included by Morgan Stanley Capital International (‘MSCI”) as a
constituent of the MSCI Hong Kong Small Cap Index with effect on 31
May 2017. The Company has also been selected as a constituent stock
of Hang Seng Global Composite Index and Hang Seng Composite
Index and its subdivisions of: Hang Seng Composite SmallCap Index,
Hang Seng Composite MidCap & SmallCap Index and Hang Seng
Composite Industry Index — Financials, by the Hang Seng Indexes
Company Limited, with effect on 4 September 2017. The Company
has further been selected as a constituent stock of the following index
series by the Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited, with effect on 5
March 2018: Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index; Hang Seng
Stock Connect Hong Kong MidCap & SmallCap Index; Hang Seng
Stock Connect Hong Kong SmallCap Index; Hang Seng SCHK HK
Companies Index; and Hang Seng SCHK ex-AH Companies Index. The
Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index serves as a benchmark to
reflect the overall performance of the securities listed in Hong Kong that
are eligible for trading via the southbound trading link of Stock Connect.
The Company’s inclusion in the market benchmark index and Hang
Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index represents capital market’s
recognition of the Company, and is expected to expand shareholder
base and trading liquidity of the Company, resulting in realization of
the value of investment in the Company and enhancement of the
Company’s reputation in the capital market.

* For identification purpose only
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In the future, the Group will continue to explore more investment
opportunities, especially in new energy, finance, ocean industry and
property development.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
and also my sincere thanks to all stakeholders who had made
valuable contributions to the Group this year. They include our loyal
Shareholders, fellow directors of the Company (the “Directors”), our
business partners, our steadfast customers, and those hardworking
and dedicated staff who have longed been supporting us.

Reward Others While Enriching Ourselves, Thus Enlightening Dingyil

Li Kwong Yuk
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

5 BRI W i B o3 A

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue from its continuing operations during the year
under review amounted to approximately HK$668 million or HK$98
million more than that during the previous year. There was a loss
for the year attributable to the Company’s owners of approximately
HK$222 million (2017: HK$441 million) which included a fair value loss
on derivative financial liabilities amounted to approximately HK$97
million (2017: HK$279 million), loss arising from changes in fair value
of held for trading investments amounted to approximately HK$30
million (2017: HK$40 million) and the share-based payment expenses
of approximately HK$118 million (2017: HK$163 million) and a one-off
loss on early redemption of convertible bonds of approximately HK$35
million.

The basic and diluted loss per share was HK3.79 cents, as compared
with loss per share of HK8.49 cents last year.

SECURITIES TRADING

During the year, the Group has actively involved in the securities trading
business. The majority of the Group’s held for trading investments
are those shares under Hang Seng Index or China Enterprises Index
or H shares. Most of these shares are of China large corporations
(“Entities”) with high trading volumes and large market capitalization.
The Group had realised loss on the disposal of these shares held
for trading investments amounting to approximately HK$7 million
(2017: gain of HK$22 million) during the year under review. The loss
of approximately HK$30 million (2017: HK$40 million) arising from
changes in the fair value of the shares still held for trading investments
was greatly reduced as compared with that of last year. As a result,
the Group reported a segment loss of approximately HK$34 million
(2017: gain of HK$1 million) during the year under review. The Group
considers that the prospects in respect of the shares still held for trading
investments are healthy. The unrealised loss as recorded at the year
end was due to market fluctuation rather than any problem with the
Entities’ fundamentals. The Board understands that the performance
of the investments may be affected by the degree of volatility in the
Hong Kong stock market and subject to other external factors that may
affect their values. Accordingly, the Group will continue to maintain a
diversified portfolio of investment of different segments of markets to
minimize the possible financial risks. Also, the Board will closely monitor
the performance progress of the investment portfolio from time to time.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group’s held for trading
investments were represented as follows:
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Fair value
% of gain (loss) % of total % of % of totd
shareholding  for the year Fairvalue  assetsofthe  shareholding Farvaue  assets of the
asat ended asat  Groupasat asat asat Group as at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
Company Name/Stock Code 2018 2018 2018 2018 017 017 2017
BZ
“2-N\§
=f=1-H W-g-N\F NIE-F
R-E-N§ Lz WIF-NE O ZA=t-B RZE-tF AZEtE AR
ZA=t-A MERE ZA=t-A fr%E8 =A=t-B =A=1-H [FEEEE
LAEE/RARE EREE MM (E8) ZORE  BEZESM  (RERSM LAE  BEZESM
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(@B E5)) (& 55)
Securities listed in Hong Kong BRLnE%
China Reinsurance (Group) Corporation (1508 BEERR(ZE) KD - - - - 1.145% 136,845 6.14%
ERAZ(1508
COFCO Meat Holdings Limited (1610) (note (@) hIENAERERLA (1610 0.621% (14,788) 30,789 1.01% 0.897% 65,800 2.95%
(M)
CITIC Securiies Company Limited (6030) REEFRHERLT(6030) - - - - 0.087% 31745 142%
China Galary Securtes Co., Ld. 6881) PRTERRAARLA 6681 - - - - 0.098% 25,862 116%
China Easter Arlines Corporation Limited (670) R EE HHZRNERAT 670) - - - - 0.113% 24,198 1.09%
Others (note (o)) B (5 () (15,153) 32,246 1.05% 76,327 3.43%
(29,941) 63,035 2.06% 360,775 16.19%
Notes: BaE -
(@)  The principal activities of the company and its subsidiaries are investment (@ HATREREMBATMEZEXEKAIREER  £%E
holding, hog production, livestock slaughtering, poultry husbandry, sales of B EEET  REHE - HEHARALSRA - RE
fresh and frozen meats, manufacture and sales of meat products, and import MEERNBERNUMABERED - BUOZAREE

of meat products. As disclosed in the annual report of the company for the
year ended 31 December 2017, it recorded an audited net profit attributable
to its owners from continuing and discontinued operations of RMB445 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. With regards to the future prospects of
the company, the Directors noted that the board of directors of the company
believe that the company will achieve better performance and create greater
value for shareholders.

None of these investments represented more than 1% of the total assets of the
Group as at 31 March 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LOAN FINANCING

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$88 million (2017:
HK$28 million) from loan financing segment and the segment profit was
HK$84 million (2017: HK$27 million). The Group will further develop in
this segment in order to earn a higher interest income.

PROPERTIES DEVELOPMENT

During the year, following the completion of the acquisition of United
Faith Group, which is principally engaged in the properties development
business, a new segment namely properties development has been
added. The segment generated the revenue of HK$572 million (2017:
HK$516 million) and segment profit of HK$46 million (2017: HK$45
million) during the year under review. The Group anticipates further
revenue and positive results from this new segment in the following
years upon completion of properties under development and the sales
of completed properties.

FINANCIAL LEASING

During the year, the Group has recorded HK$35,000 (2017:
HK$2,188,000) of interest income and HK$35,000 (2017:
HK$2,099,000) of segment profit from financial leasing business. The
Group will also further develop in this segment in order to earn a higher
interest income.

FOOD AND BEVERAGES

The food and beverages segment generated a revenue of HK$3
million during the year under review (2017: HK$4 million). The segment
reported a loss of HK$1 million (2017: HK$1 million) for the current
year due to the decrease in turnover. The loss was contributed by the
restaurant in Beijing, PRC which was acquired on 1 January 2014.

TRADING OF WINE

The Group has kept certain quantities of fine wines. The stocks will be
offered to sell when the market prices are favorable such that the Group
can obtain a good return on the trading. At present, the stocks are kept
in the wine cellar situated in Hong Kong.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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INVESTMENT IN SHARES IN KORE

Kore Potash Plc (“Kore”) (formerly known as “Elemental Minerals
Limited”) is a mineral exploration and development company listed
on the London Stock Exchange AIM platform, the Australian Stock
Exchange, and Johannesburg Stock Exchange. It is currently
developing the Sintoukola potash project located in the Republic of
Congo.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group holds an aggregate of
75,285,511 shares of Kore, representing approximately 8.76% of the
entire issued share capital of Kore.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2018, the total number of issued shares of the Company
was 7,002,772,481 (31 March 2017: 5,397,638,952) of HK$0.01 each
(the “Shares”) and its issued share capital was HK$70,027,725 (31
March 2017: HK$53,976,390). During the year, the details of changes
of the capital structure of the Company were set out below:

(i) On 3 April 2017, a total of 350,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these 350,000
Shares were allotted and issued on 3 April 2017;

(i) On 11 April 2017, a total of 10,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.477 per Share and these
10,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 12 April 2017;

(i) On 23 April 2017, a total of 2,375,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
2,375,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 10 May 2017;

(iv)  On 25 April 2017, a total of 1,165,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
1,165,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 10 May 2017;
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V)

(vii)

(vill)

()

(i)

(i)

On 25 April 2017, a total of 600,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these 600,000
Shares were allotted and issued on 18 May 2017;

On 26 April 2017, a total of 715,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these 715,000
Shares were allotted and issued on 10 May 2017;

On 26 April 2017, a total of 715,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these 715,000
Shares were allotted and issued on 18 May 2017;

On 8 May 2017, a total of 79,825,000 repurchased Shares were
cancelled;

On 12 May 2017, a total of 10,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.738 per Share and these
10,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 18 May 2017;

On 26 May 2017, a total of 12,715,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
12,715,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 29 May 2017;

On 14 June 2017, a total of 2,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.738 per Share and these
2,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 15 June 2017;

On 8 July 2017, a total of 1,000,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.738 per Share and these 1,000,000
Shares were allotted and issued on 4 July 2017;

On 7 July 2017, a total of 1,000,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.738 per Share and these 1,000,000
Shares were allotted and issued on 10 July 2017;
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(xiv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

On 25 July 2017, a total of 1,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.738 per Share and these
1,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 27 July 2017.

On 30 October 2017, a total of 48,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.488 per Share and these
48,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 30 October 2017;

On 31 October 2017, a total of 383,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.488 per Share and these
383,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 31 October
2017;

On 31 October 2017, a total of 26,500,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.477 per Share and these
26,500,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 31 October 2017;

(xviii) On 31 October 2017, a total of 13,300,000 share options were

(xix)

exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
13,300,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 31 October 2017;

On 15 December 2017, 18 December 2017 and 5 January
2018, the Company entered into a placing agreement and
supplemental placing agreements with Sinomax Securities
Limited (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant to which the Placing
Agent has conditionally agreed to place, on a best efforts basis,
1,072,000,000 new shares (the “Placing Share(s)”) to not less
than six independent placees at a placing price of HK$0.443
per Placing Share (the “Placing”). The Placing was completed
on 16 January 2018 and an aggregate of 600,000,000 Placing
Shares were successfully placed to not less than six independent
placees. The net proceeds from the Placing was approximately
HK$264 million (representing a net issue price of approximately
HK$0.440 per Placing Share) and as to approximately HK$232
million has been utilized for short term loans financing business;
approximately HK$13 million has been utilized for redemption of
convertible bonds; and approximately HK$19 million has been
used for general working capital of the Group;

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)
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(xx) On 19 January 2018, a total of 15,600,000 share options were

(xxi)

(xxii)

exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
15,600,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 26 January 2018;

On 26 January 2018, a total of 5,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.488 per Share and these
5,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 1 February 2018;

On 29 January 2018, a total of 3,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
3,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 1 February 2018;

(xxiii) On 30 January 2018, a total of 2,000,000 share options were

(xxiv)

(xxv)

exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.477 per Share and these
2,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 5 February 2018;

On 30 January 2018, the rights attaching to the convertible bonds
to subscribe 58,823,529 Shares at conversion price of HK$0.85
per conversion share and these 58,823,529 Shares were allotted
and issued on 5 February 2018;

On 5 February 2018, a total of 1,500,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.477 per Share and these
1,500,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 9 February 2018;

(xxvi) On 6 February 2018, a total of 2,850,000 share options were

exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
2,850,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 9 February 2018;

(xxvii) On 7 February 2018, a total of 5,000,000 share options were

exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.477 per Share and these
5,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 9 February 2018;
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(xxviii)On 23 January 2018 and 9 February 2018, the Company entered
into a placing agreement and a supplemental placing agreement
with Sinomax Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant
to which the Placing Agent has conditionally agreed to place,
on a best efforts basis, 472,000,000 new shares (the “Placing
Share(s)”) to not less than six independent placees at a placing
price of HK$0.69 per Placing Share (the “Placing”). The Placing
was completed on 21 February 2018 and an aggregate of
472,000,000 Placing Shares were successfully placed to not
less than six independent placees. The net proceeds from the
Placing was approximately HK$323 million (representing a net
issue price of approximately HK$0.685 per Placing Share) and as
to approximately HK$219 million has been utilized for short term
loans financing business; approximately HK$100 million has been
utilized for redemption of convertible bonds; and approximately
HK$4 million has been used for general working capital of the
Group;

(xxix) On 6 March 2018, a total of 375,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
375,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 8 March 2018;

(xxx) On 9 March 2018, a total of 2,000,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
2,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 16 March 2018;
and

(xxxi) On 22 March 2018, a total of 2,375,000 share options were
exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these
2,375,000 Shares were allotted and issued on 29 March 2018.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the capital structure
of the Company during the year under review.
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LETTER OF INTENT FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF
JOINT VENTURE COMPANY

On 17 June 2016, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
letter of intent with D&R Asset Management Group Co., Ltd. (“D&R”)
to establish a joint venture company. The total commitment of capital
contribution to be made to the joint venture company is estimated
to be RMB200 million, of which RMB98 million is proposed to be
contributed by the Company and RMB102 million is proposed to be
contributed by D&R. As at the date of this annual report, the parties
to the letter of intent are still negotiating for the possible cooperation.
Further announcement in relation to the letter of intent will be made by
the Company as and when appropriate. Details of the transaction were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June 2016.

GRANT OF SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 21
September 2012 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

On 19 October 2017, the Board granted and the grants were accepted
by the eligible participants as defined in the Share Option Scheme in
respect of 536,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$0.488
per Share.

Details of the above grant of share options were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 October 2017.
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ISSUE AND COMPLETION OF CONVERTIBLE
BONDS UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 283 December 2016 (after trading hours), the Company entered into
the subscription agreements (the “Subscription Agreements”) with
each of Toplist Investments Limited (“Toplist”), CFC Group Limited
(“CFC Group”), Safe Arena Limited (“Safe Arena”), Ms. Song Ning
(“Ms. Song”) and Ms. Mei Yuanyuan (“Ms. Mei”) in relation to the
issue of convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$850 million. The Convertible Bonds will mature
in the third anniversary of the issue of the Convertible Bonds. The initial
conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.85 per conversion
share. The gross proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds will
be HK$850 million. The net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible
Bonds of approximately HK$849.5 million are intended to be used to
fund the Group’s business development including, in particular, the
setup of the Group’s medical management company utilising advanced
medical technologies and equipment to focus on the field of oncology
treatment and operation management and to replenish the working
capital of the Group. The net price per conversion share to be issued
is approximately HK$0.8495. The conversion shares will be issued
by the Company pursuant to the general mandate (the “General
Mandate”) granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting held
on 2 September 2016. Under the General Mandate, the Company is
authorised to issue up to 1,070,277,790 Shares until the revocation,
variation or expiration of the General Mandate. The Company has not
exercised the power to allot and issue any new Shares pursuant to the
General Mandate prior to the date of the Subscription Agreements.

On 17 February 2017, all conditions precedent under the CFC Group
Subscription Agreement had been fulfilled. Completion of the CFC
Group Subscription Agreement took place and the CFC Group
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$220 million were
issued to CFC Group on 17 February 2017.
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On 3 March 2017 (after trading hours), the Company entered into an
extension letter with each of Safe Arena, Ms. Song and Ms. Mei (the
“Remaining Subscribers”) to extend the completion date from the
45th business day to the 105th business day following the date of
the Remaining Subscription Agreements, or such other date as the
Company and the Remaining Subscribers may agree in writing. Save
and except for the extension of the completion date, all other terms
and provisions of the Remaining Subscription Agreements shall remain
the same and unchanged and the Remaining Subscription Agreements
shall remain in full force and effect.

On 3 March 2017 (after trading hours), the Company and Toplist had
mutually agreed to enter, and had entered, into the deed of termination
to terminate the Toplist Subscription Agreement and hence the issue of
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$400 million to Toplist
shall not proceed.

On 3 March 2017 (after trading hours), the Company and Gala Blossom
Limited (“Gala Blossom”) had mutually agreed to enter, and had
entered, into the Gala Blossom Subscription Agreement in relation
to the issue of the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds under General
Mandate in the principal amount of HK$400 million. The Gala Blossom
Convertible Bonds will mature in the third anniversary of the issue of
the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds. The initial conversion price of the
Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds is HK$0.85 per conversion share.
The gross proceeds from the issue of the Gala Blossom Convertible
Bonds amounted to HK$400 million. The net proceeds from the issue
of the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds of approximately HK$399.9
million are intended to be used to set up medical management company
in the PRC, which includes some small scale acquisitions of medical
companies and hospitals. The net price per Gala Blossom Conversion
Share is approximately HK$0.8498.
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On 20 March 2017, the Company decided to change the use of not
exceeding HK$250 million out of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$849.5 million raised from the issue of Convertible Bonds under the
General Mandate. Such HK$250 million (or lesser amount) had been
temporarily be used for short-term loan financing business, rather than
for the intended medical business.

On 28 April 2017, all conditions precedent under the Safe Arena
Subscription Agreement and Ms. Mei Subscription Agreement have
been fulfilled. Partial completion of the Safe Arena Subscription
Agreement and completion of Ms. Mei Subscription Agreement took
place and the Safe Arena Issued Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$68.5 million and Ms. Mei Convertible Bonds in the
principal amount of HK$20 million were issued on 28 April 2017.

On 11 May 2017 (after trading hours), the Company entered into an
extension letter with Gala Blossom to extend the completion date from
the 45th business day to the 80th business day following the date of
the Gala Blossom Subscription Agreement, or such other date as the
Company and Gala Blossom may agree in writing. Save and except
for the aforesaid extension of the completion date, all other terms
and provisions of the Gala Blossom Subscription Agreement shall
remain the same and unchanged and the Gala Blossom Subscription
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

On 5 June 2017, all conditions precedent under the Safe Arena
Subscription Agreement and Ms. Song Subscription Agreement have
been fulfilled. Completion of the Safe Arena Subscription Agreement
and completion of Ms. Song Subscription Agreement took place and
the Safe Arena Issued Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$91.5 million and Ms. Song Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$50 million were issued on 5 June 2017.

On 28 June 2017, all conditions precedent under the Gala Blossom
Subscription Agreement of the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds had
been fulfilled. Partial completion of the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds
took place and the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$170 million were issued to Gala Blossom on 28 June
2017.
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On 30 June 2017, all conditions precedent under the Gala Blossom
Subscription Agreement of the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds had
been fulfilled. Completion of the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds has
taken place and the Gala Blossom Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$230 million were issued to Gala Blossom on 30 June
2017.

On 29 September 2017, the Company decided to change the use
of not exceeding HK$276.09 million out of the net proceeds of total
approximately HK$549.9 million raised from the issue of Convertible
Bonds under the General Mandate would be used for short-term loan
financing business, to avoid funding idle.

Details of the above transactions were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 23 December 2016, 20 February 2017, 3 March
2017, 20 March 2017, 28 April 2017, 11 May 2017, 5 June 2017, 28
June 2017, 30 June 2017 and 29 September 2017 respectively.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company received the net
proceeds from the Subscription Agreements and the Gala Blossom
Subscription Agreement of total approximately HK$849.6 million, of
which (i) HK$526.09 million was used for short-term loans financing
business; (i) HK$101.6 million was used for setup the joint venture
company in the PRC for the investment advisory services, wholesale
and retails of pharmaceutical; (i) HK$170 million was fully used for
setup the Joint Venture 2 Company in the PRC for the investment in
hospitals and medical projects especially in proton medical center
projects, medical technology research and development including
proton accelerator; and (iv) the remaining amount of around HK$51.91
million was used as working capital.
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FURTHER ISSUE AND COMPLETION OF
CONVERTIBLE BONDS UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

On 21 February 2017 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into the subscription agreement (the “CFC Group Subscription
Agreement 2”) with CFC Group in relation to the issue of the
convertible bonds (the “CFC Group Convertible Bonds 2”) in the
principal amount of HK$59.5 million. The gross proceeds from the issue
of the CFC Group Convertible Bonds 2 will be HK$59.5 million. The
CFC Group Convertible Bonds 2 will mature in the third anniversary of
the issue of the CFC Group Convertible Bonds 2. The initial conversion
price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.85 per conversion share. The
net proceeds from the issue of the CFC Group Convertible Bonds 2
of approximately HK$59.4 million are intended to be used as general
working capital of the Group. The net price per conversion share to be
issued is approximately HK$0.849. The conversion shares will be issued
by the Company pursuant to the General Mandate.

On 3 March 2017 (after trading hours), the Company and CFC Group
had mutually agreed to enter, and had entered, into a supplemental
agreement to clarify the rights of CFC Group if the Company is to
conduct any consolidation or subdivision of the Shares before the
maturity date of the convertible bonds which may be issued to CFC
Group under the CFC Group Subscription Agreement 2 dated 21
February 2017.

On 14 March 2017, all conditions precedent under the CFC Group
Subscription Agreement 2 had been fulfilled. Completion of the CFC
Group Subscription Agreement 2 took place and the CFC Group
Convertible Bonds 2 in the principal amount of HK$59.5 million were
issued to CFC Group on 14 March 2017.

Details of the above transactions were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 21 February 2017, 3 March 2017 and 15 March
2017 respectively.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company received the
net proceeds from the CFC Group Subscription Agreement 2 of
approximately HK$59.4 million has been utilized as working capital.
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OUTSTANDING CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 March 2018, the Company has outstanding convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,747,000,000 (the
“Outstanding Convertible Bonds”), among which principal amount
of HK$1,000,000,000 has the conversion price of HK$0.80 per share
and principal amount of HK$747,000,000 has the conversion price of
HK$0.85 per share. The number of shares that would be issued upon
full conversion of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds is 2,128,823,529
shares (representing approximately 30.40% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2018 and approximately 23.31% of the
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by such outstanding
conversion shares).

Assuming that the Outstanding Convertible Bonds were converted in
full as at 31 March 2018, the respective shareholdings of the substantial
shareholders of the Company would have been changed as follows:

Before conversion of Outstanding

Convertible Bonds

M AR TR AT AR S 25
RZZE—N\F=ZA=+—8B ' XAREEELES
#1,747,000,000 7T 2 FTHRAR (& 5 ) R 17158 ([ 18 K
TETERES]) - A EEE1,000,000,000
TLHE R E BB 0.807T LA K BB
747,000,0007T 8 8 2 & & & i B B0.857T °
BEERERITEIRRELFEBITZRO B
2,128,823, 520 R ((h R A B R =T —N\F =1
=+ —HZEBEBITRML80.40% REERE T
BRI IE R 2 AR BB I TARA4923.31%) ©

B RITE AR ISR —E— \F= A=+ —
RAEENEE - AATEERTE A2 HRERY
BT

Immediately after conversion of
Outstanding Convertible Bonds

i ARATRE AR R E S EIRA EARITEARRESERZNA
Name of Substantial Number of shares % of total issued Number of shares % of total issued
shareholders held shares held shares
TERREE BERGOEHE R ITRMD % BERGOEHE R ITRD %
Mr. LI Kwong Yuk (note)
B AL (M) 3,834,130,405 54.75% 5,084,130,405 55.68%
China Shipbuilding Capital Limited
FEIMMEARBR AR 905,625,000 12.93% 905,625,000 9.92%
Total issued shares
BERITRG 7,002,772,481 9,131,596,010
Note: including shares held by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk and WCIL and WAML which are Mzt BREFABEEBAFEORGKEFLELERE

wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li.

The dilutive impact on the loss per share of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2018 is not applicable as conversion of the Outstanding
Convertible Bonds (if any) would have resulted in decrease in loss per
share.

It is expected that the financial and liquidity position of the Company
as at 31 March 2018 or afterwards would not be materially affected by
the redemption of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds (if any), as the
redemption will only take place with the Company’s consent according
to the terms of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds.

CANCELLATION OF REPURCHASED SHARES

On 8 May 2017, a total of 79,825,000 repurchased Shares were
cancelled.
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DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION/MAJOR
TRANSACTION — FORMATION OF JOINT
VENTURES

On 12 May 2017, F{EEZEKREETE (L) R AR (Hoping Medica
Investment Limited (Zhejiang)*) (“Hoping Medical”), an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the joint venture
agreement (the “JV Agreement”) with an independent third party, &
ZHTREILE AR A A) (China CNNE Investment Limited*) (“CCIL”), and
the joint venture company (the “Joint Venture Company”) to form a
joint venture for the investment advisory services, wholesale and retails
of pharmaceutical, the development, transfer, advices and services on
the field on pharmaceutical technologies (the “Transaction”). Before
the Transaction, the entire issued share capital of the Joint Venture
Company is held by CCIL. Upon completion of the Transaction,
the Joint Venture Company will be owned as to 70% by CCIL and
30% by Hoping Medical. The parties expect that they will invest up
to an aggregate of RMB250,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$282,250,000) into the Joint Venture Company, of which
RMB90,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$101,610,000) will be
contributed by the Company.

Details of the Transaction were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 12 May 2017.

On 14 June 2017, Hoping Medical entered into the joint venture
agreement (the “dV Agreement 2”) with CCIL and the joint venture
company (the “Joint Venture 2 Company”) to form a joint venture
for the investment in hospitals and medical projects especially in
proton medical center projects; medical technology research and
development including proton accelerator and supporting scientific
laboratory equipment; medical network technology development;
medical robot research and development; hospital management;
medical equipment technology development, advice and services (the
“Second Transaction”). Upon completion of the Second Transaction,
the Joint Venture 2 Company will be owned as to 76.92% by CCIL and
23.08% by Hoping Medical. The parties expect that they will invest
up to an aggregate of RMB650,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$746,200,000) into the Joint Venture 2 Company, of which
RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$172,200,000) will
be contributed by the Company.

*

For identification purpose only

Management Discussion and Analysis

B i B g e

o

ATRBRS,/FTERH—KIGE
NS

RZE—+FRA+-H  ARFZ—HEEE2E
B R MEEEREESECHT) ARAR (M
EBE ) B — BB = AR E AR AT
([h&Fee) REERR([EEATRDEILAEE
W ((AEHE]) UKL —REERARHETRE
AR - EMMERTE - BREHESRN
MoFEs - EiE - FARRB(RB]) - RRSH] -
BERNRZE2HEBITRABFZIERE - X
RHTHIE G2 RREBPEIEER 0%
mRAMERERA0%ER - I TE - #
ZmeERaRERE & L AR 250,000,000
TC(FEE R #7815 282,250,0007T ) * ErR AR #
90,000,000 7t (A8 744778 101,610,000 7T ) # 1
AARHE °

BRXSZHERARARNA T —LERA
+= B2 AR -

%

AT —tFNA+NA - MEREEPZHRE

AERNR([ B8RRI AE B[ E=H
BEmE]) UKL — AR REITTHER N E
BFEEMRE  HRTEFEETLOEE - BER
M (REE FINRERRENEERRME) B
BRI  BRMISAE  BERE 5B
BEMM BT - BARRE((EZRRS]) -
REZRRGTHIE - EEERNRIGEPIZIEE
B 76.92% % M F{EEERA 23.08% % ©
RIRATER - HEHME_SERARRERZEH
AERH 650,000,000 7T (A5 55 72 49,48 1 746,200,000
JL) - He AR 150,000,000 7T (HEE R 475 1
172,200,000 7T.) # A A AR & -

SR B A R4 )
e AT

25



26

Management Discussion and Analysis

B PR W B or H

As the JV Agreement and the JV Agreement 2 were entered into by
Hoping Medical with the same party, CCIL, in relation to the formation
of Joint Venture Company and Joint Venture 2 Company respectively.
The Transaction and Second Transaction should be determined as
an aggregated transactions of the Company under Rules 14.22 and
14.23 of the Listing Rules. Therefore, as the highest of the applicable
percentage ratios of the Second Transaction is expected to exceed
25% but each of the applicable percentage ratios is less than 100%,
the Second Transaction constitute a major transaction of the Company
under Rule 14.06(3) of the Listing Rules and is subject to reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. The Second Transaction was approved
by the shareholders in the special general meeting held on 6 February
2018.

Details of the Second Transaction were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 14 June 2017, 13 July 2017,
26 July 2017, 28 August 2017, 20 September 2017, 29 September
2017, 31 October 2017, 30 November 2017, 29 December 2017 and
6 February 2018 respectively and the circular of the Company dated 19
January 2018.

VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 21 June 2017 (after trading hours), the Company as the purchaser
and Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, being a controlling shareholder, an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company, as the vendor (“Mr. Li” or
the “Vendor”) entered into the acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire for and the Vendor has conditionally agreed to
dispose of the entire equity interest in United Faith Investments Limited
(the “Target Company”), which is wholly-owned by the Vendor, for
the consideration of HK$1,000 million. Pursuant to the Acquisition
Agreement, the consideration of HK$1,000 million shall be satisfied by
the issuance of the convertible bonds (“Mr. Li Convertible Bonds”)
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000 million to be issued by
the Company to the Vendor under the specific mandate to be sought
from the independent shareholders (the “Independent Shareholders”)
(other than Mr. Li, Mr. Su Xiaonong, an Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and their respective associates who
are required to abstain from voting at the special general meeting) at
the special general meeting of the Company to be convened to allot
and issue the new Shares which may fall to be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights attaching to Mr. Li Convertible Bonds.
The initial conversion price of Mr. Li Convertible Bonds is HK$0.8 per
conversion share.

* For identification purpose only
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The Target Company indirectly holds 100% equity interest in )T &2z
BB AR (Xintal Investment Company Limited*) (“Xintai”). Xintai is
principally engaged in the development, operation and investment of
property. Xintai also holds A& —5; (One Parkview*), a complex land
use development which is located at No. 218, Ti Yu Nan Road, Chikan
District, Zhanjiang, Guangdong Province, the PRC (the “Properties”).
Xintai holds the Existing Land Use Right Certificates (with a total
site area of approximately 106,140 square meters) in respect of the
Properties. The Properties comprises of three phases, (i) phase |
comprises of two blocks of residential buildings with a number of retail
shops, car parks and facilities; (i) phase Il comprises of four blocks of
residential buildings with a number of car parks and facilities; and (i)
phase lll is a vacant land.

The transaction was approved by the Independent Shareholders
in a special general meeting held on 15 March 2018. All conditions
precedent of the transaction had been fulfilled and completion took
place on 26 March 2018. Pursuant to the terms of the Acquisition
Agreement, the consideration, being HK$1,000 million, was paid to the
Vendor and was satisfied by the issuance of the convertible bonds to
Mr. Li.

Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 21 June 2017, 12 July 2017, 31 August 2017,
29 September 2017, 31 October 2017, 30 November 2017, 20
December 2017, 31 January 2018, 15 March 2018 and 26 March 2018
respectively and the circular of the Company dated 28 February 2018.

REFRESHMENT OF GENERAL MANDATE OF ISSUE
SHARES AT THE SGM

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 September
2016, the Directors were granted the general mandate (“General
Mandate”) to allot and issue up to 1,070,277,790 shares, representing
20% of the total number of issued shares of the Company on 2
September 2016. On 30 June 2017, the Board proposed to refresh
the General Mandate. The refreshment of the General Mandate was
subsequently approved by the independent shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 18 July 2017. Pursuant to the
refreshed General Mandate, the Directors were authorized to allot and
issue not more than 20% of the total number of shares in issue (being
5,360,448,952 shares) of the Company on 18 July 2017.
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Details of the above transaction were disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 30 June 2017 and the announcement of the Company
dated 18 July 2017.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION-DISPOSAL OF AN
INDIRECTLY WHOLLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY

On 30 March 2018, Nation Delight Limited (the “Vendor”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the agreement with
an independent third party, E/MNT REFHERZEFR QA (the
“Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Vendor has agreed to sell Dingyi
(China) Investment Limited (the “Target Company”) to the Purchaser
for a consideration of RMB250,000,000 in cash. The Target Company
comprises Hoping Medical Investment Limited and A{EEHEREE
2 L) BMRA A (“Hoping China”), both of which are investment
holding companies. Hoping China holds 30% of the equity interests in
FRIZETEEBE AR A A (“dV17) and 23.08% of the equity interests in
FiEFeeE FRBEREERAERAR(IV2?). JV1 is principally
engaged in wholesale and retails of radioactive pharmaceuticals. JV2
is principally engaged in investments in hospitals and medical projects,
especially in proton medical center projects and medical technology
research and development including proton accelerator. Completion
has taken place upon signing of the agreement. The Target Company
will cease to be a subsidiary of the Company and the financial results
will no longer be consolidated to the results of the Group.

Details of the transaction was disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 30 March 2018.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 April 2018, the rights attaching to the convertible bonds to
subscribe 152,941,176 Shares at conversion price of HK$0.85 per
conversion share were exercised and these 152,941,176 Shares were
allotted and issued on 13 April 2018.

On 12 April 2018, a total of 2,375,000 share options were exercised at
an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these 2,375,000 Shares
were allotted and issued on 20 April 2018.

On 16 April 2018, a total of 6,325,000 share options were exercised at
an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these 6,325,000 Shares
were allotted and issued on 20 April 2018.
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On 17 April 2018, a total of 1,000,000 share options were exercised at
an exercise price of HK$0.375 per Share and these 1,000,000 Shares
were allotted and issued on 20 April 2018.

STRATEGY AND OUTLOOK

The Company has been selected as a constituent stock of Hang Seng
Global Composite Index and Hang Seng Composite Index and its
subdivisions of: Hang Seng Composite SmallCap Index, Hang Seng
Composite MidCap & SmallCap Index and Hang Seng Composite
Industry Index — Financials, by the Hang Seng Indexes Company
Limited, with effect on 4 September 2017. The Company has further
been selected as a constituent stock of the following index series by
the Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited, with effect on 5 March
2018: Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index; Hang Seng
Stock Connect Hong Kong MidCap & SmallCap Index; Hang Seng
Stock Connect Hong Kong SmallCap Index; Hang Seng SCHK HK
Companies Index; and Hang Seng SCHK ex-AH Companies Index. The
Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index serves as a benchmark to
reflect the overall performance of the securities listed in Hong Kong that
are eligible for trading via the southbound trading link of Stock Connect.
The Company’s inclusion in the market benchmark index and Hang
Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong Index represents capital market’s
recognition of the Company, and is expected to expand shareholder
base and trading liquidity of the Company, resulting in realization of
the value of investment in the Company and enhancement of the
Company’s reputation in the capital market.

Apart from the existing businesses of securities trading, food and
beverages, wine trading, loan financing, properties development and
finance leasing, the Group will continue to explore other potential
investment opportunities with reasonable returns that meet the
Company’s criteria. This will not only strengthen our core business but
also increase the shareholders’ values. The Group has been exploring
some investment opportunities in new energy projects, high-end
manufacturing projects, properties development, finance and ocean
industry.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Set out below are the biographical details of the current Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li, aged 56, joined the Company as executive Director and
chairman of the Company on 27 October 2011. He is also the
chairman of the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and directors of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li is a
businessman with over 12 years’ investment experience in the highway
industry in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He studied at
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Trade from 1978 to 1981. Mr. Li had
worked on various investment projects in areas such as infrastructure
and finance in Hong Kong and the PRC. He has 50% shareholding in
Wincon International Limited (“Wincon International”), a company
set up by Mr. Li and incorporated in Hong Kong, which is principally
engaged in investment business in highways in the PRC. He is a sole
director and the beneficial owner of Wincon Capital Investment Limited,
the controlling Shareholder, and also directors of various companies
including Wincon International, Wincon Asset Management Limited,
Dingyi Wantong Investment (HK) Limited, Dingyi Venture Capital (HK)
Limited, Dingyi New Energy Investment Limited, EMNIREE SR A AR
A 7] (Guangzhou Huan Long Expressway Co., Ltd., being its unofficial
English translation) and R R EEBIEERR AR (Shenzhen
Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its unofficial English
translation).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

RITEFE 2 BESBRINT -
HITES

FHE B6HE RZE——FTAZFTEANA
RABRARTEZRARAZER - BAMALR
AREZES((REEZEES ) TR LZHMBER
BIZEE - FTREBABA  RAEAREMH
(THED) 2 ABTERER T —FRELR - &
R—AENEFEEZE—AN—FREREMNEINE 52
Bt o ZHRACEBBERFREZ SREEB A (W
EfFRmRer) TE - BIFAXEEEBERA A
([KBERR]) (—KATLEERL RN EBEMAK
SMZRE)) Z50%MHE - AR EERFRAREER
EIREET - HAEKRBRIKTERNEEGRAA
PH—ZBERESHEEA  TAZRAR(BIEX
WEE - KBEEEEBRAR - RESREE)
FERRAR - BEER(HB)REGRAAF - £
BHERIEEBRAR  BEMNRESRAKBRA
ARFITREEBREERBRAR) ZESE -



Mr. Su, aged 54, joined the Company as executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) on
27 October 2011. He is also a member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and directors of various subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Su graduated from East China College of Political
Science and Law in 1986. He has been director or management of
various venture capital, private equity and investment consultancy
companies in the PRC, including worked at ;&I B EEIEH
FR 28] (Shenzhen Gofar Investment Management Co., Ltd., being its
unofficial English translation) from April 2003 to November 2007. Mr.
Su currently works at JRJIT B S I EER AR AT (Shenzhen
Union Venture Capital Consulting Co., Ltd., being its unofficial English
translation) and &Y R EEBIREBR A F (Shenzhen Dingyi
Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its unofficial English translation).
He is also a partner and vice president of Shenzhen Dingyi Venture
Capital L.P..

Mr. Zheng, aged 47, joined the Company as executive Director on 21
February 2017. He is also a director of Hoping Medical Investment
Limited which is a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Zheng served as
the vice general manager of 1t =& M B BRHZBR A 7] (Beijing Union
Power Technology Limited Company*) from March 2003 to November
2012, in which he was mainly responsible for the business of the
Company in relation to sales and mergers and acquisitions. During his
tenure with 1L R ERE(E BB AR (Beiing Yin Wan Information
Technology Limited Company*) from 2013 to 2015, Mr. Zheng served
as the vice president and was responsible for internet finance related
business. Mr. Zheng was an executive director of China Ruifeng
Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (“China Ruifeng”) (stock code:
527) from July 2015 to June 2016, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Following of his resignation as an executive
director of China Ruifeng and until December 2016, he was a senior
consultant of China Ruifeng and provided consultation services for the
new energy business and financing of China Ruifeng. Mr. Zheng has
years of experience in doing mergers and acquisitions in capital markets
and in dealing with various types of financial instruments.

Management Profile

B B g

goed bam RZZE——F+A-+tHHMA
RRABHEEARRR Z NI TESFRITBARE ([1THE
R -EBNHAARRAFTHEZES(FHEES))
ZRERZHEMBARIZES - HEEN—N/US
FREFBUEZMEE - F—HETTREZHERR
B AERERREER AT 2 EENEREH
% HPeER - EE=FMAE _TT+F+—
AERAEBARYMEBEREETEBRAR © 3L
ERERBRFRITHE S EREBRER QG KR
MR EEBRERERRAA - BIFARYTHREE
TEERHE (BRER) 2EB ARRBH -

B 47R RZE—tF A=+ —HMNMA
AARIHERITES - WITAARRGLZHE AR
TEEERARICES - BAENR_TT=5F=FH
ECE - F+— AT RENBBREERAR
EERIREIE - BREZaBEMBITIEARIRME
%o BEER T =FE2 " —AFEILREE
EERMBRARELREE  BELHMAEASEE
RIEETS o B BN - F—RE+AE T —RFE
N AEBEEFEREFERERER AT ([ FE
R (BRI 527) ZHTES (B —RHERE
REFER L2 AR » HREAEREIRRANITE
ERECT AT+ ARTEREIRESHRER
A ENG R ERES R AERARHEEASTR
%o BAEEREAT SR LEBEMIAEES
HARLZKE -

SR B A R4 )
e AT

31



32

Management Profile

BB 8

Dr. Wang, aged 39, joined the Company as executive Director on 12
April 2018. Dr. Wang graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University with
bachelor’s degrees in engineering and science, a master’s degree in
software engineering and a doctoral degree in engineering. From 2003
to 2004, Dr. Wang served as the chief technical officer of the Beijing
branch of Beiling Snsoft Technology Co., Ltd. (It REt KR A
[R 2 7]). From 2005 to present, Dr. Wang has served as the technical
director of Xi’an Hanyang Technology Company Limited (Fa% k5
B AR A E]). Dr. Wang has in-depth knowledge in the relevant
markets and possesses exceptional analytical capabilities. He has been
engaged in construction of computer software systems and analysis
and design of internet software platforms. He has extensive experience
in system construction, information consultation and corporate
operation. In respect of scientific research, Dr. Wang successively
organized and completed various national scientific research projects
as a main technical officer including“Digital City” (Bt=={L3# ) and
“Support Platform for Contemporary Service Industry” (T [m135 8 AR 75 2
XEFR).

Mr. Li, aged 34, joined the Company as a senior investment manager
on 3 November 2014 and appointed as executive Director on 12 April
2018. Mr. Li has over 9 years of experience in the corporate finance
and investment industry. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Economics and Management from University of Oxford, and a Master
of Science Degree in Finance from London School of Economics and
Political Science. He worked at the corporate finance department in
ICBC International Capital Limited and Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Ltd.
He also worked at client solutions department in Sun Hung Kai Financial
Limited before joining the Company.

* For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow, aged 50, joined the Company as independent non-
executive Director on 27 October 2011. He is also chairman of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chow has accumulated years of
working experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance
areas. He holds a Master Degree in Professional Accounting. Mr.
Chow is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has worked for various private and
listed companies at senior management level. He is currently serving in
a senior management role in a consultancy services company and an
independent non-executive director of China Assurance Finance Group
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8090).

Mr. Cao, aged 68, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 12 December 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Cao holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from the University of Hunan and
a Master Degree in Financial Management from the University of
London. Mr. Cao has extensive experience in the areas of banking and
finance. He worked in Bank of China, Hunan Province branch for the
period from July 1981 to February 1996 and his last position was the
deputy president of the branch. For the period from February 1996 to
September 1999, Mr. Cao was the deputy general manager of Bank
of China, Singapore branch. For the period from September 1999 to
September 2003, he was the president of China Citic Bank, Shenzhen
branch. Then he worked as the managing director of the investment
banking division of BOCI Asia Limited from September 2003 to
September 2007. Mr. Cao was an independent non-executive director
of Huili Resources (Group) Limited (stock code: 1303) from December
2011 to September 2017, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Cao is currently an independent non-executive director of JLF
Investment Company Limited (stock code: 472), Dongwu Cement
International Limited (stock code: 695) and Junefield Department Store
Group Limited (stock code: 758), all of which are companies listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ip, aged 50, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 31 March 2016. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Degree of a Bachelor of Laws. He is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong
and has more than 20 years of experience in the legal profession. Mr.
Ip is currently an independent non-executive director of Asia Standard
Hotel Group Limited (stock code: 292) and Wealthy Way Group Limited
(stock code: 3848), both of which are companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive
director of China Bio Cassava Holdings Limited (stock code: 8129) from
September 2000 to November 2013, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ji, aged 51, joined the Company as executive president on 20
February 2017. Mr. Ji has over 20 years of experience in scientific
research and practical work on risk control and investment operation
in financial market. Mr. Ji holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Science from
South China Normal University, a Postgraduate Degree in Economics
from the Communist Party School in Guangdong and a Doctoral
Degree in Finance from College of Economics of Jinan University.
He has published numerous articles in major periodicals relating to
financial and public management sectors. He once worked in provincial
governments, universities, and engaged in the bankruptcy works of
(EREBE{=7ERE A ")) Guangdong International Trust Investment
Corporation* and reorganization of Guangdong Holdings Limited.
He is currently an adjunct professor of Tsinghua University and Jinan
University respectively, and also a distinguished visiting professor of
Central University of Finance and Economics.

Mr. Zhang, aged 46, joined the Company as the general manager of
the real estate business division on 8 October 2016. Mr. Zhang holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Engineering from Hunan University and
a Master’s Degree in Civil Engineering from Tsinghua University. He
holds practicing qualifications in China in numerous sectors including
engineering, cost and assessment, and has over 20 years of experience
in real estate development. He held senior management positions in
many listed real estate enterprises.

*  For identification purpose only
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Ms. Kuang, aged 28, joined the Company as an investment analyst on
3 January 2017. Ms. Kuang has 5 years of experience in data analysis,
corporate finance and investment management. Ms. Kuang holds a
Dual Bachelor’s Degree in Management and Law from Jinan University,
a Master’s Degree in Finance from University of Bath, England. She was
granted the international mathematical modeling award. She obtained
the Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and Financial Risk Manager (FRM)
Licenses and is a member of the HK Society of Financial Analysts.
She worked at the group business unit of China Construction Bank
Corporation, specializing in constructing performance models for banks
and provision of investment and financing proposals for clients.
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REVENUE

The Group’s revenue increased from HK$570 million in 2017 to HK$668
million in 2018, mainly due to the increase in revenue from sale of
properties and interest income from provision of loan financing services.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit margin of the Group maintained at 22% (2017: 20%) this
year.

OTHER INCOME

Other income increased to HK$55 million (2017: HK$14 million) this year
mainly due to an exchange gain of HK$45 million (2017: HK$4 million)
recognised during the year.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS AND
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling and distribution costs decreased to HK$5 million this year
as compared to HK$10 million in last year due to the decrease in
advertising costs and commission expenses of properties development
business. General and administrative expenses decreased to HK$210
million (2017: HK$219 million) which was mainly due to the decrease in
staff costs to HK$22 million (2017: HK$34 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment increased to HK$30 million in this year
(2017: HK$24 million). The increase was mainly due to the additions in
motor vehicles and leasehold improvements and equipment during the
year.

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

Held for trading investments significantly decreased from HK$361
million to HK$63 million this year because of the decrease in the
portfolio of the listed investments in the securities trading business.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances increased from HK$148 million in last year
to HK$283 million this year mainly due to the proceeds received from
issuance of convertible bonds and new shares during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s net assets attributable to the owners
of the Company amounted to HK$1,609 million (2017: HK$687 million),
an increase of HK$922 million when compared with that of 2017. Such
net decrease was mainly due to the issue of convertible bonds and the
issue of shares.

As at 31 March 2018, total debt to equity ratio was 0.78 (2017:
0.41) and net debt to equity ratio was 0.60 (2017: 0.19), which were
expressed as a ratio of total bank borrowings and convertible bonds
and net bank borrowings and convertible bonds respectively, over the
total equity of HK$1,609 million (2017: HK$687 million).

BORROWINGS

As at 31 March 2018, the group has no bank borrowings and finance
lease obligations as at the end of the year.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, the margin loans payable was secured by
the listed equity securities placed in a financial institution held
under the margin accounts with total market value of approximately
HK$110,612,000.

As at 31 March 2017, the margin loans payable was secured by
the listed equity securities placed in a financial institution held
under the margin accounts with total market value of approximately
HK$358,289,000 and the Group has pledged its completed properties
held for sale with a carrying value of approximately HK$664,152,000 to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s assets are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”), Renminbi (“RMB”), United States dollars (“USD”) and
Australian dollars (“AUD”). Considering the exchange rates between
these currencies are relatively stable, the Group believed that the
corresponding exposure to RMB, USD and AUD exchange rates
fluctuation were relatively limited. The Group does not undertake any
derivative financial instruments or hedging instruments. The Group will
constantly review the economic situation and its foreign currency risk
profile, and continues to actively monitor foreign exchange exposure to
minimize the impact of any adverse currency movement.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had capital commitments of
HK$7,284,000 (2017: HK$6,723,000).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimize the cost of
funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralized. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in HKD, USD, RMB
or AUD. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently
reviewed. In anticipating new investments, the Group will consider new
financing channels while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has introduced corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2018 except
for the deviation disclosed below:

Code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should
be given of a regular board meeting to all Directors to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. During the year ended 31 March 2018, certain
regular Board meetings were convened with less than 14 days’ notice to
facilitate the Directors’ timely reaction and expeditious decision making
process in respect of internal affairs of the Group. All Board meetings,
nevertheless, were duly convened and held in the way prescribed by the
Bye-laws of the Company. The Board will use reasonable endeavour to
meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in future.
Adequate and appropriate information are circulated normally three
days in advance of Board meetings to the Directors.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Li Kwong Yuk,
the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 28 September 2017 due to his health
reasons.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code (the “Model Code”) for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors during the year.

The Company has made specific enquiries to all the Directors and they
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Company is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Board has delegated
the power to oversee the daily operational matters of the Group to the
management of the Company under the supervision of the Board.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its
power in an informed manner, all members of the Board have full and
timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

The Board has full support from the Chief Executive Officer and the
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

Appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against the Directors and senior management of the Group
arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprises the following Directors and their respective
roles are set out as follows:

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)

Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (resigned on 17 March 2018)
Ms. Liu Yutong (resigned on 13 February 2018)

Mr. Zheng Xiantao

Dr. Wang Zhi (appointed on 12 April 2018)

Mr. Li Zhongxia (appointed on 12 April 2018)

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Ip Chi Wai

The biographical details of each current Director are set out in the
“Management Profile” in this annual report. Their roles and functions are
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. A
balanced composition of Executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors also generates a strong independent element on the Board,
which allows independent and objective decision making process
for the best interest of the Company. The Company will review the
composition of the Board regularly to ensure the Board possesses the
appropriate and necessary expertise, skills and experience to meet the
needs of the business development of the Group.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the confirmation,
the Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board meets either in person or through other electronic means of
communication to monitor the execution of plans, review the Group’s
business performance and review financial reporting as well as all other
material matters. The Board held 5 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2018. Individual attendance records of each Director at the
Board meetings are set out in the table on page 49 of this annual report.
Sufficient notice with agenda and the relevant information of the Board
meeting are given to all Directors. Minutes of the Board Meetings and
meetings of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee are drafted by the Company Secretary and the
final version of the minutes of the said meetings are sent to all Directors
for comments and records. The signed minutes of the said meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by
any Directors. If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matters will be dealt with by a Board
meeting rather than written resolutions and the Board will ensure that an
adequate number of Independent Non-executive Directors are involved
in the consideration of the relevant matters. Independent Non-executive
Directors are encouraged to take an active role in the Board meetings.

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE BOARD
MEMBERS

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships, among the Board members.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the year, the Company provides regular updates on the business
performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are continually
updated on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeeping of good corporate governance practices.
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The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
developments (the “Continuous Professional Development”) to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. According to the
records maintained by the Company, the training that the Directors
received for the year ended 31 March 2018 is summarized below:

Name

o]
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Course/seminar

provided/accredited
by professional body Reading materials

MEXEBIRER
RAZREEHRE BEER

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk

FREBEAE

Mr. Su Xiaonong

FBERTE

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (resigned on 17 March 2018)
RerBEE(RZE—\F=A++HET)
Ms. Liu Yutong (resigned on 13 February 2018)
Bt (R N\F_AT=HE'T)
Mr. Zheng Xiantao

B/ EE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki

-2

Mr. Cao Kuangyu

BT EE

Mr. Ip Chi Wai

EEREE

Under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills, and should provide a record of the
training they received to the issuer. The Company did not receive the
training record from Ms. Liu Yutong, an Executive Director.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk is currently the Chairman and Mr. Su Xiaonong is
currently the Chief Executive Officer. In accordance with the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are separate and performed by different person.

The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functions of the Board
and providing leadership for the Board while the Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for managing the businesses of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each Independent Non-executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years from the
effective date of the service agreement and automatically renewed for
one year from the expiry date of the appointed period until terminated
by either party giving at least three months’ notice.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of two years from the effective date of the
service agreement and automatically renewed for one year from the
expiry date of the appointed period until terminated by either party
giving at least three months’ notice.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”). Under Bye-law 112.(A), at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation. Every Director shall retire from office no later than the third
AGM since the last re-election or appointment of such Director.

The emolument payable to Directors is determined by the Board
with reference to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s
recommendation as well as the Directors’ duties and responsibilities
and the prevailing market conditions.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee in order to maintain high
level of corporate governance standard of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu
Ki (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr.
Ip Chi Wai. The chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Chow Shiu
Ki, possesses appropriate professional qualifications in finance and
accounting and meets the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
existing auditing firm of the Company during one year after he ceases to
be partner of the audit firm.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
and provide supervision over the financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control procedures of the Group and to
review the Company’s annual report and accounts and the interim
report and to provide advices and comments thereon to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee met twice
with the auditors of the Company (the “Auditor”). Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee were disclosed in the
“Terms of Reference of Audit Committee” which has been published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee has
reviewed with the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls, risk
management systems of the Group and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2018. Individual attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the table on page 49 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG
Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Cao
Kuangyu and Mr. Ip Chi Wai, and two Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Su Xiaonong and Mr. Cheung Sze Ming. Mr. Cheung Sze Ming resigned
as an Executive Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 17 March 2018.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are,
including but not limited to, to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and the senior management of the Company and to establish a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. Details
of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee were
disclosed in the “Terms of Reference of Remuneration Committee”
which has been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BE—T)\F=ZA=t—HLFERN FZZE
SHEEECENASEMRAZ T RAIRE
% UswmBRASEZER - NEEE - ARE
BERGMIBERRER  EPEEEHNAKEEE
—E-)\FZA=t+-HULEFEZRELY R
%o

REBEZZT-N\F=A=1+—BILFE  BZZ8
SOBRITMAER - BRRBEEEKB ZERHFE
OB E N ANERE 40 B 2 RIFA -

FE S
= HBHE

SHEE
AR RIRAE D FE AT Bl 2 B B <7 RS SZ #r A
ZEg UHEZMBERE -

BE—T-/\F=ZA=t—HLLFERN  HFWHEE
CH-RBUIIFNTES - IFEELE(FME
BEXFE) ERTRERESRLLE UM%
HITES - AERBIR AL SORFEUR AN - R
FARERER T \FZATLBEBERTES
REFMEEEKE -

FHEZERZIERES  BREETER  BAR
AARERESRARASREEEHI BE N
RBA RS E S M BOR 2 S IE = SB R 2 A2 [A)
ExgkRhEs FHZEecMERAIFHERN
[FINE B BiEsE | ARE - 2 TENBR
PR ANR B Z 8V o



During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management.

REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE RRLET
The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of AARBKIIRRZES - W EEMBESE -
reference and the same has been revised in order to comply with the MR E D BT UREREE TR 2 BREST
relevant code provisions in the CG Code. BIEST o

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee
comprises one Executive Director, namely Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (chairman
of the Nomination Committee) and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki and Mr. Ip Chi Wai.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are,
including but not limited to, to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience, length of
service and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee were disclosed in
the “Terms of Reference of Nomination Committee” which has been
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed
the independence of all Independent Non-executive Directors,
recommended the Board on the nomination of Directors for re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company, and reviewed the
resignation of two Executive Directors with recommendation to the
Board on the acceptance of resignation of the Executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 March 2018. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 49 of this annual
report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the fees paid/payable to the
Auditor in respect of audit services provided by the Auditor were as

ARBSHEBSZ T EZE(BREETRMER
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RIGFH) MEREEEKEZTL - MBEESE
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8o
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follows:
Nature of services Amount (HK$’000)
PRAEMEE SH(BETR)
Audit services ~ SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited B R —EXHM(EFE) GHMEBRERAR 2,000
Non-audit services - SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited R —fEXkFR(EE) @E%Em%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ 1,320
Internal audit review - SHINEWING Risk Services Limited NBEHEE —ERIBEREEERA 200

and ESG report BIRIE -

drafting HeREn

WmERR

Tax advisory services — SHINEWING Tax and Business BEBEmRE - EkPAREREELAER 109

Advisory Limited
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND ZENEZE@KE Y TELS
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the individual attendance BE-_Z—)\FZA=1+—HIFER  SFFH

record of the Directors for the Board meetings, the Board Committee AREEees B5L8gex  N_T—tF
meetings, the AGM held on 28 September 2017 and three special Y —I—J\Elé"% Zﬂxﬁﬂiﬁ/\&ﬁf\ T—+F
general meetings (“SGM”) held on 18 July 2017, 6 February 2018 and tA+N8 - —\FZ_ARNBERZZT-N\F=
15 March 2018 respectively is set out below: A+EH ﬁiﬁz /AHX?%E‘JﬁA(fﬂﬁﬁﬁEW(

1) 2@t EEEEInT

Attended/Eligible to attend
BHE/ AERLE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee

Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM SGM
ENZEE ¥MzEE RezZEE R=

#E Ezeen ] EE 83 RREFAE F V-

Executive Directors

YES

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk 5/5 N/A N/A i 0/1 3/3

FRERE TR R

Mr. Su Xiaonong 5/5 N/A il N/A 01 33

BRERLE TER TEA

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (resigned on 17 March 2018) 4/4 N/A il N/A 11 3/3

Rebn e (RZB-\E=A++BEE) TER TEm

Ms. Liu Yutong (resigned on 13 February 2018) 1/4 N/A N/A N/A on 02

Aep T (RE-\E_A+=BE#E) TEm TER TER

Mr. Zheng Xiantao 0/5 N/A N/A N/A 01 0/3

gRERE TR TER TER

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTES

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki 415 212 il il il 0/3
FEERE

Mr. Cao Kuangyu 4/5 1/2 01 01 01 03
ERTRL

Mr. Ip Chi Wai 4/5 22 /1 i 11 1/3
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DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

AUDITOR’S STATEMENT

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the CG
Code by establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems, while the Board
oversees management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis.
Main features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification. |dentify ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate
the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2018, no significant risk
was identified.
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The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS0”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The components of the framework
are shown as follow:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal control
across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a
basis for determining how risks should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to the
achievement of objectives are carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information needed
to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an
inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the
Group, which include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

° Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.
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o The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external parties
such as the media, analysts or investors.

° Refer to inside information policy and procedures for more
procedures.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2018, no significant
control deficiency was identified.

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which is consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal
control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of
operating effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually and the results are reported to the Board
via Audit Committee afterwards.

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board’s reviews, which include but not limited
to (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment; and (i) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control
systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by IA function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate. Such systems, however,
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience of
relevant staff were adequate and the training programs and budget
provided were sufficient.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric (“Mr. Chan”)
as the Company Secretary since 30 September 2013 from an external
secretarial services provider. The primary corporate contact person at
the Company was Mr. Cheung Sze Ming, an Executive Director, from
1 April 2017 to 17 March 2018. From 18 March 2018, Mr. Li Zhongxia
(appointed as an Executive Director on 12 April 2018), becomes the
primary corporate contact person with Mr. Chan. In accordance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rule, Mr. Chan confirmed that he has taken no
less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

RIGHTS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Shareholders may convene special general meeting (the “SGM”) of the
Company according to the Bye-Laws and the provisions as set out in
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Bermuda
Act”). The Board shall, on the requisition of Shareholders holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly,
to convene the SGM. The requisition must state the purposes of the
SGM, and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 2708,
27/F., Convention Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, and may consist of several documents in like form each signed
by one or more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene the SGM in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda Act, but any SGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS TO THE BOARD

The Company endeavors to maintain two way communications
with the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders
are encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@dingyi.hk or by mail to the principle place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 2708, 27/F., Convention
Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. All the
enquiries are dealt with in a timely manner. The Shareholders are also
encouraged to attend the AGM and the SGM and to put their enquiries
to the Board directly. Notices are duly circulated to the Shareholders
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in order to ensure each Shareholder is informed to attend the AGM
and the SGM. The Chairman, chairmen of each of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, the
senior management and the Auditor will attend the AGM and respond to
the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner. The procedures for
conducting a poll will be explained by the chairmen of the AGM and the
SGM orally at the beginning of the aforesaid meetings.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT THE GENERAL MEETINGS

(i) Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act, either any
number of the Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates or not less than 100 Shareholders, can
request the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next AGM of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be deposited to the
above-stated principle place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the meeting (in the case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution); and not less than
one week before the meeting (in the case of any other requisition)
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the relevant
expenses of the Company.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under the provisions as stated
in Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act.

(i) For procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director, please refer to the information available on
the website of the Company at www.dingyi.hk.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at http://www.dingyi.hk, where the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
issued by the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”
or “We”) elaborates on the concept of sustainable development and the
corporate social responsibility of the Group. The ESG Report provides
detailed description on the various works of the Group in adherence to
the principle of sustainable development during the period from 1 April
2017 to 31 March 2018 (the “Year”).

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report focuses on the environmental and social performance
of the core business of the Group in Hong Kong during the Year and
the disclosure of relevant Key Performance Indicators. For detailed
information on corporate governance, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report set out on pages 39 to 54 of this annual report.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared based on “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The preparation of the ESG Report, which was supported by staff from
different departments, has enabled us to have a better understanding of
our development in environmental and social areas. The information we
gathered is not only a summary of the environmental and social related
works carried out by the Group during the Year, but also the basis for
us to map out our sustainable development strategies.

INFORMATION AND FEEDBACK

For detailed information regarding the environmental and corporate
governance of the Group, please refer to the official website (http://
www.dingyi.hk) and the annual report of the Group. If you have any
opinions or suggestions about this report, please email to the following
mailbox: info@dingyi.hk.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As an environmentally-friendly corporation, we bear the responsibility
of protecting the nature. In order to reduce the power consumption of
the lighting system, apart from using reflector in focusing the light on
those areas where lighting is needed, we also adopt a highly energy-
efficient lighting system, clean lighting facility regularly, and employ
sectional lighting system. We clean air conditioners filters regularly
and check the air conditioning facility to minimize the possibility of
refrigerant leakage, and thereby improve the energy efficiency of the
air conditioning systems. We set the temperature of air conditioning
system at 25.5 degrees Celsius or above, and adopt low-emissivity
glass to block ultraviolet, which in turn reduces the power consumption
of air conditioning system. We encourage employees to switch
off unnecessary air conditioning facility, lights and other electronic
equipment, and conduct monthly electricity statistics to monitor power
consumption.

The Group continues to strictly comply with the laws and regulations
related to emission. As a service-based enterprise, our business
operation mainly takes place in offices. The main wastewater generated
from the Group is domestic sewage which will be discharged into
the municipal drainage system. As we operates in rented offices,
the water consumption and water drainage was fully controlled by
the management company of the building, therefore data related to
water cannot be collected. The Group adopts a range of measures to
conserve water and reduce wastage, such as reducing water pressure
to a feasible minimum level, installing water-saving faucets and urinals,
displaying water-conservation slogans in toilets and inspecting water
pipes regularly to prevent water leakage. Since the Group’s business
does not involve any industrial production activity, vehicle exhaust is the
main source of our gas emission. We regularly check and maintain the
vehicles of the Group, and require the drivers of the Group to switch off
idling engine, so as to reduce air pollution from vehicles.

In view of the potential threats of climate change on community, the
Group has reduced carbon emission in our operations gradually. With
regard to transportation, apart from encouraging employees to take
public transport, we also adopt conference calls and video conferences
to replace unnecessary overseas business travel. We use packaging
materials to the minimum extent possible and proactively reduce carbon
emission generated indirectly in the course of organizing the activities.
Furthermore, we promote and introduce measures on lowering carbon
emission to our employees through different channels, including emails
or posters, so as to increase their environmental protection awareness.
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The solid waste is mainly generated from daily office operation. Our
waste management strategy underpinned by the “3Rs” principle.
For consumption and waste reduction, we encourage employees to
double-sided printing and the use of electronic means for information
dissemination whenever possible. Apart from using e-cards, we also
send facsimile via internet to reduce paper consumption and the use
of toners. Paper consumption is regularly monitored and appropriate
improvement measures are carried out. For waste recycling, the Group
not only encourages employees to reduce the use of one-off office
supplies and use environmental friendly stationeries and reusable
materials instead, but also makes the best use of paper products,
and utilises recycled papers. For recycling, we set up paper recycling
bins, and arrange recycling company to handle non-classified office
waste papers, which relevant data was not collected for the Year. For
hazardous waste, all used cartridges are collected and returned to
suppliers for recycling.

CARE FOR EMPLOYEES

Employees are the cornerstone and core competitiveness of the
Group’s success. We emphasize talent operation, and care for our
employees. The Group continues to strictly comply with the laws and
regulations related to the rights and interests of employees, such as
the Employment Ordinance. During the recruitment process, the Group
offers all applicants with equal employment opportunities, and will not
tolerate any form of discrimination on grounds of gender, race, family
status, etc. The Group verifies the age of applicants by checking their
identification documents to avoid employment of child labour. Before
commencement of employment, employees are provided with detailed
job descriptions of the duties and responsibilities of the position
concerned, and the employment is in accordance with labour contract
to prevent any forced labour. When working overtime is needed, it must
be on a voluntary basis to prevent forced overtime. We also arrange
overtime payment in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.
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The Group adjusts employees’ remuneration annually based on factors
such as market conditions, employees work performance and index of
living, striving to offer employees with competitive remuneration. Apart
from basic salary, we also provide discretionary bonus according to
employees’ individual performance and the results of the Group. We
strictly comply with the laws and regulations relating to working hours
and holidays, and offer employees with different types of holidays,
such as annual leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, compassionate
leave etc. In order to improve the operation of the Group, we arrange
exit interview upon receipt of resignation notice to understand his/her
reason of leaving and the balance of salary will be paid on time.

We continuously monitor employees’ performance with a vision towards
establishing a premier team for the rapid development and efficient
operation of the Group. The promotion mechanism operates on a fair
and open basis and will not tolerate with any form of discrimination.
The employees are encouraged to participate in external lectures and
seminars to enrich their professional knowledge.

Work safety is the key to the sustainable development of the Group.
We continue to strictly comply with the laws and regulations related
to occupational health and safety, such as the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance, in our endeavour to create a safe and healthy
environment for employees. Rescue, fire and evacuation drills
are conducted regularly to increase employees’ awareness and
involvement in accident prevention. The Group also creates a pleasant
and comfortable workplace by carrying out various measures including
provision of adjustable seats and regular repair and maintenance of
office equipment.
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RESPECT CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Notwithstanding the absence of bulk procurement due to our business
nature, much attention is accorded to the purchase of office supplies
for daily operation. Procurement policy is formulated to select reliable
suppliers and service providers to support our business operation.
Apart from taking into account the factors such as reputation,
quality and price-performance ratio of suppliers, we give priority to
suppliers who perform well in social responsibility or comply with our
environmental protection policy, to encourage suppliers to create a
sustainable society together with the Group. For example, we give
priority to purchase products with higher recycling value, less packing
materials and better energy efficiency. Under our consistent principles
of green procurement, we also assess the use of materials constantly
to avoid overstocking and waste of resources. If behaviour of a supplier
was found in breach of the Group’s policy, we will terminate the
cooperation relationships with the suppliers concerned immediately.

As a financial service provider, protecting customers’ privacy
and safeguarding market fairness have core roles to play in the
establishment of a long-term and mutually trusted relationship with
customers. The Group continues to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations including the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance to handle
and protect all personal data of customers rigorously. The importance
of protecting the confidentiality of customer’ personal data is also clearly
stipulated in our Employee Handbook to ensure new employees fully
understand our confidentiality policy and manage such information

properly.

We are committed to providing customers with clear and accurate
information. Customers are advised of the details and terms of products
(such as terms and interest rate), as well as any associated risks to
enable customers to make an informed decision. Furthermore, the
Group has formulated guideline regarding sales materials, which
requires all information of sales materials are true and free from errors,
and forbids any false, misleading or inaccurate statement in any form
of our communications. The Group respects and protects intellectual
property, and strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations, to
eliminate any alleged infringement.
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It is the unwavering principle of the Group to combat corruption and
advocate integrity and self-discipline. The Group continues to strictly
comply with the laws and regulations relating to bribery prevention,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, such as the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance. A mechanism for declaration of interest is in place
to prohibit employees engagement in any investment activities that
collide with the interest of the Group, and require employees to report
any situations that may involve conflict of interest with the Group, either
directly or indirectly. There is also a whistle-blowing policy to provide a
channel for employees to report suspected misconduct.

The past few years have witnessed our persistent engagement in public
welfare and relentless effort in charitable activities with a view of paying
back to the community. The Group also encourages employees to
actively participate in various volunteer activities. Looking ahead, the
Group will continue to uphold the principle of being responsible for
its customers, employees, business partners, shareholders and the
society, and will seek further opportunities to develop a harmonious
relationship with each stakeholders.
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MAJOR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

T ERIR A UEE

BB a KRRy

During the Year, the Key Performance Indicators data of core REEF » REBREBZOEFNBRESUSIZH

businesses in Hong Kong of the Group are as follows: B
Environmental Indicators BIEER 2018
Vehicles Emissions BHEWBERY
Nitrogen oxides emissions (kg) RENWBFEME (DT 2.13
Sulphur oxides emissions (kg) Z8eBERE (AT 0.08
Particulate matter emissions (kg) TR EEE (A7) 0.16
Greenhouse Gases BERE
Total greenhouse gases emissions (tCO.e) mEREHNESE (B _ARES) 35
Total greenhouse gases emissions per staff B ETHMEMAEREBES
(tCO.e/staff) (m—EfkiREE,BT) 3.51
Waste BEEY
Total hazardous wastes produced (kg) BEEEYESRE (AT) 1.44
Total hazardous wastes produced per staff BUBIFEANEAEEEYBE
(kg/staff) (Rfr/BI) 0.14
Total non-hazardous wastes produced (tonnes) EEEEYELRS (E) 0.62
Total non-hazardous wastes produced per staff BUETIMEANEBESEEVES
(tonnes/staff) (Mg, BT) 0.06
Use of Resources EREA
Total energy consumption (MWh) RS JRFRE) 76
Total energy consumption per staff (MWh/staff) BB TIMRREREE kKRR 8T) 7.58
Consumption of non-renewable fuels (MWh) TR BAMBFEE CRER) 51.46
Electricity purchased for consumption (MWh) BEEERENE N CKEE) 24.37
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2018 analyzed by reportable segments are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 92 and
93. No interim dividend was paid during the year. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Movements in the share capital and convertible bonds during the year
are set out in notes 34 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out on page 96 and note 46(a) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

As at 31 March 2018, there is no reserve of the Company which is
available for distribution to Shareholders (2017: nil).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 and 3 and on pages 36 to 38 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represented less
than 30% of the Group’s total revenue and the aggregate amount of
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers represented
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchase. None of the Directors,
their associates nor any Shareholder (whom to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or five largest
customers.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed 68 (2017: 74) full-time staff under its subsidiaries
globally as at 31 March 2018. Total staff costs amounted to HK$22
million (2017: HK$34 million) for the year ended 31 March 2018. The
remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed periodically on the
basis of job nature, market trend, company performance and individual
performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a
discretionary basis, retirement schemes and the Share Option Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company repurchased a
total of 58,800,000 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of HK$64,255,246 and 79,825,000 shares
(which were repurchased by the Company during the year ended 31
March 2017) were cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Particulars of the shares repurchased are as follows:

Total number

Mt

BE - DSk

g

Fuld

55

B 7

=1}

/

RBE-Z-N\F=ZA=+—HLEFER AR
FALB (BB 64,255,246 TR B FRE B & K
58,800,000 i A~ 2 &) Bt + 1M 79,825,000 A& A% 7
(HARRRBE_Z—tF=ZA=t—HLFE
BEENBEZF—/\F=-A=1t—HILFER
T AGESH ©

PRIy 2 BT

of shares Aggregate
Month repurchased Purchase price paid per share consideration
FrigmE

=Rvi) IR 15 2 B BRIZNBEE BRE

Highest Lowest

Be &I
HK$ HK$ HK$
B B BB

2017 —E—+tF

July + A 22,085,000 1.16 1.11 25,296,309
August AV:! 32,545,000 113 0.97 34,965,466
September NA 4,170,000 0.96 0.95 3,992,971
58,800,000 64,255,246

The Directors consider that the above share repurchases are in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders and that such
repurchases would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per share
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)

Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (resigned on 17 March 2018)
Ms. Liu Yutong (resigned on 13 February 2018)

Mr. Zheng Xiantao

Dr. Wang Zhi (appointed on 12 April 2018)

Mr. Li Zhongxia (appointed on 12 April 2018)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Ip Chi Wai

In accordance with bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, Mr.
Chow Shiu Ki, Dr. Wang Zhi and Mr. Li Zhongxia shall retire from office
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

The directors who have served on the boards of directors of the
subsidiaries (*“Note) of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk

Mr. Su Xiaonong

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (resigned on 17 March 2018)
Ms. Liu Yutong (resigned on 10 November 2017)
Mr. Zheng Xiantao

Ms. Lo Kwan

Mr. Li Tao Hui

*Note: Hoping Medical Investment Limited, of which Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, Mr. Su
Xiaonong and Mr. Zheng Xiantao are directors, ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company from 30 March 2018.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of their independence
during the year ended 31 March 2018 and all of them are still being
considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
as set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had no contract entered into in respect
of the management or administration of the overall business or any
material business.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

constituting a competing business to the Group.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”), which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
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Approximate
percentage of
total number of

Number of issued shares
Number of underlying of the Company
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares Total (Note 1)
|
2RITRG
it
BAEH
EEps 4 EER#A HERAEE By (Hizt1)
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (“Mr. Li")  Interest of controlled 3,591,480,405 - 3,591,480,405
FRELE(ERE]) corporation (Note 2)
R EE R (Fit2)
Beneficial owner 242,650,000 1,255,000,000 1,497,650,000
EREEA (Note 3)
(Hizt3)
5,089,130,405 72.67%
Mr. Su Xiaonong Beneficial owner 5,955,000 28,700,000 34,655,000 0.49%
BERTAE EREAA (Note 4)
(Hizt4)
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Notes:

Based on 7,002,772,481 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March 2018.

These shares are held by Wincon Capital Investment Limited (“WCIL”") as
to 3,580,005,405 and Wincon Asset Management Limited (“WAML”) as
to 11,475,000. Each of WCIL and WAML is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Li. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Li is deemed to be interested in these
3,591,480,405 shares.

These underlying shares comprise (i) 5,000,000 share options granted by the
Company on 28 December 2015 at the exercise price of HK$0.792 per share
pursuant to the Share Options Scheme, and (i) 1,250,000,000 conversion
shares which will be issued and allotted upon full conversion of the convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000 issued by the
Company to Mr. Li on 26 March 2018 at the initial conversion price of HK$0.80
per share.

These underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the
Share Options Scheme, (i) 8,700,000 share options were granted on 19 April
2013 at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per share, and (i) 20,000,000 share
options were granted on 3 February 2015 at the exercise price of HK$0.477 per
share.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BERZZE— N\F=ZA=+—HB%777,002,772,481 %

ZERDBAKTEREEGRABN(KEER]DIFE
HH13,580,005,4050% (%10 K Bk B B EE B R AT
(IKBEE ) FEEF 11,475,000 B D © KBEAR
RABEESBIBEETLE2EREERA - RIEH
#H REIEIEH] - 2 A8 AR E3,591,480,4050%
A7 R A A

ZERBERGBRBEONAARR-_Z—AF+=A
Z TN\ BHIRBEREERITEETRER0.7927T
2 5,000,000 BERRAE - K (i) & B EERA R TR
ZE-N\FZAZTARBETTEREECACHEER
7#%£1,000,000,0007T 2 AIHRAR (& 5 5 R 7] SRR (B
FAREH0.807T T LABETT R AL E 2 & #£1,250,000,000
RRAIGARAR 1

ZEMRBRG BARBIREERET IR L 2 BR
1 - BN (i) 8,700,000 lERER =T —=FW A+
Az TEESRER 0.375 L& L + K (i) 20,000,000
DEBER-_Z—AFE - A=-ARTEEEREE
0.477 LI H »



LONG POSITIONS IN THE ISSUED SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY’S ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

Report of the Directors
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Approximate
percentage of
total issued
Total number share capital
Associated corporation Name of Director Capacity of share held of WCIL/WAML (%)
HXBER/ KB
BECRTRAHEE
HEZE ] &% R H 2 ZBAB DL (%)
WCIL Mr. Li Kwong Yuk Beneficial owner 1 100%
XBER TRELE EREAA
WAML Mr. Li Kwong Yuk Beneficial owner 1 100%
XBEE THRELE ExlBA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors B EXATREEN  RZE—N\F=ZA=+—H "
and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short BMERATEERTETHRAENARRARSEHT
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the MR ER (TR AEHFNLEE KM J%X ) 2 &
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of 5~ FEERR D REETPH A BIRIEEAE R EEIED

Part XV of the SFO), which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or are
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein, or are required, pursuant to the Model Code,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the
persons or corporations other than the Director or chief executive of
the Company, in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES AND HRARRFE

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

BB NN 2 TR

Approximate
percentage of
total number of
issued shares

Name of substantial Number of Number of of the Company
Shareholders Capacity ordinary shares underlying shares Total (Note 1)
2 YN
BRTRH
Be
BBk HER G BAESH
TERFRE BB 5t HB L= By (Biit1)
WCIL (Note 2) Beneficial owner 3,580,005,405 - 3,580,005,405 51.12%
KBER(Hizt2) ERRAA
China Shipbuilding Beneficial owner 905,625,000 - 905,625,000 12.93%
Capital Limited
hERAEAERAA BEHREBA
Notes: Fit 3
1. Based on 7,002,772,481 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31 1 29 )\E R=+—HB%77,002,772,481}%

March 2018.

2. WCIL is wholly-owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Kwong 2.
Yuk was deemed to be interested in these shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no other person
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or,
were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 September 2012, the Shareholders approved the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme. A summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules, are
as follow:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant the share options to the eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant share options
to the following persons or entities (the “Eligible Participants”) to
subscribe for shares in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme and the Listing Rules:

(@ any employee (whether full-time or part-time and including
the Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);

(b)  any Directors (including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors), any Subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

()  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(@ any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant, individual or
entity who in the opinion of the Directors has contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group;
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(h)  any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of
the Group; and

(i) any company wholly-owned by one or more Eligible Participants.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the share options and the share options granted under any
other share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or
outstanding share options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the Company for the time being.

In respect of any particular option, such period as the Directors may
determine, which may not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant share options.

There is no minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme
for holding of the share options before it can be exercised.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the
option shall be regarded as having been accepted when the duplicate
of the letter by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company.

The exercise price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the
nominal value of a share.

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing
on 21 September 2012 to make an offer for the grant of a share option.
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At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 September
2017, the scheme mandate limit for the Share Option Scheme was
refreshed to allow the Company to issue a maximum of 536,144,895
share options under the Share Option Scheme, representing
approximately 7.65% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company (i.e. 7,002,772,481 shares) as at 31 March 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, (i) a total of 536,000,000 share
options were granted by the Company; (i) a total of 554,135,000 share
options were exercised; and (i) no share options were re-classified,
lapsed and cancelled. Pursuant to the Shareholders’ approval for the
refreshment of scheme mandate limit on 28 September 2017, the
outstanding number of the shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 144,895, representing approximately 0.00% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 7,165,413,657
shares) as at the date of this annual report.

The movements in the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year are shown below:
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The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the
dates on which the share options were granted, i.e. 18 April 2013, 25
April 2013, 2 February 2015, 10 November 2015, 24 December 2015,
16 December 2016 and 19 October 2017, were HK$0.37, HK$0.37,
HK$0.46, HK$0.63, HK$0.79, HK$0.74 and HK$0.46 per share
respectively.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of
this annual report, 9,700,000 share options were exercised, 2,500,000
share options were lapsed, and 980,960,000 shares options granted by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme remain exercisable and
the number of shares available for issue in respect of these outstanding
share options is 980,960,000, representing approximately 13.69% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 7,165,413,657
shares) as at the date of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 21 June 2017, the Company as the purchaser and Mr. Li Kwong
Yuk (“Mr. Li”) (being a controlling shareholder, an Executive Director
and the chairman of the Company) as the vendor entered into the
acquisition agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to acquire for and the Mr. Li
conditionally agreed to dispose of the entire equity interest of United
Faith Investments Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Li, for the
consideration of HK$1,000 million to be satisfied by the issuance of the
convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds”) in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,000 million by the Company to Mr. Li under the specific
mandate to be sought from the independent shareholders.

The acquisition (“Acquisition”) pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement
constituted a very substantial acquisition of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and was subject to the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. In addition, Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (as the
vendor) is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Acquisition constituted a connected transaction for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the
Acquisition was also subject to the reporting, announcement and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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On 15 March 2018, a special general meeting of the Company
was held and at the meeting, the independent shareholders of the
Company approved (among others) the Acquisition Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder, the issue of the Convertible
Bonds of HK$1,000 million pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, and
the grant of the specific mandate.

The completion of the Acquisition took place on 26 March 2018 and
upon completion, the consideration, being HK$1,000 million, was paid
to Mr. Li and was satisfied by the issuance of the Convertible Bonds to
Mr. Li.

The Directors consider that the terms of the Acquisition Agreement are
on normal commercial terms and are fair and reasonable so far as the
independent shareholders are concerned, and that the Acquisition is in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Details of the Acquisition Agreement may be referred to in the
announcements of the Company dated 21 June 2017, 29 December
2017, 15 March 2018 and 26 March 2018 and the circular of the
Company to its shareholders dated 28 February 2018.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 30 March 2016, Trillion Winner Investment Ltd (“Trillion”) as the
owner entered into an aircraft charter agreement (the “Aircraft Charter
Agreement”) with Dingyi Resources Limited (“Dingyi Resources”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the charteree,
pursuant to which Trillion agreed to provide and Dingyi Resources
agreed to hire the aircraft commencing on 1 April 2017 to 31 March
2019 for the charter price of US$2,000 per flight hour (“Charter Price”)
(excluding all other costs and expenses shall be for the account of
Dingyi Resources in relation to hire an aircraft). The transaction pursuant
to the Aircraft Charter Agreement constituted continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules as Trillion is beneficially wholly-
owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, the controlling shareholder, a chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company.

Details of the Aircraft Charter Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 March 2016.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, Dingyi Resources did not incur
any charter price (2017: HK$834,000) payable to Trillion as Dingyi
Resources had not utilized the hiring services under the Aircraft Charter
Agreement.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-executive Directors
have reviewed the above continuing connected transaction and
confirmed that the continuing connected transaction was entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; (i) in
accordance with the Aircraft Charter Agreement governing it on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole; and (iv) has not exceeded the relevant amount
capped in accordance with the Company’s announcement dated 30
March 2016.

The Auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the Auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements and include transactions that constitute connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions for which the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the Company’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in note
42 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Except for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in pages 39 to 54 in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance
between the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimization
of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation.
Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect internal
and external communications by means of telephone, emails and
conferences or such other communication means which are efficient yet
environmentally friendly. Also, we are able to minimize physical travelling
and printing.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support are values
at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident
fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees with the
aim to form a professional staff and management team that can bring
the Group to different levels of success.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. Our business model is to maintain and build on our strong
relationships within our client base. Our mission is to provide the finest
service to our customers and the Group is constantly looking ways
to improve customer relations through enhanced services. Regarding
the securities trading and loan financing businesses, the Group has no
major suppliers. Whereas regarding the other principal businesses, the
Group has maintained good relationship with the suppliers to ensure
their continued support to the Group in the foreseeable future.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
operational and financial risks.

STRATEGIC RISKS

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge
to the external environments. The Group will invest in projects
and investments based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and expectation. Given the rapid change of
unforeseeable external environments in the financial and equity markets,
the Group is facing significant strategic risks on its investments when
changing the strategic plans to adopt the unexpected changes of
external environments.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,
are adequately managed.

FINANCIAL RISKS

The principal financial risks are set out in note 38(b) to the consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” -
“FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES”.
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Report of the Directors
ERTHSE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 10 to 29 of this annual report and the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” on pages 71 to 77 of this report, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director or other officer of
the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities, which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has taken out insurance against all losses and
liabilities associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors and other officers of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public floats as required under the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2018.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 were
audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting

to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as the Auditor.

By order of the Board

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
LI Kwong Yuk
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 7 A% B B e

feikpia

Shineﬂ)an

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dingyi Group
Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 264,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

Independent Auditor’s Report
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and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

VALUATION AND ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND DERIVATIVE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Refer to notes 26 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements and

the accounting policies on pages 129 to 131.

The key audit matter
BREENEE

AR ESRITERM TR ZEER

%ﬁmo

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRNETNNEERRETER

As at 31 March 2018, the Group recognised convertible
bonds — liability component of approximately
HK$1,252,995,000 and derivative financial instruments in
respect of early redemption options of convertible bonds of
approximately HK$142,216,000.
R-Z—\F=A=+—H X BEECERTRRESSE
& &0 £05% 1,252,995,000 7T & A BA 1R 7 & B Al AR & 5
ZHTHE SR T AL B 142,216,000 7T

We have identified the valuation of and the accounting
treatment of convertible bonds and derivative financial
instruments in respect of early redemption options of
convertible bonds as key audit matters because both are
complex areas. The separation of debt element and early
redemption options from the equity element of a convertible
bond can involve a significant degree of judgment and is
subject to an inherent risk of error.
BPIEMARREF M EBRFERABRES ZITETR
TEZNE NG RERDRERETEE  WIHRRE
B REME - BRI BRIRIES 2w ED i}j}%ﬁﬂjﬁf%*ﬁﬂ"
REPBREE S RS E2RE RAREREERERR

R -

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group’s valuation
and accounting treatment of convertible bonds.

BN EREFEEER BSEBYABRESTEREET
BR IR A RAER M S ) -

We have inspected board minutes and other appropriate
documentation of authorisation to assess whether the
transactions were appropriately authorised. We have verified
amounts, interest rates and maturity dates to the supporting
documents, including agreements, public available
documents or third party statements and examined terms
and conditions of the convertible bonds. We have tested the
calculations carried out to split the convertible bonds into
equity, early redemption options and debt element. We have
assessed the accuracy of historical financial information,
examined the mathematical accuracy of calculations,
evaluated the valuation technique applied and approach used
and evaluated the assumptions used to calculate discount rate.
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RECOVERABILITY AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

OF LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

U E R K ) B 9 R U Bl 15 Ko R (B 7Y
(=]

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the BB M GHRARM 23 NE123F127B &

accounting policies on pages 123 to 127.

The key audit matter
BRENEE

S o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B ET A EERRETER

As at 31 March 2018, loan and interest receivables of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$1,546,227,000 and
no impairment was recognised during the year ended 31
March 2018.

RZZE-NE=ZA=+—R0  EXENEKERENELH
R7EH1,646,227,0007T ° MARBE-Z—N\F=A=+—
B I E N R RRIE

We have identified recoverability and impairment assessment
of loan and interest receivables as a key audit matter because
the amount of allowance for impairment loss required
significant management judgement.

BAPIE S FE U S TR A B AT Uk [B1 14 KR (E AT ik 85| A R 4
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Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
assumptions and critical judgements of the Group’s
impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables
and the management estimations or judgements on the
recoverability of the outstanding balances.
HPNEEFEEER BEEEHRKERNNSRERT
A (R 3% N R 45 1) il LA J% 8 38 8 AR LA 8] 4 R ) RT LA [B] 14E
T sk A -

We have discussed the indicators of possible impairment with
the management and, where such indicators were identified,
assessed the management’s impairment testing. We have
discussed with the management in respect of the adequacy
of allowance for impairment loss made by the management.
We have challenged the assumptions and critical judgements
used by the management by assessing the reliability of the
management’s past estimates and taking into account the
ageing at year end and settlements after year end, as well as
the recent creditworthiness of each debtor.
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RECOGNITION OF REVENUE FROM PROPERTIES

DEVELOPMENT

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial statements and the B2 A MU BIRRWMTORFE134H 2 SR »

accounting policies on page 134.

The key audit matter
BRENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B ET A EERRETER

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
recognised revenue from properties development amounted
to approximately HK$572,234,000 which accounted for
approximately 86% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.
REBEZE-T-N\F=A=1+—HLLFE BEEE®RAKRE
MEEREMIRAL ABEES72,234,000L(41F EEEARF
EHEUA 2 86%) °

We have identified revenue recognised from properties
development as a key audit matter as it is quantitatively
significant to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
HARMERBRAERNEE FHGFESBR REMEE K
AXMEBEXR FAUESFCOHHETABREREE -

Revenue from properties development is recognised upon
delivering of the properties to buyers and when the criteria as
disclosed in note 4 “Revenue recognition” to the consolidated
financial statements are satisfied.

YR R UAR A B T Y SOERAR & B ISR Mt
AE AT Y AHERR | P ER B 2E BB 3R o

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
assumptions of the Group’s recognition of revenue from
properties development.

B EAREFE EE R

=L

3% °

BEREHERYMERMBRANR

We have obtained an understanding of and tested the
management’s control over the process of properties delivery
to buyers. We have also assessed the terms stated in the
sales and purchase agreements to understand the relevant
terms of the timing of property delivery and ownership
transfer. We have also obtained evidences regarding the
property delivery and ownership transfer.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Chuen Fai.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P05589

Hong Kong
28 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

CREEES

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B BT T BT T
(Restated)
(#e=E%1))
Revenue WA 6 667,950 570,211
Cost of sales HERA (520,908) (454,495)
Gross profit EF 147,042 115,716
Other income =N 8 54,901 14,032
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W 44 10,331 -
Share of losses of associates BEHE AR 2 B8 (89) -
Loss on early redemption of convertible bonds 12 F i& [0l Al IR (&5 2 E5 18 35(iv) (34,838) -
(Loss) gain on disposal of held for PEREERIRE 2 (E518)
trading investments g (6,943) 21,810
Loss arising from changes in fair value BIEEEREZ
of held for trading investments AREREELECEIE (29,941) (39,772)
Gain arising from changes in fair value PTEeMEEL A EE
of derivative financial assets EE s WE 26()) 90,185 4,811
Realised gain on settlement of derivative HEETESREEZ
financial assets BER W - 907
Loss arising from changes in fair value MTEERBEZ
of derivative financial liabilities NABEEEEEZEE 26(ii) (96,575) (279,448)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AtHESREEY
financial assets BIEEE (6,059) (8,161)
Selling and distribution costs $HE Ky HRAS (4,535) (10,229)
General and administrative expenses — R RITHE B (210,234) (219,086)
Finance costs BhE AR 2N 9 (112,803) (17,610)
Loss before tax BRT AT E1E 10 (199,558) (417,030)
Income tax expenses FriStiE&m 12 (22,076) (23,799)
Loss for the year FEEE (221,634) (440,829)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT AL FEEEARE
The owners of the Company RREEB A (221,629) (440,817)
Non-controlling interests FEFEHI M A (5) (12)
(221,634) (440,829)
Loss per share BREE 14
Basic and diluted (HK cents) FLA N #5E B (3.79) (8.49)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o DF R AR B At £ £ W Bl

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(&ED))
Loss for the year FEEE (221,634) (440,829)
Other comprehensive income (expense) FEEH#MEZESWA(ER)
for the year
Iltems that may be reclassified subsequently — H7&RJGEEZ 7482
to profit or loss: w2 EH -
Exchange difference arising on translating MEBFINEBEE 2
foreign operations PE N A% 102,148 (32,154)
Total comprehensive expense FEHKEEBRAESE
for the year (119,486) (472,983)
Total comprehensive expense LUTATEAEERE
for the year attributable to: BRME%E:
The owners of the Company ZN/NETEZ 2SN (119,481) (472,971)
Non-controlling interests FEVR I 1 M 2 (5) (12)
(119,486) (472,983)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

o BF B B 5IR Dt

As at 31 March 2018 R=-ZF—/F=HA=+—H

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
—E-N\E —EtF —ERF
=ZA=+-A =R=+-H MA—H
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pirsx BT T BT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(m&31)) (m&3)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment property and investment property REMERERRENE
under construction 15 19,524 18,179 -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENERE 16 29,921 24,446 28,373
Available-for-sale financial assets HHESREE 20 65,807 66,861 75,466
Non-current prepayments and deposits ERBENZERFERS 22 1,721 3,172 2,582
Prepaid lease payments BHEERNR 17 2,829 2,619 2,867
Deferred taxation EIERTE 36 - 1,675 4,935
119,802 116,952 114,223
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 21 7,637 7,493 7,607
Prepaid lease payments BAEEMNZ 17 75 68 72
Properties under development ERPIE 18 131,843 118,660 110,177
Completed properties held for sale BENENERINE 19 187,733 664,152 1,182,656
Other receivables, prepayments HipEWER S « T ZIA
and deposits kELEe 22 476,323 212,330 75,163
Loan and interest receivables EUWEZRFIE 23 1,546,227 479,304 229,056
Finance lease receivables ERRERENA 24 97,468 87,907 94,723
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 25 63,035 360,775 650,159
Derivative financial instruments TESRTE 26 142,216 32,988 711
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSED 27 283,017 148,276 104,307
2,935,574 2,111,953 2,454,631
Current liabilities nEaE
Margin loans payable ERRESER 28 12,357 178,285 376,361
Trade and other payables B 5 REMBAERR 31 143,613 353,911 492,169
Amounts due to related companies JENEEATRR 29 1,773 366,983 368,816
Amount due to a director EN—2ESHE 30 772 78,281 65,414
Derivative financial instruments fTESBTA 26 - 252,021 -
Tax payables FENHE 33,054 30,613 7212
Obligation under finance lease BATEAE 32 - - 1,374
Bank borrowings HRITIER 33 - 57,986 330,987
191,569 1,318,080 1,642,833
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,744,005 793,873 811,798
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 2,863,807 910,825 926,021

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A PF B4 3R DL R

As at 31 March 2018 R-ZFE—/F=H=+—H

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
“Z-N\§ TE—+tF TERE
=RA=t-H =R=+-H MA—A
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fitsx BT T BT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(i E5) (4l E5)
Capital and reserves BARRHE
Share capital AR 34 69,440 53,182 49,358
Reserves f&tE 1,539,185 633,588 761,249
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company R A RIS AR 1,608,625 686,770 810,607
Non-controlling interests JEEGI R (17) (12) -
Total equity AR 1,608,608 686,758 810,607
Non-current liabilities E =N
Convertible bonds AR ES 35 1,252,995 224,067 115,414
Deferred taxation ERERIE 36 2,204 - -
1,255,199 224,067 115,414
2,863,807 910,825 926,021

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 264 were

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 June

2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

LI Kwong Yuk
=P DS
Director

EZE

RERE64BZEHPBTHREN—F—\FRXA
T NERHEFSHAERBETIEL R TNESER

REE

SU Xiaonong
R
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

5 BF HE 4 5 B 3%

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—-F— )\ F=HA=+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FAREE AR
Convertible
Capital bonds -
redemption Share Other  Exchange equity Non-
Share Share reserve option reserve  fluctuation conversion Accumulated controlling
capital premium (note i) reserve (note i) reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
e
REGE Hibffe B wRRESs- FiRi
BE  RGEE (FizE)  BRERE (WiEii) RBRE RRERGEE RHER st | 3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI A%t E¥Tn BBTr B%Tx BT BT BT T BETT
At 1 April 2016, as previously reported R=F-~FEA-A
(MEAIZH) 49,358 1,438,956 14 149,129 - (5,894) 199,519 (1,314,061) 517,021 — 517,021
Effect of business combinations under LA TEEAM 2 HE

common control (note 43) (FE43) - - - - 394,573 2,760 - (103,747 293,586 - 293,586
At 1 April 2016, as restated REF—RFNA—R(453)) 49358 1,438,956 14 149,129 394,573 (3134) 199519 (1,417,808) 810,607 — 810,607
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - (440,817) (440,817) (12) (440,829)
Other comprehensive expense for the year & £ 4 A5 R
~ Exchange differences arising on -REBNEBELVERER

translating foreign operations - - - - - (32,154) - - (32,154) - (32,154)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEHEAEFLE - - - - - (32,154) - (440,817) (472,971) (12 (472,983)
Issue of convertible bonds-equity BATAAIRE S - R Eh

conversion component (note 35(i) [GEX0) - - - - - - 112,858 - 112,858 - 112,858
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERRREFSETRD

convertible bonds (note 34(i) & 35(1) (WH2E 34(i) % 35() 4,242 315,708 - - - - (199,519) - 120,431 - 120,431
Recognition of equity-settled DR EEARA BRI

share-based payments vested (note 41) /& (FitiE41) - - - 162,750 - - - - 162,750 - 162,750
Shares repurchased and cancelled P17 B Bl e 4 (PR & 34i))

(note 34fii) (1,116) (76,184) - - - - - - (77,300) - (77,300)
Share options exercised (note 34()) EATR R (B3t 34() 698 41,595 - (11,898) - - - - 30,395 - 30,395
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017, WZE—+F=A=+-AkK

as restated —T—+EMA-RB(LE7) 53,182 1,720,075 14 299,981 394,573 (35,288) 112,858 (1,858,625) 686,770 (12) 686,758
Loss for the year FEER = = = = = = = (221,629) (221,629) (5) (221,634)
Other comprehensive income FEEMGFRRA

for the year

~ Exchange differences arising ~BREBNEBELEL

on translating foreign operations ERER - - - - - 102,148 - - 102,148 - 102,148
Total comprehensive income (expense)  FERAYA (BR) 85

for the year - - = = - 102,148 - (221,629 (119,481) B (119,486)
Issue of convertible bonds-equity BITAIRARES —

conversion component note 35(ii) & (v)) B R (FH3E35(i) & (v) - - - - - - 1,300,051 - 1,300,051 - 1,300,051
Issue of shares upon conversion of RBRATRRERS

convertible bonds (note 34(ii) & 35iii) AT (B5E 34(3) K 35(ii)) 588 78,035 - - - - (46,002) - 32,621 - 32,621
Early redemption of convertile bonds 2R BEI AR ESH

(note 35(1v)) (B3E35()) = = = = = - (9,950) - (9,950) - (9,950)
Transfer upon early redemption of RERRREFNEE

convertible bonds (note 35(v)) (W 5 35(v) - - - - - - (89,355) 89,355 - - -
Recognition of equity-settled share RESEEARND B

based payments vested (note 41) ERARER (Ha1) - - - 118,400 - - - - 118,400 - 118,400
Share repurchased and cancelled RRIA BRI Rt a5 (P& 34(i)

(note 34ii) (588)  (63,668) = = = = = - (64256) - (64256)
Share options exercised (note 34(j) BITRRERE (15 34() 5,538 283,778 - (22,343) - - - - 266,973 - 266,973
Issue of shares (note 34(iv)) AR (5T 34()) 10,720 580,740 - - - - - - 591,460 - 591,460
Transaction costs attrioutable to BRAEER KA

issue of shares - (3,969) - - - - - - (3,969) - (3,969)
Effect of business combination under RRENTEBAGNZFE

common control - - - - (1,189,994) - - - (1,189,994) - (1,189,994)
At 31 March 2018 RZF-N\E=A=1-H 69,440 2,594,991 14 396,038 (795,421) 66,860 1,267,602  (1,990,899) 1,608,625 (17) 1,608,608

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o BF HE 4 5 B 3%

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

Capital redemption reserve in accordance with law of Bermuda which has been
paid out of the distributable reserves of the Company.

Other reserve represents:

() The change in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in loss of control over those subsidiaries; and

(b) The recognition of deemed contribution from Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (“Mr.
Li”) under merger accounting upon the completion of acquisition of
United Faith Investments Limited (“United Faith”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “United Faith Group”) on
26 March 2018, representing the differences amongst the investment
cost for the acquisition of United Faith Group and the amount due to
related companies, and elimination of the share capital of the United
Faith. Details refer to note 2 and note 43.

PiazE -

0

(i)

ERBERFREERBEARBEVE AR HAIK
BRI Z BB 2 mE -

HAbREEE -

@ AEERBEMBARZEAEERZZEHM
WEEHAEEE M BRRREEE - &

) R-ZE-NE=A-+ BERKEREZRE
BRAR(TEE]D REMBAR (T TX5HiEA
[BEESEDEERREHST TEXREREE
([ZF=n4 ) SIERFIEREEEERZREK
RNEAEMEERRRRZ MO REERA
R 8 o FIEBLHMM 2 RMiFE43 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GLiRIES A e S

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—-F— )\ F=HA=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(s ED))
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEE
Loss before tax BRI B B 18 (199,558) (417,030)
Adjustments for: BEFENATRIE
Bank interest income HRITH A (498) (539)
Share of losses of associates B(hEE AR BB 89 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AR 2 W (10,331) -
Finance costs B E RN 112,803 17,610
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB RREITE
equipment 6,503 5,898
Depreciation of investment property EYERE 843 -
Amortisation for prepaid lease payments TEFE S5 o g 7 78
Loss arising from changes in fair value MTEEMBEZARE
of derivative financial liabilities SEEELEZEE 96,575 279,448
Gain arising from changes in fair value MTHEeMEEZ AAE
of derivative financial assets BEEE 2 W (90,185) (4,811)
Loss arising from changes in fair value FEBEEREZARE
of held for trading investments BEEL TV ER 29,941 39,772
Loss on early redemption of convertible REERABEESZ
bonds &8 34,838 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AL ESREE L
financial assets BEEE 6,059 8,161
Share-based payments expenses ARG A B 7 St F A 2 118,400 162,750
Operating cash flows before movements OB RS EENR SRS
in working capital mE 105,550 91,341
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (gm) R (144) 114
Increase in properties under development R YL (262) (15,709)
Decrease in completed properties held FIEREE R TYMER D
for sale 520,320 453,298
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, EmEEER - B FUE R
prepayments and deposits FHiES R () 66,216 (144,716)
Increase in loan and interest receivables FEUR B 51 K ) B3 0 (1,010,911) (250,248)
Decrease in finance lease receivables FE W Bl & 70 & IR 351 754
Decrease in held for trading investments BEESRERD 259,567 249,612
Decrease in derivative financial instruments ?}T EEHTERD - 711
Decrease in trade and other payables %&Eﬁﬂf RERFUR A (289,902) (74,479)
Increase in amounts due to related J,jﬁﬁa NalRE
companies 0 = 2,279
Cash (used in) generated from operations 2iE (TR 5z e (349,215) 312,961
Income tax (paid) refund (B B RIS (18,329) 3,129
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED REFD (A ELEZ
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEEHE (367,544) 316,090

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AR ERER
For the year ended 31 March 2018 &% —E—/\F=H=+—HI F&
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+t
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
P5E BT T BT T
(Restated)
(g ED))
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of available-for-sale financial BEAHHESREE
assets (5,005) -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB Y3 - ME MR (9,724) (3,454)
Construction cost of investment property N A= Wi (244) (18,546)
Interest received BUFE 498 535
Acquisition of investments in associates BB E AR 21 E (300,192) -
Net cash outflow from disposal of HENBRARZEREER
subsidiaries VHER 44 (59) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETHMAZRESFHE
ACTIVITIES (314,726) (21,465)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Proceeds from issuance of convertible REBEITABRRES 2
bonds FT{S k18 35(ii & i) 630,000 279,500
Proceeds from issuance of shares BTG 2 TS RIE 591,460 -
Expenses on issue of shares BTl 2 (3,969) -
Repayment to related companies MEAE R R ZER (200,888) (31,346)
Advance from related companies REBERF 2B - 50,000
New margin loans raised EEERESER 2,851 256,797
Repayment of margin loans RFECERZER (168,779) (455,373)
New bank borrowings raised SEITLIRITIENR = 59,161
Repayment of bank borrowings BITERZERK (60,972) (316,498)
Advance from a director RE—BEEZHK - 15,718
Repayment to a director BRT—RES (73,621) -
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1TE R AE P 1S 5 266,973 30,395
Repayment of obligations under finance REEAEZIER
leases - (1,374)
Interest paid AR (2,892) (8,752)
Payment on acquisition of additional WiE—EB AR
interests in a subsidiary REIMER 2 IR 31 - (45,056)
Payments for early redemption of REELBRRES 2
convertible bonds (NG 35(iv) (113,078) -
Payment on repurchase of shares AP BB 2 3R (64,256) (77,300
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED @& EBHEL (FFA)2RE
IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES FEE 802,829 (244,128)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

LR IEATR &

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\#F=HA=+—HIF&E

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —TtF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
Pt BEET T T T
(Restated)
(&&E7)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERESEEYEMNTHE
EQUIVALENTS 120,559 50,497
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REOA—BzEER
AT 1 APRIL HEEEY 148,276 104,307
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates ~ YMNfE[E R & 8) 2 L& 14,182 (6,528)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=ZBA=+—8z
AT 31 MARCH RERBELEEY 27 283,017 148,276

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dingyi Group Investment Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information to the annual report.

The directors of the Company regard Wincon Capital Investment
Limited (“Wincon Capital”), a private limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in sale of food and
beverages, loan financing, financial leasing, securities trading
and properties development. Details of principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 47.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company. Other than those subsidiaries established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), whose functional
currency is Renminbi (“RMB”), the functional currency of its
subsidiaries is HK$.

1.

— AR
REEEREERAR([ARR) RNERE
A R AR R EERERHPAERA
A ([BERFr]) £ o NARIGEM#EE R E
BERMAAIU RERFRARIER -

ARREBFERKEEAREBR AR ([KE
BAR])) (REBHEARESEMAILZLAR
RABDBRARBZHEREEIERAF]

ARFEBRIFRIEER - NAA RAMW
BAR (ATHER [RRE ] FRIEFER
HE BR@E  mEHE  FFEERY
RER - HNBARNERRBGFBRRHK
47

HEAHMBHRERASE (DB 2 - &
ARBZINEEEEHER © BRNFEARKM
B(HBEDKRIENEEERARE (TAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 3 B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\#F=HA=+—HIF&E

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

On 21 June 2017, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Mr. Li, the
controlling shareholder and director of the Company, to acquire
100% equity interest of United Faith Group for a consideration of
HK$1,000 million, which was settled by the issuance of the zero
coupon convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,000 million at an initial conversion price of HK$0.80 per
share with maturity on the 5th anniversary of the issue date of the
convertible bonds by the Company to Mr. Li upon completion of
the acquisition on 26 March 2018 (the “Acquisition”). The principal
activities of the acquired subsidiaries are securities trading and
properties development.

Since the United Faith Group has been under the control and
beneficially owned by Mr. Li prior to and after the Acquisition,
therefore this Acquisition is accounted for as business
combinations involving entities under common control under
Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations issued by the HKICPA. Details of accounting policy
are set out below in note 4.

The effects of business combinations involving entities under
common control, together with certain elimination adjustments on
the results and the consolidated financial position of the Group are
disclosed in note 43.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS(s)”), amendments and Interpretations (“Int(s)”),
issued by the HKICPA.
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle:
Amendments to HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Except as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments
do not prescribe a specific method to fulfil the new disclosure
requirements. However, the amendments indicate that one way
is to provide a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances for liabilities arising from financing activities.

3.

FERFTR] MR BRI BB MRS
R ([ BB RS LR ])

RAFE - AEB D EAATHE REERT
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ZT-AFESz
FEEUE
EN e
ERE 125
(E5TA)
BEAGTERE TR B2
(B3TA)
BEALTERE 125 FASHERER
(B3TA) ELERIEEE
B NIRRT E SN - NAFEEREAIR &

RAERT BB IS LRI EE A KERA
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SRHUBHHREAB BB RITAEAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
o B BA 7 i 3% B G

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_-—F—/)\F=HA=+—HIFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
(Continued)

The application of amendments to HKAS 7 has resulted in
additional disclosures on the Group’s financing activities,
especially a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position for
liabilities arising from financing activities is provided in note 50. On
initial application of the amendments, the Group is not required
to provide comparative information for preceding periods. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 50, the directors of the
Company considered that these amendments have had no
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle!

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKAS 9 Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation?

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —F—/\F=H=+—HI FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. JERAFzI M&KIET B A FmE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS R ([ BB RS ZER ) (%)
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

EEMENRERZFHT REBT
BBV BEREZER (&)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BREMBRELNE0F REEREBEQAN
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its REBGERE 28  AERFBZEEL
Associate or Joint Venture* (B3TA) EaEAS
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarification to HKFRS 15" BENBRELANE 165 BEBAUBRSER
CHES F155:
Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits? BRGTEAFE195% REREFI?
CHES)
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates BE S AER|E 285 NN XN
and Joint Ventures? CHES, B R R 2
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’ HEEHERE 405 EELEYE
(1B3TR)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions &5 (ERTBRERE IMNERZRBARE
and Advance Consideration’ Z88)-REBE2R
HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income tax 5 (ERFHRERE FEHERNOTRET

Treatments? ZES)-REF2BH

WZE-N\F—A—-ARZ%ARZFEHR
AR
WZZE-NF—A—HBR2%MARZFEHR
R
Wo_E_—F—A—-ARZ%ABZFEHR
AR

X A REEE ©

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 1
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 2
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. 3
4 Effective date not yet been determined. 4
RATBESREL  RTIXATMESN - ERE
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The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as described
below, the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the results and the consolidated financial
position of the Group.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9
that were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement
category for certain financial assets. The finalised version of
HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 (2014) to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’” credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through profit
or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and
commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS 39
for the recognition of credit losses. Under the impairment
approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses should always be accounted
for. The amount of expected credit losses is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

° HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a risk
component can be identified and measured and does not
distinguish between financial items and non-financial items.
The new model also enables an entity to use information
produced internally for risk management purposes as a
basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary
to exhibit eligibility and compliance with the requirements
in HKAS 39 using metrics that are designed solely for
accounting purposes. The new model also includes eligibility
criteria but these are based on an economic assessment
of the strength of the hedging relationship. This can be
determined using risk management data. This should
reduce the costs of implementation compared with those
for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces the
amount of analysis that is required to be undertaken only for
accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application
permitted.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company has performed a preliminary
analysis of the Group’s financial instruments as at 31 March 2018
based on the fact and circumstances existing at that date. The
directors of the Company have assessed the impact of adoption
of HKFRS 9 (2014) on the Group’s results and financial position,
including the classification categories and the measurement of
financial assets, and disclosures, as follows:

The directors of the Company expect to continue
recognising initially at fair value for all financial assets
which are subsequently measured at amortised costs.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 (2014) will not have a material impact on the
classification and measurement of the financial assets.

The directors of the Company expect to apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected credit losses that are
estimated based on the present value of all cash shortfalls
over the remaining life of all of its other receivables, finance
lease receivables and loan and interest receivables. The
application of the expected credit loss model may result in
earlier recognition of credit losses for these receivables and
increase the amount of impairment allowance recognised
for these items.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company will perform a more detailed
analysis which considers all reasonable and supportable
information for the estimation of the effect of adoption of
HKFRS 9 (2014). Based on the preliminary assessment,
the directors of the Company expect that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 (2014) will not have other material impact on
amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer;
° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price;

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract; and

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The major sources of revenue of the Group are sales of food
and beverages, interest income, dividend income and sales of
properties. As the majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from
arrangements in which the transfer of risks and rewards coincides
with the fulfilment of performance obligations, no material
changes in respect of timing and amount of revenue currently
recognised by the Group are expected.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial
statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the initial
estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment made, and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the
right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss following the
requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, while
interest accrual on lease liability will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17
Leases. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently.
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted provided
that the entity has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers at or before the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of approximately HK$33,374,000 as
disclosed in note 40(a). A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application
of new requirements may result changes in the measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The directors
of the Company are in the process to determine the amounts
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position, after taking
into account all practical expedients and recognition exemption
under HKFRS 16. The directors of the Company expect that
the adoption of HKFRS 16 will not have material impact on the
Group’s result but certain portion of these lease commitments
will be required to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right of-use assets and lease liabilities.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Group:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (i)
derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including
any components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ O S 5 e o B

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in which
the common control combination occurs as if the combination
had occurred from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised as consideration
for goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss/profit or loss and
other comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date presented
or since the date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under the common control, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the end of the previous reporting period unless
the combining entities or businesses first came under common
control at a later date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment property and investment property
under construction

Investment property is property held to earn rentals.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of investment property over the estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of the estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

Construction costs incurred for investment property under
construction is capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment property under construction.

Investment property under construction is initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure until either
is fair value becomes reliably determinable and measurable or
construction is completed, whichever is earlier.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for own
use in the production or supply of services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will
be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZ _—F—/\#F=A=+—HI F&E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development

Properties that are being constructed or developed for future use
as held-for-sales are classified as properties under development
and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the expected sale
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs
to completion, or by management estimates based on prevailing
marking conditions.

Development cost of property comprises construction costs,
borrowing costs capitalised and professional fees incurred during
the development period. On completion, the properties under
development are transferred to completed properties held for
sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
when the construction of the relevant properties commences.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ O S 5 e 5 B

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of the year are
stated at the lower of cost and net realise value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expense, or by management
estimates based on prevailing marking conditions.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise
cash at banks and in hand and cash at financial institutions. For
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of and cash as defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statements of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZ _—F—/\#F=A=+—HI F&E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets represent the financial asset held-for-trading and
a financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is classified as “loss arising from changes
in fair value of held for trading instruments” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 38(c).

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including other receivables and deposits, loan and interest
receivables, finance lease receivables and cash and cash
equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

TEGFTEER @)

CRMEEERIFEESCREERKETIE
o RIEREESBERFHEEE ¢

HWBEEERERTARREEZA
&k

s VISHRZTREEBNAKE—HE
BrzE#RemIAREASESI
7 IR BREHENRR - 5

o  FEREEARIEENMAIBBIEAY
SWTEZITETEA -

RIEEBRE AR EREC eREERAAE
IR - BRI EEENAAEESRELH
FEEMNMERER - WA BRFR TR
ERREREREERRZF B RNEHE
BmROBERIFIEBEEIAZ ARBEEDES
ZEB A - RAETHIZMEESS(c) itz 7y
XETE -

B R EW R AE B E R A EE N RER
BRBEEARMS ERENEITESREE -
R HERE - ERMERERR(REEME
WEREFLZS  BREFEMNE - B
MEMERBUANR S LR EEY) IHER
BRI OR 4% 0 5 A AR A (7T 2 23R R (B A
BB (A TXEREERENSER) -

S T B A R4 W)
e SAAS

123



124

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 3K B G

For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZ _—F—/\#F=A=+—HI F&E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at FVTPL.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in
the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial assets
below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost

is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

EEERTBR @)
SF T A

EREEZEFRBRREAABREER
SN E IS PR AR ETR - 66 T8
EREAREREER A ERREEN—
HHREHEREERMEENBRRRER
EXFE  EREENR/CREE -

RAHEERAREMNS - REZARERXN
BRFETREENERANREAETE R
B -

BAEREMEMEENS @ FEREEEA
B

o BUTARBFIHBRBEVBR X

o ERAH  WEMNHIERN B
EANE- =

o  BRABARBESETHHER X

o ZEREE RS E YN
oo

SR R AT PR A WD
e SAAS

125



126

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZ _—F—/\#F=A=+—HI F&E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as loan and
interest receivables and finance lease receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of other receivables and deposits, loan and interest receivables
and finance lease receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When other receivables and deposits, loan and
interest receivables and finance lease receivable are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period in which the impairment takes place.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

TEGFTEER @)

SETER 2 2 BE E (NRKRE R RS LA
KEWREMERIE B E ST BRI
BZEE)ME - SEMEBBRERG - /&
WA LR 2 FBUREE B BEAE
BB AL SR - A NTEENKEBB T
EERZ BEAME IR RBEWFIERE XIS
SRR 2 BRIy A EA R H IR BB
F o

BN RBERASIRZ SREEMS @ BE
BRZSBEEECRAEENGREER
RERAEFRGEFRKBERERERE 2
ERERER o

CREECRAEERABMATSREEL
BERBERD  HEEMEEERER LT HR
T - BWEREF B R B EHE AR
s HEREEBBEMRRFERRD - BiEkE
ZIREEZ BN IBE AR o i H b RYKER
RAEIFHRE - BREREFEREKERE
HERERR AT A D - BB 5 AR
55 o HIRU Bl R ST AT M BERR B H A
HE o

EAHEEEREERR AT RER - LA
REAER G W AR R REHE R AR E
ELBREN O EER:S -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve.

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
obligation under finance lease, bank borrowings, margin loans
payable and amounts due to related companies/a director are
subsequently measured at the amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZ _—F—/\#F=A=+—HI F&E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant Period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of
obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the revenue recognition policy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain the liability,
equity components and derivatives components (which are not
closely related to the host liability component) are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument. At the date of issue, both the liability and derivative
components are measured at fair value. The difference between
the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the
fair values assigned to the liability and derivatives components
respectively, representing the conversion option for the holder to
convert the convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity (i.e.
convertible bonds-equity conversion reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The derivatives components are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The equity component, representing the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds-equity conversion reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance stated
in convertible bonds-equity conversion reserve will be transferred
to share premium).

Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible bonds-equity conversion reserve will
be released to accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZ _—F—/\#F=A=+—HI F&E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Upon redemption of the convertible bonds, the redemption
consideration will be allocated to the liability component and
equity component using the same allocation basis as when the
convertible bonds were originally issued. Differences between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the liability component
will be recognised in profit or loss. The difference between the
redemption consideration and the equity component will be
included in equity (convertible bonds-equity conversion reserve)
and released to accumulated losses.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Derivative embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated
as separate derivative when their characteristics and risks are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
separately accounted for at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss, with a corresponding increase in equity (i.e. share
option reserve).

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZ _—F—/\#F=A=+—HI F&E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions (Continued)

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve), when
the Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for good sold and services rendered in the
normal course of business. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and transferred to the buyers.

Deposits and installments received from buyers prior to meeting
the above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Consultancy fee income is recognised when the services are
rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Operating leases payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment property under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZE_—F—/\F=H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Group entities operate various pension schemes. The schemes
are generally funded through payments to insurance companies
or trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculation. The Group has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—\F=A=+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control of those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements using the equity method.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s share of the profit or loss and
changes in the other comprehensive income of the associates
are recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
respectively after the date of acquisition. If the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, which determined using the equity method together
with any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—\F=A=+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the associate’s losses (if any), the Group determines whether it
is necessary to recognise any additional impairment loss with
respect to its investment in the associate. The entire carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment as a single
assets by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment in the associate. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the investment ceases to be an associate upon the
Group losing significant influence over the associate, the Group
discontinues to apply equity method. Any amount previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
investment is reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings on
the same basis as it would have been required if the investee had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value
of inventories and value in use of property, plant and equipment
for the purpose of impairment assessment, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Specifically,
the Group categorised the fair value measurements into three
levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair valuemeasurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines whether
transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy for assets
and liabilities which are measured at fair value on recurring basis
by reviewing their respective fair value measurement.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group estimates and recognises liabilities based on the
submitted tax returns and expected the final tax assessment to be
received will have no additional tax become due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

The PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible allowance and expenditures including sales charges,
borrowing costs and all properties development expenditures.

The Group is subject to the PRC land appreciation tax in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations. In recognising
the PRC land appreciation tax, the management estimated the
tax rates enacted to the Group with reference to the latest tax
jurisdictions of the cities of the PRC in which the properties of the
Group situated in. However, the PRC land appreciation tax rates
might vary upon the finalisation of payment.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the PRC land appreciation
tax included in the income tax expense was approximately
HK$4,186,000 (2017: HK$4,166,000).

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amounts of other receivables
and deposits were approximately HK$340,569,000 (31 March
2017: HK$30,267,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$41,331,000). No
impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: nil).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

fEET TRARAE = 2 T2 AR ()

et THBEZE 2T ERIR (&)

B+ IR (A TD RAE TR R £ IR AR
Y - T IEERR A B YR PTS SRR A N
BEEBLA (BREHEEER - BRRARA
BMERERERAX) °

AEBRBEEBERSERAINPE L
BED - NEERP BT IRERR - E2E
E2EARKEYEMEZ BT 2 &AM
EBFTERNAREZBRE - A > FEL
WIEREREAEENEENFRIRES -

BE_T-\F=A=1+—BLLFE
AFTEHRER 2R ERHL BB
4,186,0007T( =& — £ F : E % 4,166,000
JL) °

WEREBEEBERLRREERE  ~5E88
EZEGAFRFBE S RE - MEBBZEETD
BEEEREHEEGHRRREREZRE
ZEEHE - BEBRRRR&RONTEES -
AIFfge EEEREB - RZZE—\F=H
=+—8  EfERERRFHZES 2KE
B4 A7EH 340,569,000 T ( ZE—+F=H
—+—H : /830,267,000t &k =T —/"F
MA—H : #¥41,331,0007T) - REE-Z
—NEFE=ZA=+—HLEFETEEDREE
B(ZZE—tF &)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ OF S B e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
their estimated residual values, if any. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives and residual values, if any, of the property,
plant and equipment regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expenses to be recorded. The determination of the
useful lives and residual values, if any, are based on the historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation expenses for future
periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

The Group performs assessments on whether items of property,
plant and equipment have suffered any impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying
amounts of the assets may not be recoverable, in accordance
with the stated accounting policy. Where there is an indicator of
impairment, an estimation of the recoverable amount is required.
Such estimations are based on certain assumptions which are
subject to uncertainly and might differ from the actual result.

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment were approximately HK$29,921,000 (31 March
2017: HK$24,446,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$28,373,000). No
impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: nil).
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in fair value below cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment. Judgement is required when determining
whether a decline in fair value has been significant or prolonged.
In making this judgement, the historical data on market volatility as
well as the price of the specific investment are taken into account.
The Group also takes into account other factors, such as industry
and sector performance changes in technology and operational
and financing cash flow of the investee. As at 31 March 2018,
the carrying amounts of available-for-sale financial assets were
approximately HK$65,807,000 (31 March 2017: HK$66,861,000
and 1 April 2016: HK$75,466,000) net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$65,757,000 (31 March
2017: HK$59,698,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$51,537,000).

Management performs a review at each reporting period on
the carrying amounts of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development. Based on management’s
review, write-down of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development will be made when the
estimated net realisable value has declined below the carrying
amount. In determining the net realisable value of completed
properties held for sale and properties under development,
management based on recent global and local economic
developments, recent sales transactions of the Group and other
similar properties in the surrounding areas, marketability of the
Group’s existing properties, market survey reports available from
independent property valuers, internally available information and
management’s expectation on future sales.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amounts of the completed
properties held for sales and properties under development
were approximately HK$187,733,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$664,152,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$1,182,656,000) and
HK$131,843,000 (31 March 2017: HK$118,660,000 and 1
April 2016: HK$110,177,000) respectively. No write down
of completed properties held for sales and properties under
development was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: nil).

The policy for impairment of loan and interest receivables
and finance lease receivable is based on assessments
of the recoverability of each debtor, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history. Impairments
arise where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification of bad
and doubtful debts requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of loan and interest
receivables was approximately HK$1,546,227,000 (31 March
2017: HK$479,304,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$229,056,000). No
impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: nil).
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of finance lease
receivable was approximately HK$97,468,000 (31 March
2017: HK$87,907,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$94,723,000). No
impairment loss was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: nil).

As described in note 38(c), the directors of the Company use
their judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique
for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
For derivative financial instruments, assumptions are made
based on quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of
the instrument. Other financial instruments are valued using a
discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions supported,
where possible, by observable market prices or rates. The
estimation of fair value of unlisted equity instruments includes
some assumptions not supported by observable market prices or
rates. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in note 38(c).
The directors of the Company believe that the chosen valuation
techniques and assumptions are appropriate in determining the
fair value of financial instruments.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 5. {hzt MEARIEZ= 2 E 2R (4)
(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) 5T AR EZE 2 T ERKIE (&)
As mentioned in note 41, the Group has granted share options SN T4 Rl AEBDAES - BE
to directors, employees and consultants. The directors of the NEARE TR c AT ESFREETE
Company have used an option-pricing model - Binomial model EBEEX-—EARER((ZEXEX)ET
(the “Binomial Model”) to determine the total fair value of the FiimiElREmE LB BETERERE
options granted. The option pricing models require the input of SREATEBS flunERETER . e
subjective assumptions, such as risk free rate, dividend yield, R EHEKIE RFEEEHE BhANRE
expected volatility and expected terms, to be made by the ERERA EAEREEL (FE41) - %
directors of the Company in applying the Binomial Model (note Ao-EAEAETRENBERERAEEZ -
41). The fair value of options granted for the year ended 31 March E-NE=A=+—HIFENAAEY
2018 determined using the Binomial Model was approximately BB 118,400,000 T( ZFE —+F : B
HK$118,400,000 (2017: HK$162,750,000). 162,750,000 ) ©
REVENUE 6. WA
Revenue represents revenue arising in sales of food and IWAIEERNEEILE  EXRE - EM
beverages, loan financing, financial leasing, securities trading and E . EREBEDYERBELANWA o A&
properties development for the year. An analysis of the Group’s BERNWAZ DT :
revenue for the year is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T AT T
(Restated)
(=7)
Sales of food and beverages e E 2,617 4,146
Sales of properties HEWMZE 572,234 516,092
Financial leasing income BEREWA 35 2,188
Dividend income & A 5,479 19,548
Interest income from provision of RHEREE R FLEWA
loan financing services 87,585 28,237
667,950 570,211
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/.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors, being the chief
operating decision maker ("CODM”), for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of goods, or services delivered or provided. No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, following the completion
of the United Faith Group, as detailed in note 2, the Group
acquired the United Faith Group which is principally engaged in
the properties development business, and changed the Group’s
internal organisation structure. Accordingly, a new segment,
namely properties development business has been added. The
nature of the properties development business is different from
other segment and it is material to the Group. Accordingly, the
composition of its operating segments has been revised and the
segment information for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been
restated due to the effect of merger accounting as disclosed in
note 2, as well as to conform to current year’s presentation.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

(i) Securities trading business;

(i) Trading of wine business;

(i) Food and beverages — restaurant business;

(iv)  Loan financing business;

(v Financial leasing business; and

(viy  Properties development business.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable and operating segment:

Year ended 31 March 2018

7. PEERE)

DEBARFRE
AEBZWAREERATEMNEEN TR
ZAMIT

BE-—E—-\E=A=1+—HILLEE

Food and
Securities Trading  beverages - Loan Financial ~ Properties
trading of wine restaurant financing leasing  development
business business business business business business Total
&% i 8%~ &X g nE
EEXH EEXH EBER HEEH HEEH REEH ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBTR BT EBTR BT BT ABTR BBTRL
Revenue BA
External revenue S 5,479 - 2617 87,585 3 572,234 667,950
Loss on dlisposal of held for HEREEERE B
trading investments (6,943) - - - - - (6,943)
Segment (loss) profit PR (BR)FR (33,776) - (602) 83,794 35 45814 95,265
Interest income HEHA 498
Finance costs BEKA (112,803)
Gain arising from changes infair value ~ §TA 4 BEE 2 A4 fEE
of derivative financial assets B2 W% 90,185
Loss arising from changes in fairvalue {744 BAEZ AR E
of derivative financial iabties FEEIFR (96,575)
Impaiment loss on avalable-for-sale WA ESREAE VA
financial assets BB (6,059)
Loss on early recemption of RYEETARES A
convertible bonds (34,838)
(Gain on disposal of subsidaries LENBAT WA 10,331
Shares of losses of associates 4 VNP (89)
Unallocated corporate income NG ON 54,315
Unallocated corporate expenses Al WG (199,788)
Loss before tax BRAER (199,556
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable and operating segment:

Year ended 31 March 2017 (Restated)

2R RS (#)

REBZIMAREERBTERNELHTE
ZOTT

BHE_T—+F=A=+—HILEFE(KE

51])
Food and
Securtties Trading  beverages - Loan Financial Properties
trading of wine restaurant Financing leasing  development
busingss business business business business husiness Total
Ep | 28— B HE I
BB EEXH 2EXH HEXH HEXH REXH ag
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
AETT EETT EETT AETT ABTI BBTI BB
Revenue BA
Extemal revenue GBI 19,548 - 4,146 28,237 2,188 516,092 570211
Gain on disposal of held for NEREEERE M
trading investments 21810 - - - - - 21810
Segment profit (loss) PERE (58 1414 - (1,175) 27,037 2,099 45,401 74,796
Interest income HMERA 53
Finance costs BERA (17,610)
Gain arising from changes in fair value  f1£2REEZAAER
of derivative financial assets EENa 4811
Loss arising from changes in fair value {742 & &E 2 A%
of derivative financial iablties BYEL I ER (279,44)
Realised gain on settlement of NELRERLE B8R NR
Qerivative financial assets 907
Impairment loss on avallable-for-sale ~ HHESHEEZHESE
financial assets (8,161)
Unallocated corporate income RABATHA 13497
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBRAIRET (206,357)
Loss before tax BHRAEE (417,030)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment
profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, finance costs, gain or loss arising from changes in fair
value of derivative financial assets and financial liabilities, realised
gain on settlement of derivative financial assets, impairment loss
on available-for-sale financial assets, other income, loss on early
redemption of convertible bonds, gain on disposal of subsidiaries
and shares of losses of associates. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

7.

D FEE R ()
2R RS (#)
REDE 2 ST BOREM FE4 Pt 2 N5 8]
FEREEER - 2 EMNE I BRESOR
B2 AE EEzBE MEESEPR
TRER EFHS  BMEXAE  TESR
BERTBRBBEZARERSELZ NG
BE - TEEREEAE 2 CER K - 7
HEESREEZRERE - EMPA - 12
EBEE#EkEFZER  HERBARZ
Wes M IEBE AR ZEE - MEESR K
RBEFEME WA EREERKEEZR
Zfalt

SIS MR T AR A
e SAS
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o B BA 5 i 3K B G

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_—F—/)/\F=HA=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable and operating segment:

HIEER )
THEERER

AEBZEERBBEREZRR
Aoy

REDE 2D

31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\fF T —t5F T REF
=A=+—H =AHA=+—H mA—A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BETTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(g&&E5) (g &E5)
Segment assets PEEE
Securities trading business BLEBES 63,035 360,775 650,159
Trading of wine business B B TS 7,250 7,250 7,250
Food and beverages — BR—BEEK
restaurant business 608 1,032 1,869
Loan financing business GG e 1,546,227 479,304 229,056
Financial leasing business MEREER 97,468 87,907 94,723
Properties development business YIRS 516,597 977,049 1,341,631
Total segment assets DIEEEBE 2,231,185 1,913,317 2,324,688
Unallocated corporate assets RO ARIEE 824,191 315,588 244,166
Total consolidated assets atEERE 3,055,376 2,228,905 2,568,854
Segment liabilities SHEER
Securities trading business BHEEEXES 12,357 178,285 376,861
Trading of wine business B B T = - -
Food and beverages — BR—EEER
restaurant business 4,222 5,821 5,433
Loan financing business BB R = - 4
Financial leasing business REHEER - 16 429
Properties development business YIEREETS 41,992 307,048 426,281
Total segment liabilities NEBERE 58,571 491,170 809,008
Unallocated corporate liabilities KON EERE 1,388,197 1,050,977 949,239
Total consolidated liabilities EOEBEHEE 1,446,768 1,542,147 1,758,247

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—\F=A=+—HIFZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than certain plant and equipment, available-for-sale
financial assets, certain deposits, prepayments and other
receivables, derivative financial instruments, deferred
taxation and cash and cash equivalents; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain trade and other payables, amounts due to
related companies, amount due to a director, tax payables,
derivative financial instruments, deferred taxation, bank
borrowings, obligation under finance lease and convertible
bonds.

DEER )

TREERAE (&
RERHBERRARASFEHIRERM S -

PEBEERDEEREDE(ETHEE

Kk At EeREE - ETEY
?Ziﬁ BENREREAM YRR ~ 014
THMTHE  BERENIEMRSEFE
WERIN) - R

FEaBENREELENB(ETES
REMPERIRF - BISBIEARIRR
ERN—RZEERE - BERIE - 1142
aﬂlﬂ EIERIE - RITIER - MEM
EARIE R AT EHBRIN) o

S AR R AT PR WD
e SAS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_—F—/)/\F=HA=+—HIFE

N

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DFEEFR

il

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BE-Z—N\E=A=1+—HILEE

Food and
Securities Trading beverages - Loan Financial  Properties
trading of wine restaurants financing leasing development
husiness business business business business business  Unallocated Total
#% ik 4~ B HE ¥
BEXE BEXE  RERR  REEE 0 MERR  MEEE AR g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETn  BETn  BMTn  BETn  AETn  BETn BMTn B%Tn
Amounts included in the measure 35t EH BRI
of seqment proft or loss or BRI RAEN
segment assets: HAZERE:
Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE
(other then financial instruments (T8 E4RIE
and deferred taxation) REEHE) - - 6 3813 = 239 5,830 9,968
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - BE R G E
equipment 10 - 606 2332 - 2,146 1,409 6,503
Depreciation of investment property  RANEHE - - = = = 843 - 3
Amortisation for prepaid lease BRRENTES
payments - - - = = i = n
Loss arising from changes in REBEREC DN
fair value of held for trading FHEL 7 EE
investments 29,94 - - - - - - 29,94
Amounts regularly provided to THRETIERS
the CODM but not included in ARERNTENE
the measure of segment proft HEsEESE
orloss or segment assefs: BEBTAIA
188
Bank interest income HITHEHA - - - - = = (498) (499)
Gainarisng from changes infair ~ $TASREEZ ARE
value of derivative financial assets  SBE4 7% - - - = = = (90,185) (90,185)
Loss arising from changes infair 14 4BEEZ AR (E
value of derivative financial labities ~ SEEH 7B - - - - = - 96,575 96,575
Impairment loss on avallable-for-sale L ESRERE
financial assets LAEER - - - = = = 6,059 6,059
Loss on early redemption of REEOTARES
convertible bonds LEE - - - - - = 34,838 34,838
Gain on disposal of subsidlaries  HEMBAT Mz - - - - - = (10,331) (10,331)
Shares of losses of associates BEBLNT 2 BE - - = = = = 89 8
Finance costs BERKA - - - - - - 112,808 112,803
Income tax expenses fEHER - - - 11,595 - 10,481 - 22,076

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —F—\F=H=+—HI F&E

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER @
Other segment information (Continued) HihpEER (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Restated) HE ZT—+H5=-"A=1T—HIIFE(K=E
51))
Food and
Securities Trading  beverages - Loan Financial  Properties
trading ofwine  restaurants financing leasing ~ development
business husiness business business husiness business  Unallocated Total
&5 ik £4- &7 EE ES

BEXE  BERH EEXE  BARE RERXR  RERR ol it
HKS00D  HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKS00D  HK§000  HKS000
¥t ARTn ARt A%Tn ARt ABTm BT BB

Amounts included in the measwre A5t EAETE
of segment proft or loss or B EAER
segment assefs: HALEE:

Additions to non-current assets FTHEERE
(other than financial instruments (T EE4 BT &

and deferred taxation) RELEHE) - - 12 - - 18,546 3442 22,000
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% « BE RGNE

equipment 10 - 654 131 - 2,343 2,760 5,898
Amortisation for prepaid lease BRRENTER

payments - - - - - 8 - 8
Loss arising from changes in BEBEREZLR

fair value of held for tracing FOELIER

investments 39,172 - - - - - - 39,772
Amounts reqularly provided to THRHTIELE

the CODM but not included in REEENTENE
the measure of segment profi HEdEESIE

or loss or segment assets: EERTA;A
LE8:

Bank interest income RAFERA - - - - - - (635) (539)
Gain arising from changes infair ~~ fTA2BEEZ AL E

value of derivate financial assets  EEE A 2 I - - - - - - (4811) [481)
Loss arisng from changes infar ~~ $T44BEEZARE

valug of derivate fiancia labiltes S84 2 18 - - - - - - 9M8 219448
Realised gain on settlement of EEfiemEE

derivative financial assets ZEEBNE - - - - - - (907) (907)
Impaiment loss on avallable-for-sale - A HESBEE

financial assets LS - - - - - - 8,161 8,161
Finance costs AR - - - - - - 17,610 17,610
Income tax expenses (orecit FERER(H) - . - 2,3 (787) 11614 10648 23799

8 B4 R 7
Sy R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 3 B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DFEEFR )

Geographical information ith & E

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC and RNEF 7 EEBEMNES  PELENRER
the United States of America (the “USA”). (TZEH]) -

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers BEAAEBRRBINEEFL ZWAZ BEHZE
is presented based on the location of the operations. Information BRI 2] c BAEE T IERBEE (S
about the Group’s non-current assets (other than financial BT A RRERIERR SN 2 BRHEE ERTTEM
instruments and deferred taxation) is presented based on the BAUBEES -

geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMBEF ZBA FRBEE
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2018 2017 2016

“E-\F ZET+tFf ZB-N\f CZZT+F ZTF
=A=+-A ZA=+-H ZA=+-B ZA=f—H MA—A
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI T BETT BET T AT BETT

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(mE5)) (=751 (LE70)
Hong Kong 5 36,916 47,784 6,403 4,098 4,752
PRC H 631,034 522,427 45,847 41,116 26,466
USA ESE - - 24 31 22

667,950 570,211 52,274 45,244 31,240

The Group had no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31 AEBRBE_ZT—\FEZT—+F=H
March 2018 and 2017. =+ —HIEFEWEAIRE D EHE -
Information about major customers EBREXEEFFHNESR
The Group has a large number of customers, none of whom TEBHRBERERP BIEERAEFERA
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue. SEBRARI10% kA E -

15 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
58 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZ - F—/\F=H=+—HI FZ

OTHER INCOME 8. A
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(&gED))
Bank interest income HITHE 498 535
Exchange gain, net b H e 45,287 4,162
Rental income from investment property (note i) &’éﬁ%%ﬁﬂiﬂw\ GED) 88 -
Net gain from a settlement of claim (note ii) HEE BRI W F 5 (M aEi) - 9,207
Consulting service income RS Hlﬁ%ﬂﬁl}\ 7,812 -
Others Hih 1,216 128
54,901 14,032

Notes:

(i)

The gross and net rental income from investment property for the year
ended 31 March 2018 was amounted to HK$88,000 (2017: nil).

On 25 September 2015, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement with a nominee, Xumao Ventures Limited (“Xumao
Ventures”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
to acquire the equity interest in Jinshidai Investment Consultancy
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Jinshidai”), an independent third party with
property interests located in the PRC.

Due to the non-performance of the vendors, the Group has submitted
an application for arbitration to the Shenzhen Arbitration Commission
CRYFEZ BE) (the “Commission”) seeking specific performance
of the Acquisition Agreement and damages against the vendors. The
application has been accepted by the Commission on the same date of
29 January 2016.

On 11 April 2016, the nominee and the vendors entered into a
settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) to settle the
arbitration. Under the Settlement Agreement, the vendors agreed to
make a payment of RMB38,000,000 to settle the arbitration and related
proceedings. The consideration for the acquisition was settled by an
advance from a director, Mr. Li Kwong Yuk and the settlement was
repaid to the director during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2017,
respectively. The Group was entitled to a share of 38% of the remaining
balance of approximately HK$9,207,000 as net settlement and was
recognised to offset to the amounts due to the related companies. The
settlement was received subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 25 September 2015, 29 September 2015, 2 October
2015, 9 October 2015, 30 November 2015, 9 December 2015, 29
January 2016, 12 April 2016 and 27 April 2016.

P

(i

REBEE-FT—\FZA=Z+—HILFE  &E
%%Zﬁ@%k%%&é%ﬁ%%%pmm
(ZZ—tF )

RIZE-RAFNAZTHR  AEFE 2K
BZABBRIEARAR([BE | —HREE
ERRBEREMR L2 AR FTLAERZ
NWEE e R R RERRE ORI BRAR ([£E
Rl —BREURPEZMEED 2 BILE
=J7) ZBuHE o

BB TEL Zli’ilaﬁ AP EEE
((REE DRXMERHE  USKAEHETE
TTUR B R S R 1 é%ﬁaﬁé:g—ﬁ
F-AZTNABZRABXERE

R-ZE—A"FMNA+—B RBEAREARIL
MR (TR - LAFIREfRE o RIRA
ina - B RE T ARE38,000,0007T
LAFD R, SR AR BERRA o WIB FTE 2 RETYIA
—REB(THELE) ZEREN - MEN
REDIREBEE-_T—"FER_ZT—+tF=A
=+—HLEFENEETZES - AEEHRE
IR BY 8458 2 38% 19 58 + #9785 9,207,000 JT1E
BEMTIEFE  WEERAKEEMNEER
AIFR SR - BN RIBERREBHRBUIE -
SHENAATRBAZ—HEFENAZTH
A —Z— ﬁinﬂ +hE - —ZT—AF
+A=8" —RFEt+ANE - ﬁi
+—A= +B T £¢+fﬂna
/\¢ A= +jLE| = /‘_\EEV_EUE]"“:E
r—_F— /\i@ﬁ_+tEZAf$W?&§§°
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F— )\ F=HA=+—HIFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BB

2018 2017
—E-N\F T tf
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Restated)
€=
Interest on margin loans payable ERRESERFIE 2,673 8,164

Effective interest expenses on convertible AR ES 2 BERFE
bonds (note 35) Fisz (FI5E35) 109,911 8,858
Interest on bank borrowings RITERZFE 219 562
Interest on finance leases BEMHE 2 FE = 26
112,803 17,610

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



10. LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
o PF B4 % $i 3R 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

10. BRELAIES B
BBATBSRE NG TS E -

2018 2017
—EB-N\F T+t
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(% &%)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERFETHAEME
(note 11) (fFzE11) 11,450 6,436
Other staff costs (excluding directors’ and HtETITRACTERREEER
chief executive’s emoluments) FBITHRABEE) 10,559 10,674
Share-based payments expenses PARSAD A 20 2 A 3 S
(excluding directors’ and chief (TEREERFETHRAS
executive’s emoluments) <) = 16,129
Retirement benefit scheme contribution BRARBEFFEHER(TRIEES
(excluding directors’ and chief REZTHAEMS)
executive’s emoluments) 478 485
Total staff costs B T A BEE 22,487 33,724
Amount of inventories recognised as an EHRRAASIcHFESE
expense 520,908 454,495
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN BN 2,000 1,400
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR HE &1 S 7 78
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - MENEEBZITE 6,503 5,898
Depreciation of investment property EMETE 843 -
Operating lease payments in respect of rented FHEAEMFETHAEME 2
premises under minimum lease payments LR E R 20,448 13,475
Share-based payments expenses granted TR 2 AR ) BETE 5K
to consultants (note) F sz (FfT5E) 118,400 146,621

Note: It represents share options granted to external consultants in exchange MI3E

for services rendered to the Group.

HIBmIMNTER X 2 BAE - WIRERAASE
BERG 2 RS o
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

emoluments

Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and

11.

EENTETHRAELZH

E& 2%

Y /

i B A &%

() EERFETBRAEZME

EXNHENARBAEERTE

ITERABS

chief executive of the Company are as follows: BrBewmT :
2018
“E-)\§
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-based
and other scheme  payments
Fees benefits contribution expenses Total
R
HER BIRERN RERZ
e AfaRR it B HREX a%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BRI BRI BRI
Emoluments paid or receivable inrespect  BHEAEAAATR
of a person's services as a director, HNBARZZE
whether of the Company and its iRt RBMENS
subsidiary undertakings [ed
Executive Director: HirEE:!
Li Kwong Yuk S 35 - 4,128 47 - 4,175
Su Xiaonong BB - 442 36 - 478
Zheng Xiantao BrE - 3,138 - - 3,138
Cheung Sze Ming REE(NZ2-N\F
(Resigned on 17 March 2018) =RTtB#EfE) - 1,406 18 - 1,424
Liu Yutong el (R_2-\%
(Resigned on 13 February 2018) “At+=BEfA) - 1,815 - - 1,815
Independent Non-Executive Director: BYFHTES:
Cao Kuangyu ERT 120 - - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki [ 2:8 150 - - - 150
Ip Chi Wai LR 150 - - - 150
420 10,929 101 - 11,450

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and

11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EtZ - F—/\F=H=+—HI FZ

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’

EFZNTETHAE ZEHM
BEE 2ME @)

A K

() EERFETBRAEZME (@)

EXNHENARBTEZREETHRA

chief executive of the Company are as follows: BEBAZMEMT
2017
“EtE
Retirement
benefit ~ Share-based
Salaries and scheme payments
Fees other benefits  contribution expenses Total
PARRTR
ek RINER RERL
fika Etoig HEEE DEEET o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Emoluments paid or receivable inrespect ~ BHEAEAAATR
of a person's services as a director, HfBRAEZ
whether of the Company and its iRtz RBmE NS
subsidiary undertakings el e
Executive Director: HTES:
Li Kwong Yuk TRE - 4,121 46 - 4,167
Su Xiaonong BB - 438 36 - 474
Cheung Sze Ming REFE - 1,357 18 - 1,375
Zheng Xiantao BERE(RZE—tF
(Appointed on 21 February 2017) Azt BEZRfF) - - - - -
Liu Yutong el (R=F—F
(Appointed on 21 February 2017) “R-t+-REZMA) - - - - -
Independent Non-Executive Director: By 7E% !
Cao Kuangyu ERT 120 - - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki FER 150 - - - 150
Ip Chi Wai 1R 150 - - - 150
420 5,916 100 - 6,436

S8 48 O 5 A PR )
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_—F—/)/\F=HA=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES”’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Mr. Su Xiaonong is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

None of the directors and the chief executive of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any emoluments paid
by the Group during the two years ended 31 March 2018
and 2017. No emoluments were paid or payable by the
Group to the directors and chief executive of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended
31 March 2018 and 2017.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—\F=A=+—HIFZE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES”’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included four directors
(2017: two directors) of the Company, details of whose
emoluments are set out in note 11(a) above. The
emoluments paid to the remaining one (2017: three) highest
paid individuals are as follows:

E=NE
B& 2%

E??EQAEZ%}%@‘\‘ >

b) EEZME

FEERSHFALTEERARANE(ZF
—tF:MBEF BREMeZFHE
I EXE(a) e XN TFHT—H
—EtF ZR)RSFALZHE
LI

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —T—+F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BEET T

Salaries and other benefits e REAMER 1,186 2,847
Share-based payments expenses DAH&@#;%WH%‘K%?EZ - 16,129
Retirement benefit scheme contribution  RRIEFEHEIH X 18 32
1,204 19,008

The emoluments of the remaining one (2017: three) highest
paid individuals fall within the following bands:

BT—2(ZF—tF: ZR)ESFA
TZHBEI DS THNEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E ZE—+t5F
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEA™ EE AR
Nil — HK$1,000,000 & — 4% 1,000,000 7T = -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 781,000,001 7T —
71,500,000 7T 1 2
HK$16,500,001 — HK$17,000,000 78 16,500,001 7T —
&% 17,000,000 7T - 1
No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the REBEEZZT-N\FRZZT—tF=H

highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the two years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017.

=t+—HItMEFEHRE - AEEHE
ENSENEESHALIE - FRRS
A INAAR KBS 228D - SER
BB (E -

SRR R AR
o /\ﬁ‘iil“iiﬁ
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —F—/\F=HA=+—HI F&F
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. FISHER
2018 2017
—E-N\fF e
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(#E5)
Current income tax B IR EH
Hong Kong BE 94 22
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) RIS
(TR 17,965 9,846
The PRC LAT B £ M I E R 333 1,156
18,392 11,024
(Over-provision) Under-provision BEFE
in prior years (iBzERE) BETR
Hong Kong BE (169) 10,648
The PRC EIT HR R EEFTISTR = (883)
(169) 9,765
Deferred tax (note 36) IRIERTE (3£ 36) 3,853 3,010
Income tax expenses FrisHieE A 22,076 23,799

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for both years. For
the year ended 31 March 2018, Hong Kong profits tax has been
relieved by approximately HK$71,000 (2017: HK$59,000) as a
result of tax losses brought forward from previous years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

Overseas profits tax, the USA taxation which was calculated
based on the rates applicable in the relevant jurisdiction on the
estimated assessable profits. No provision of overseas profits tax
has been made, as the Group did not have any assessable profits
subject to overseas profits tax for both years.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”") and Bermuda, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the BVI and Bermuda.

Land appreciation tax in the PRC is levied on properties
developed by the Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, which under
the applicable regulations, is calculated based on the proceeds of
sales of properties less deductible expenditures including cost of
land use rights, borrowing costs and all properties development
expenditures.

12. FTSTE A (@)

BERETRIRIBEMEFE 2 A5 ERTF
TR E165%(ZF — L F : 16.5%) 7t
E- BT \FZA=+—HLFE "
BEREMNEHEAREFAE o HIBEEMRL
#98HE 71,000 T (ZE—+4F : B 59,000
TT) e

REPEARKMBEEERMAEIOAE (THREM
BIED) REEMGTOEAERER - HE
MBARZHEE —ZTN\F—HA—BER
25% °

BINMGEHRAXETIR - IIRENBRERDE
R ERTOE N E R ZFREFHE - i
PAZN SR [ 7 W M8 4F 2 3 B N/ SN RIS R
ZAEMERBE A - M EAEHIBINAIETR
Y

REXBHEARRS ((RBERAREE] X
BREEFIRBH - AEEBAGN LB
HRREERAREZEMAER(ZT—t
FE) e

FRELHIBERDRAREERIEHE 2D
% ABEBE30% E 60% E L IR EFRE
W REEARY > BEAEIRTIALEY
SEFTSSIEMER AT HRR S (B 3h T E
A~ (EERA R FABMFEERFAS)EL -

R T B A R4 W)
e SAS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

12. FTSTE A (@)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss AEEMEHBREAMHERRIIT ZEBHN
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as BIEIBE AR T ¢
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
€==))
Loss before tax BrFR A 18 (199,558) (417,030)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate BARMATETHT%E 25%
of 25% (2017: 25%) —E—+F 1 25%)
HEZFIE (49,890) (104,258)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT N 2 Mg E 64,705 84,207
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERFRW G 2 s & (28,121) (4,558)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERZRIBEEZ BIGTE 7,856 7,315
Tax effect of deductable temporary AHIER T%D?ﬁi%ﬁﬁ%%%iz
differences not recognised M e 12 222
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRBERERCHIBBE
previously not recognised Mg e (71) (59)
Tax reduction (note i) FREAIR (M EED (30) (20)
(Over) under-provision in prior years RBAFE (BERE) BEBETR (169) 9,765
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RE M B AR AR B A T
operating in other jurisdictions Z R R & 27,534 30,318
LAT T+ b IR(ERT 333 1,156
EIT effect of LAT THIEER DR E (83) (289)
Income tax expenses Fri5i & A 22,076 23,799

Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 36.

Note:

(i) A tax concession of 75%, subject to a ceiling of HK$30,000 (2017: (i)
HK$20,000) per company, for the Group’s subsidiaries under Hong

Kong jurisdiction.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company received
notice of additional assessment from the Inland Revenue
Department (“IRD”) for the years of assessment 2012/2013 to
2015/2016 demanding additional profits tax payments.

The management is currently in process to negotiate with IRD for
the settlement and the Group has made the additional provision

accordingly.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

DIVIDENDS 13. iZ B
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 REZ_2— ) \F=ZA=+—HLFEAMH
March 2018, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end RN SRS AIIRE - IR B SRS ER LA

of the reporting period (2017: nil).

TERFEABRE (ZT—tF - &) -

LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable KA BER A IR &858 E1E iR
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: FRLATEURETE -
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT I BT
(Restated)
Loss 5] (g£=E5))
Loss for the year attributable to the owners RABEE ANERFEEEE
of the Company 221,629 440,817
’000 ‘000
Number of shares REE T FAx
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st EGIRERRHEEIE 2
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss TR AR NAE 25 2R
per share 5,851,539 5,189,184
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the FESREEBEERTAEREEIRNITER
conversion or exercise of the Company’s outstanding convertible NAEZEARITETIRRES - BRERET
bonds, share options and call option from issuance of convertible AR ES 2 REE - RARZIE R
bonds since they would result in decrease in loss per share for T BB REFE 2 FREIER LD -
both years.
The dilutive loss per share for the years ended 31 March 2018 and REBEEZT - N\FRZE—+tF=A=+—
2017 are the same since the computation of diluted loss per share At E BREEEEMAR - TTRRFE
does not assume the conversion or exercise of the Company’s FREEFEEBWERRLBRIITEARTZ
outstanding convertible bonds, share options and call option from MARITE AR ES BT BRES
issuance of convertible bonds as they would result in decrease in A% HE N R ERRE - RAAZSEBNITER

loss per shares.

BHERERRD o

SIS MR T AR A
e SAS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F— )\ F=HA=+—HIFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND INVESTMENT 15, &% & 128 4%

PROPERTY UNDER CONSTRUCTION

Completed Investment
investment property under
property construction Total
BRIKENE TERBEEME et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT
COST ﬁfclli
At 1 April 2016 (As previously reported) R =Z— FMNA—B (MEFHE - - -
Effect of business combinations HAEHTEBA 2 FE
under common control - - -
At 1 April 2016 (As restated) RZZE—AFNA—A (LEF) - - -
Additions NE - 18,546 18,546
Exchange difference i 5 2 - (367) (367)
At 31 March 2017 —t#=A=+—H
and 1 April 2017 (As restated) —tFMA—H(EE5H) - 18,179 18,179
Additions ,,J\ﬁ - 244 244
Transfer from investment property EEETEEREYE
under construction 18,423 (18,423) -
Exchange difference N ZERE 1,990 1,990
At 31 March 2018 —\E=ZA=+—H 20,413 - 20,413
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt g
At 1 April 2016 (As previously reported) R —Z—XEMMA—B (EFI2HR) - - -
Effect of business combinations HEEEHI TEB AT E
under common control - - -
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 RZE—REENA—A -
and 1 April 2017 (As restated) R-ZE—+&=A=1+—H
R=F—+FNA—H(KEF) - - -
Charge for the year FERY 843 - 843
Exchange difference [N ERE 46 - 46
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\$=A=1+—H 889 - 889
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-\E=A=+—H 19,524 - 19,524
At 31 March 2017 (As restated) RZE—+FZA=+—H(KEH) - 18,179 18,179

At 1 April 2016 (As restated)

RZE—REMNA—A(KEY))

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTY UNDER CONSTRUCTION (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31 March
2018 were approximately HK$23,845,000. The fair value
has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by an
independent valuer, not connected with the Group, CHFT
Advisory and Appraisal Ltd.

The fair value was determined based on the comparison approach
with reference to the realised price or current asking prices for
the comparable properties and adjusted to take into account
the market expectation from property investors to reflect factors
specific to the Group’s investment property.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the property is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment property and information about
the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as

15.

BREME N ERREY = (@)

K=
)

NEFEZA=+—H AEEZKE
RIEL AB 23,845,000 ° AAE
&M%ljﬁﬂfﬁa@zyﬁimﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁ
TRHERTESE -

T
EUN
TIER
AAEERA
RAEDREBELEEZZNELENECE
ERESHEET  UnWEREEZD

SREMFHABRARRASERENEES
ESE

N’&imﬁ

REFEZEMENAAER  ZFVEZR
= RREREREKSEATAE

AEERBEHRODEDEHEREWA
S ESHEOERNT -

followings:
Fair value
As at
31 March 2018
ARE
Level 3 R=BB—N\E
$=@B =A=+-H
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Kindergarten located in the PRC NRAFREZ 2 7 E 23,845 23,845

The above investment property is depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the lease term of 20 years.

The property interest held under construction as at 31 March
2017 (2018: nil) was stated at cost as the directors of the
Company considered that the fair value of the investment property
under construction cannot be reliably measured. Such property
is held under operating leases to earn rentals when it was
completed.

B EMEIAE BOERBE 20 F MR

-
%o

9,”>

—tF=A=T—HAHAERYE
1& m(:ﬁ—)\i CE) BRI - BARA
REERAZERRENEZ AAEEER]
ST E - ZVMERBEEEMERBUNE
TRROES

r

SRR EARA
—F— /\ﬁ‘:ﬁ“ﬁ*&
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ - F—/\F=HA=+—HI FE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. V5% BB Kk

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures,
improvements and office Motor
Buildings  and equipment equipment vehicles Total
HENE B EER
BF FERZK BOERME AE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
COST A
At 1 April 2016 (As previously reported) R=Z—/~FNA—A (INEA2H) - 7,295 1,348 5,667 14,310
Effect of business combinations
under common control HREBTEBAH 2T E 19,581 - 8,055 2,247 29,883
At 1 April 2016 (As restated) RZZ— ENA—A(FEF) 19,581 7,295 9,403 7914 44,193
Additions NE - - 1,439 2,015 3,454
Exchange difference ERZER (1,274) (189) (567) (131) (2,161)
At 31 March 2017 and RZE—+F=A=1-HkK
1 April 2017 (As restated) “F-tFNA-R(EEY) 18,307 7,106 10,275 9,798 45,486
Additions NE - 3,565 347 5,812 9,724
Exchange difference ERES 1,991 307 1,044 449 3,791
At 31 March 2018 R=E-\F=A=1-H 20,298 10,978 11,666 16,059 59,001
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ ZitiTE
At 1 April 2016 (As previously reported) R=Z—~EMA—R (MEFI2H) - 4,349 865 2,833 8,047
Effect of business combinations
under common control EEEHTERAHz T2 2,453 - 3,785 1,535 7,773
At 1 April 2016 (As restated) RZE—R~EMA—H (LE5) 2,453 4,349 4,650 4,368 16,820
Charge for the year FERY 964 1,820 1,658 1,456 5,898
Exchange difference ERES (179) (1) (292) (102) (678)
At 31 March 2017 and RZE—+E=A=1-HR
1 April 2017 (As restated) “E-+FNA-B(EE]) 3,244 6,058 6,016 5,722 21,040
Charge for the year FERY 992 2,209 1,390 1912 6,503
Exchange difference EREE 407 257 638 235 1,537
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=+—H 4,643 8,524 8,044 7,869 29,080

172 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

16. W% ~ ME NERE @)

Furniture,

Leasehold fixtures,

improvements and office
Buildings  and equipment equipment  Motor vehicles Total

BENE K RER
BF  RERZ WAERE e ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BB BB BETT

CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=A=1+—H 15,655 2,454 3,622 8,190 29,921
At 31 March 2017 (As restated) RZT—+F=A=1+—H(LEH]) 15,063 1,048 4,259 4,076 24,446
At 1 April 2016 (As restated) RZZ—~EMA—B (L=5) 17,128 2,946 4,753 3,546 28,373

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis, after taking into account of

their estimated residual values, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles

20 years gF
Over the shorter HEWHEEE
of lease term
or 3 years
33 /% R RER
FEYNES I
20% E

The net book value of motor vehicles held under a finance lease is
approximately HK$2,834,000 as at 1 April 2016 (31 March 2017

and 2018: nil).

Btk - BB kB EEB TR MR
RERRERENE  IRBZFXRNT

204
BBHEEF
3FZEEE

33 1/,%
20%

R-ZE—XNFNA—B REMEHSHEES
ZABZREFEY AB 2,834,000t (=
T—+EN T \FZA=1+—H: #)-

SIS R E AR A
e SAS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —ZF— /4=

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

H=hH—FHIFE

17. AREE RN

31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—ZE2-N\F —E—+F —E—RF
=A=+—-H =A=+—H MA—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&&=75) (&ZE7)
Leasehold land held under LHHEOEE 2
medium-term purposes as follows: FAEL T -
Current asset MEEE 75 68 72
Non-current asset ERHEE 2,829 2,619 2,867
2,904 2,687 2,939
18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18. ERFWE
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F Tt ZEREF
=A=+—-H =A=+—H mMA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(r&:751) (&g&:751))
At the beginning of the year
(As previously reported) REF (LRI E2R) - - -
Effect of business combinations
under common control HENEHI T EBE 2T E 118,660 110,177 1,247,832
As at 1 April (As restated) R A—B (&E75) 118,660 110,177 1,247,832
Additions =S 265 15,701 105
Transferred to completed properties B = {EH EH
held for sale DR T - - (1,105,819)
Exchange difference EHERE 12,918 (7,218) (31,941)
At the end of the year RER 131,843 118,660 110,177

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued) 18.

Properties under development are classified as current assets as

19.

20.

the construction period of the relevant properties development

project is expected to be completed in the normal operating cycle.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 19.

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are situated on a

leasehold land in the PRC. All the completed properties held for

sale are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

The Group has pledged its completed properties held for sale

with a carrying value of approximately nil (31 March 2017:
HK$664,152,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$1,182,656,000 as
restated) to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

BERPYE )

ERMEIBB/RDEE - HEREEYE
BRIA R EEPEE - REERHPATK

RIEHENERINE

REE R E YRR ENAE L -
B L EME R T YE RA AR 2
BREME 2 RIEEFIR -

AEEREFEERAENAZT(ZE—+1F
—H=+—H: #%664,152,0007T & =
—NFMHA—H : B%1,182,656,000 7T (£
BJH))) 2 FHEEEMBE R I - LIERA
SEERHN—MRIBITRE -

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 20. At ESREE
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\E —tF —E—RF
=BA=+—-H =A=+—H MH—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T BT T

Listed investments: & :

- Equity securities listed in Australia BN _ETH 2 RN B 65,807 66,861 75,466

The available-for-sale financial assets represent the Group’s long

term investment in ordinary shares of Kore Potash Limited (“K2P”)

(formerly known as “Elemental Mineral Limited”

(“EML")), an

unrelated listed company in Australia Securities Exchange. They

are denominated in Australian Dollar (“AUD”).

A E SR E ERAEE R Kore Potash
Limited ([K2P ) (F1%# [ Elemental Minerals
Limited] ([EML])) 2 EiBik ) < REIEE -
MAT?’JF BAFGEBEHZHF T2 &8
BNF] o HETLURIT (DBRIT))EHE -

SRR EARA
—F— /\ﬁ‘iiﬁ&
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS  20. At HE &R & = (&)

(Continued)
The fair value of listed equity securities is determined based on B ETRAZS 2 AR ENRBERREER
the quoted market bid prices available on the Australia Securities FOBAFIEFHFR ST A2 FisRmismiE -

Exchange at the end of each reporting period.

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of available-for-sales RZE-—N\F=A=1—0H " BEREMNRK
financial assets which have been pledged as security for the BeEREEZAHEES Fﬂﬁ?zﬁﬁﬁ
margin loans payable is approximately HK$47,577,000 (31 March B EBEE 47,577,000 ( —E—+F=H
2017: HK$47,055,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$53,111,000), details =+—H : B 47,055,0007C K —E—RF
of which are set out in note 39. MA—H : A&%53,111,00070) « #EIEERH
39

Included in the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets are AT E BB B AN BT
the following amounts denominated in currency other than the BN A\ AEENHEESHEE -

functional currency of the relevant group entity:

31 March 31 March 1 April

2018 2017 2016

—E-N\F —E—+F ZE—RF

=A=+t—H =A=+—H MA—H

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT BETIT

AUD BT 65,807 66,861 75,466

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE
21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\E —E—+F ZE—RF
=A=+—-H =A=+—H WMA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT I BT T BT T
Food and beverages E 387 243 357
Wine bt 7,250 7,250 7,250
7,637 7,493 7,607

22, OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 22, EMEILERFK « AT 5018 K17 i

DEPOSITS s
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F Tt ZE—RF
=A=+—B =ZA=+—H MmA—HA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(r&:751) (&&E7)
Deposits placed in a financial TR & B 2
institution (note i) FHiEs (D) = - 773
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 137,475 185,235 36,414
Deposits paid BEfiZe 23,594 22,499 24,156
Consideration receivable (note ii) FEUARE (PEFEI) 312,250 - -
Other receivables H b fE UL BR X 4,725 7,768 16,402
478,044 215,502 77,745
Analysed for reporting purposes: ESRERGR 29T -
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,721 3,172 2,582
Current assets MENE E 476,323 212,330 75,163
478,044 215,502 77,745

8 B4 R 7
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 22, HiyEBUBRFX « TET I8 M 17
DEPOSITS (Continued) BE ()
Notes: P -
(i) As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, a deposit of approximately nil (1 April 0] RZE— ) \FENR_ZT—+F=A=+—"H %
2016: HK$773,000) was pledged to a financial institution to secure the BETT(ZT—RFMA—A - #% 773,000
margin loan payable as set out in note 28. L) 2R BERT —REmEE U EREN
RE S ER (AN TE 28 FraEL) ©
(i) The Group disposed a subsidiary to an independent third party for a total (ii) AEFBRFANABESARELE—RHEBEAT
cash consideration during the year. Details please refer to note 44. F—EBBUE=T o HIEELHME44 -
23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 23. EWEFEFE
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-)N\F —EF—tF —ZE—RF
=A=+—-H =A=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT
Loan receivables JEWE K 1,532,970 410,468 184,018
Interest receivables JrE U7 B 13,257 68,836 45,038
1,546,227 479,304 229,056

The loan and interest receivables are due from independent third
parties, which are unsecured and their relevant due dates started
from May 2018 to March 2019 (31 March 2017: started from April
2015 to December 2017 and 1 April 2016: start from December
2014 to October 2016). The interest rates on the loan and interest
receivables are fixed ranging from 5% to 48% per annum (31
March 2017: 5% to 48% per annum and 1 April 2016: 10% to
48% per annum). No impairment loss was recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: nil).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. EWE R LA B (5

The following is an ageing analysis of loan and interest FEWE L H BERREEARBEIEERIZEA
receivables, presented based on the loan drawn down date and H2WHoERNREAT B ZERSTIOT ¢

interests accrued at the end of the reporting period:

31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F —E—+F ZE—RF
=A=+t—H =A=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Within 90 days 90HA 489,556 239,366 -
91 days to 180 days 91 HEZ 180 H 232,031 85,928 5,642
181 days to 365 days 181 H&£ 365 H 569,350 121,258 187,403
Over 365 days 365 B 255,290 32,752 36,111
1,546,227 479,304 229,056
The Group’s loan financing customers included in the loan and FABKERRFEZASEERRER P
interest receivables are due for settlement at the date specified REEFHZENIEEZAHEBELE - K
in the respective loan agreements. The Group did not hold any SEVWERZSESRISEEAERR -

collateral over these balances.

8 8 A R
Sy R



180

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ O B 5 e 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in the Group’s loan and interest receivables are loan
and interest receivables with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately of nil (31 March 2017: HK$239,095,000 and 1
April 2016: HK$28,536,000) which are past due as the end of
the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances are either
subsequently settled or the borrowers are long relationship
customers with repayment agreements formulated subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no impairment
loss on loan receivables and interest income was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The following is an ageing analysis of loan and interest receivables
which are past due but not impaired:

23. EWE R LA B (5

FTAREE 2 B E R A E RN ERE M
RE @ BN & B B E BT IR R A
ZHREEENT(ZE—tF=A=1+—1:
V1 2389,095,000 R ZE—RFWMA—H :
75 #528,536,0007T ) Z FEWEF KL FI 8 - E1E
EBRARBANZEZEBEE ZARIERR
HHREITVEERBCRBBERER, 2
B R E R

REBEZ_Z—\FER_T—+F=—A=1+—
AEFEEAR TERAMHIBENEMEA I
HRAERERE R EFEWA 2 REEE

B ERBEZ EWRERNF B ZERE D
MranT

31 March 31 March 1 April

2018 2017 2016

—E-N\F —E—tF —E-RF

=A=+—HB =A=+—H MA—H

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000

BT T BT BT

Not yet due m) 7R B B 1,546,227 240,209 200,520
Within 30 days 30HA - - 783
Over 181 days 181 HEA E - 239,095 27,753
1,546,227 479,304 229,056

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 24. R R EHERIA
The Group is carrying on financial leasing business during the AREBRENFIFHERMEREER - FHAET
year. All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the BRI AEMERTOBHETE  WHREEMR
contract date over the lease terms. HE Q435 Tt o
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F T+t ZE—RF
=HA=+—H —A=+—8 mA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BB BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(#eE5) (geE5)
Analysed as: D
Current mENE S 97,468 87,907 94,723
97,468 87,907 94,723

Minimum lease payments

RERENT
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016

“E-N\f CZT+F ZE5F
ZA=t-H =A=1-H mA—-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETT BB BETT
(Restated) (Restated)

(m&5)) (&5))

Present value of minimum lease payments

RERENRZHRE
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016

—E-\E& —EtF  ERF
ZA=+-H =A=1-H mA—-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT BB BB
(Restated) (Restated)

(B =7) (B &71)

Finance lease receivables

comprise: ERREHETERE
Within one year R—%R 97,468 87,942 97,012 97,468 87,907 94,728
Less: unearned finance income 3+ REEEMMIBE WA - (35) (2,289) N/A N/A N/A
TEM TER TER
Present value of minimum
lease payment receivables R ERENT A 97,468 87,907 94,723 97,468 87,907 94,723

S AR R AT PR A WD 181
e AT
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24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Effective interest rate of the above finance lease is 6.15% (31

March 2017 and 1 April 2016: 6.15%) per annum.

The fair value of finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2018 is
estimated to be approximately HK$97,468,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$87,907,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$94,723,000) using 6.15%
(81 March 2017 and 1 April 2016: 6.15%) discount rate based
on quoted one year swap rate and adding a credit margin that

reflects the secured nature of the receivables balance.

At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 2018, finance lease
receivables are secured over the machineries and equipment
leased. The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the

collateral in the absence of default by the lessee.

25. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

24. FEYW R E R EFIA (&)

FH@ERECERFRAEFF6.15% (=
T—+tF-A=F+—BAk_ZT—R"FNA—
H:6.15%) o

R-ZE—N\FZA=+—0 ERHERE
IR A 7 EEET 4 A 7B % 97,468,000 7T
(ZZ—tF=F=+—H : #%87,907,000
TR ZZE—REMA—H : ¥ 94,723,000
TT)  TIIREBETER — iR AR R AR K
6.15% (ZFE—tF=A=+—HERZZF—X
FWA—H :6.15%) 58 - Whn_ 7] R fE
WHIBEH 2 B ENEERES -

RZFB-RFOA—B ZT—+FR-F
—N\F=A=t—H BRBEHEEFAET
VAFRHE 2 #2s R s S 1R IR HR » AR AL
BROZBEAT  AEETSHEXEHNE
MZEA @ -

25. FHFEERE

31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\E —E—LF ZE—RF
=H=+—8H =BA=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(FeE5) (#eE5))
Listed securities held for trading, BEEE 2 EThES
at fair value BARE

- Equity securities listed —REB LM ZBRA
in Hong Kong (note a) #5 (Fska) 63,035 357,562 644,567

— Equity securities listed — AR E Lz AR
in the PRC 5 - 2,909 4172

— Equity securities listed —REBE LT ZRA
in the USA EH - 304 1,420
63,035 360,775 650,159

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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25. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The fair value of listed equity securities is determined based on
the quoted market bid prices available on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the New York
Stock Exchange at the end of each reporting period.

Note a: As at 31 March 2018, included in the held for trading investments
is the Group’s investment in Superb Summit International Group
Limited (“Superb Summit”) which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, with a carrying amount of approximately nil (31 March
2017: HK$18,629,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$26,879,000). The
investment represented approximately 1.3% (31 March 2017: 1.3%
and 1 April 2016: 1.3%) shareholding of the ordinary shares of Superb
Summit. As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the trading of the listed equity
of Superb Summit was suspended and the fair value of the Company’s
investment in the listed equity of Superb Summit has been determined
by using market comparable approach which reflects recent market
value of comparable companies with similar business, adjusted for
differences in nature, scope and location of the business.

Included in the held for trading investments are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of relevant group entity:

25. BIEEERE (@)

REREHR - EHRABHZ AAETIR
BEBR - LERFR P LAKNE
DTSR TISEABETIZHLEEETE -

Wita: RZE2—N\E=ZA=+—B BASEES
BREZEBRBAELERTEEBREESRA
RIHE] REBBIHEN) 2RE &
AENAREL(ZZ—+tF=A=+—8":
75 118,629,000 TR = E—RNFMA—H :
75 26,879,0007T ) © IR A (ha B H R &
EBERARLEBEN1.3%(ZFT—+F=A
=t+—B13%h_T—NEMA—QH:
13%) g - RZTE—NER-_T—+F=
B=+—8 ¥z tBRAEEEERAE
NAIRFEZ ERAREZ AR BEELR
AMBLEEETE  RREFEUESZH
AnBARZEHTE(ERERLEE - &
Nl 2 = REITHAE)

FEEEREBENATAHASEER 2T
BEEBIAIN EREFTHEZ 288 ¢

31 March 31 March 1 April

2018 2017 2016

—E-N\fF —T—+F —E—RF

=H=+—H —A=+—H MA—H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT BETT

(Restated) (Restated)

(ge=5) (geE5)

RMB ARBE - 2,854 2,872
As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of held for trading RZE-N\F=A=1+—H FEEBEHNLEE

¥ 63,085,000 L( ZE—+F=H=1+—H :
7B 311,234,000 L R —E—R"FMA—AH ¢
755 569,544,000 ) 2 FHEE EHR A D HH
EARNREFSEFTNER  BEFEHN
FiEE39 ©

investments which have been pledged as security for the margin
loans payable is approximately HK$63,035,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$311,234,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$569,544,000), details of
which are set out in note 39.

5 AT B
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_-—F—/)\F=HA=+—HIFE

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

26. PTESRTE

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
—E-N\E=A=1-H I e e = 2 5¥NA-A
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
8E 8% BE B BE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BETT BT BT
Convertible bonds: TaRES
Early redemption options (note i RRECHE () 142,216 - 32,988 - - -
Call options on issuance (note i) BT, TREE ERRE (Wiin) - - - 252,021 - -
Others: Crude oil future contract (note i) Eft - RiBEIE AL (MizTii) - - - - 71 -
142,216 - 32,988 262,021 711 -
Notes: [
0] Early redemption options (i) 12 518 o] 2R

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group issued convertible
bonds with coupon rate of 7% per annum at a total principal value of
HK$630,000,000 (2017: HK$279,500,000). The convertible bonds
contained a clause of early redemption by the Group. The aggregate fair
values of the early redemption options of approximately HK$53,350,000
(2017: HK$28,177,000) have been recognised under “derivative
financial assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position
on the corresponding subscription date and reassessed at 31 March
2018 and 2017, amounting to approximately HK$142,216,000 (2017:
HK$32,988,000), resulting in a total fair value gain of approximately
HK$90,185,000 (2017: HK$4,811,000) being recognised under “Gain
arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial assets” in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March
2018 and 2017.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

REBE_ZT—)\F=A=+—RHLFE &K
£ E BT A D B A% 630,000,0007T (=
T — 4 JBH279,500,0007T) © FEE B R
BT%ZABRES - IRBREFHENEE
SERAER 2GR - REBELQSRZ AR
B4 40781 53,350,000 7L (Z B —+4 :
¥ 28,177,000 7T ) B R HEFEREE B AR & BB
BRRERAITESRMEE | BTHERALN=
E-N\ER-FT—tE=ZA=t+—-HEHFT
AL BH142,216,0000 (=T —+HF 8
#32,0988,0007T )+ HBH AL EWZ A
#)7%8 #90,185,000L( = F — £ F : Y1
4,811,00070) EREEZT - N\FR=T—+
FZRA=t+—HALFEZAMHESERR[ITE
SRMEEZ AR ERBIEE 2 W TE THER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—\F=A=+—HIFZE

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. /T4 & T A (®)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) MisE - (48)
0] Early redemption options (Continued) () REME LI (&)

The below table reconciled the amount of the derivative financial assets

TREBENFARFELOBITLEEREEZS

on early redemptions during the year: B
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
—E-N\F Tt —T—REF
=HA=+—8 =A=+—H MA—A
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT
At the beginning of the financial year R BEEY] 32,988 - -
Issue of convertible bonds BT R ES 53,350 28,177 -
Early redemption of convertible bonds REEE A BRRES (23,556) - -
Conversion of convertible bonds ERABRES (10,751) - -
Fair value gain from remeasurement REEFTEZ AN ERE 90,185 4,811 -
At the end of the financial year RIBEER 142,216 32,988 -

(i) Call options on issuance (ii) BT 2RI

On 23 December 2016, 21 February 2017 and 3 March 2017, the
Company has entered into subscription agreements (the “Agreements”)
to issue convertible bonds at the principal amounts of HK$850,000,000,
HK$59,500,000 and HK$400,000,000 respectively to independent
third parties with coupon rate of 7% per annum and 3-year maturity
since their corresponding issuance date for the purpose of financing
the investment in the future expansion and as general working capital.
Pursuant to the Agreements, the contractual provisions in relation
to issuance of convertible bonds with aggregated principal amount
of HK$1,309,500,000 were established and the derivative financial
liabilities in respect of call option on issuance of the convertible bonds
were recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, call option on issuance of
convertible bonds with principal of HK$400,000,000 was cancelled and
principal amount of HK$279,500,000 was issued as convertible bonds
as detailed in note 35.

R-ZE—RE+-_A-+=0  —E—+F_
AZ+—BERZZE—+F=A=H ARFAE
A REGE((ZEHR]D UABIE=
BITASED B BB 850,000,000 7T © 7 #
59,500,000 7T, & 7 # 400,000,000 7T 2 Z B &
AEFTRRAHBEERTESRE=FEn2
BB ES  LWARKERBEERUES RIE
A—REEBES - BEZSHE  BRABITAE
S HEEEBH1,309,500,0007T 2 Al EH 2 A
GBI E KB BEITARRES 2 RE
HEZITESRARBRDERER -

(E-T—+tF=A=+—HILEFE  EITE
4 5 A7 400,000,000 7T 2 AT AR E 5 2 R
He HR 2 2 4 51 88 IR AR @ B85 15 279,500,000 7T
EEATRREFEIET (WM EI5FF
) o

SIS R T AT PR A F
e SAS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—-F— )\ F=HA=+—HIFE

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(i)

26. PTHES R T A (%)

Notes: (Continued) MisE - (48)
Call options on issuance (Continued) (ii) BT R (&)
The fair value of the derivative financial liabilities for the abovementioned LR FAETE REREZITESRAE
call option exercised during the year was reassessed before the ZARBEEREITEBATRRES 2 AT SN
issuance of the respective convertible bonds and the fair value of the FHE REATHARITEZRERE 2 ARED
remaining unexercised call option was assessed as at 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=ZA=+—HEFIEH EEQ
resulting an aggregate fair value loss of HK$279,448,000 recognised B & B 4B EE A 279,448,000 TEBAEYi— =
under the “Loss arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial —tF=ZA=t—"BLFEZAHER
liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year [TTHES BB AR BEDES 7 EE] IET
ended 31 March 2017. R e
During the year ended 31 March 2018, call option on issuance of HEZZ—\F=A=+—HILFE ' 87K
convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$630,000,000 was issued % 8878 % 630,000,000 7T 2 Al & (& % 2 R &
as convertible bonds as detailed in note 35. R ERTIRRES R TT (LM 35 Fr
Frt) o
The fair value of the derivative financial liabilities for the abovementioned LR FERNEITE s RBRAECITESRBE
call option exercised during the year was reassessed before the ZARBEEREITHMAIRRES 2 AIEER
issuance of the respective convertible bonds, the fair value loss of FHE - EERAAERIEE 96,575,000 TR E
HK$96,575,000 recognised under the “Loss arising from changes in fair T N\F=ZA=t+—HIFEZAHER
value of derivative financial liabilities” in the consolidated statement of KA TTESRBEZ ARBEESES ZEE
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2018. B TR o
The below table represents the movement of the derivative financial TERAERFARBHREZITESREGELE
liabilities on call options during the year: g
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
—E-N\F —ZE—+F ZE—RF
=A=+—H —A=+—H mA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET T
At the beginning of the financial year R BEEY] 252,021 - -
Fair value loss from remeasurement RIEERNENTEEE Y
before derecognition NAEEE 96,575 279,448 -
Derecognised fair values of call options RIFFER BT IRESRZ
on issuance of convertibles bonds REREs ARE (348,596) (27,427) -
At the end of the financial year R BEER - 252,021 -

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZ - F—/\F=H=+—HI FZ

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Others

Major terms of the crude oil future contract as at 1 April 2016 is as
follows:

6. PTEERIT A (5)

i ()

HAt

RIZB-RFOA—H  RhREEHNZEE
KBS -

Particular Quantity (Unit) Maturity

EZE B8 (B ) Ep )=

Crude oil August 16 30 20 July 2016

BN\ A+<AE 30 —~NFtA=-+H

The fair value of the above future contract are determined based on
the quoted market bid prices available on the New York Mercantile
Exchange on the date of initial recognition and at the end of the reporting
period.

Realised gain on settlement of derivative financial assets of
approximately nil (2017: HK$907,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2017. All future contracts were sold during the year ended 31 March
2017.

Included in the derivative financial instruments are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of relevant
group entity:

—E-N\F
=ZA=+—H

RNTHERBBRNRERR - LRBHEAD
ZARETDRBEARBOE R ZERSZT
SITRENEBETE

HEETESREEZEZ2BRENT(ZE
—+tF  B¥07,000 ) EREE_T—tF
—A=+—BIEFEZAIEBRRNER 7
EHEAHNBEREBE_ZE—tF=-A=1+—8H
IEFEEH -

TESBTABETIAREREEERZD
BEEBIN N BEFHEZ 28 -

31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF

=A=+—H MA—HB

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT BEFT BETFT

United States Dollar (“USD”) Ex(l%Ex])

SRR R AR
o /\ﬁ‘iil“iiﬁ
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ - F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand
and cash at financial institutions with an original maturity of three

27. Re MR T FEY

RekReFEVERERTRE  FHRAS
KRB HEIR A =l A AR 2 7R & B

months or less: BZIHE0T -
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F —E—+F ZE-RF
=A=+—H —A=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BETIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(geE5) (Fe&E5)
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEeLFERAE 282,974 148,268 102,098
Cash at financial institutions REpidE s Re 43 8 2,209
283,017 148,276 104,307

Cash at bank and financial institutions carried interest at market
rates which range from 0.01% to 0.35% (31 March 2017 and 1
April 2016: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

Included in the cash and cash equivalents are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of relevant group entities:

RITHEEENEMBBZEESENTEHF
0.01%E035%(ZF—tF=A=+—8xK
TE—RFNAF—H : 0.01%E0.35% )2

SFIRE . -

RehReEEMEBRTIINREEEEE
BZMEEEBIAIN ERHEZ 28 ¢

31 March 31 March 1 April

2018 2017 2016

—E-N\F —E—+F ZEREF

=A=+—HB =A=+—H mA—R

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T BT T

Usb S 217 114 2,007
RMB AR 95 93 104
AUD JRIT 69 71 366
Other currencies Hibh B 129 111 116

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFEZE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$68,316,000 (31 March 2017: HK$56,715,000 and 1 April
2016: HK$8,975,000) are placed with banks in the PRC. The
remittance of those funds out of the PRC is subject to the
exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

MARGIN LOANS PAYABLE

As at 31 March 2018, the margin loans payable was secured
by the listed equity securities placed in a financial institution
held under the margin accounts with total market value of
approximately HK$110,612,000 (notes 20 and 25).

As at 31 March 2017, the margin loans payable was secured
by the listed equity securities placed in a financial institution
held under the margin accounts with total market value of
approximately HK$358,289,000 (notes 20 and 25).

As at 1 April 2016, the margin loans payable was secured by the
listed equity securities and deposits placed in a financial institution
held under margin accounts with total market value and carrying
amount of approximately HK$622,655,000 and HK$773,000
respectively (notes 20, 22 and 25).

The margin loans payable carried a fixed interest rate at 3% (31
March 2017 and 1 April 2016: 3%) per annum.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are
repayable on demand.

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amount is non-interest bearing, unsecured and is repayable
on demand.

27.

28.

29.

30.

ReRASFED @
AREBHESRBASEBMHNEE
68,316,000/ L(ZE—+F=A=+—H : &
¥ 56,715,000 T ZZE—XFMA—H : &
# 8,975,000 7T ) JIF BN B 2 $R1T © 5%
EESELRREAZRA RN E K25
BEE & 1 BR Al ©

N RESER

R-ZZE—NFZA=+—H WELBAY
75 #5110,612,000 7T 2 FEHR B S BT BA
RESEPETARINERIEETMZ L
TIRATE HEE A (M5 20 &2 25) ©

RZZE—+tF=A=+—0 MEEELAD
75 15 358,289,000 7T 2 JEHR B & BRI IA
RESEPETARINGRIEETRZ £
MR B HVEHE IR (P 3E20 & 25) ©

R-ZZ—X"FNA—A mELFELE@E
o B A 7S 622,655,000 7T & # 773,000
T2 ENRESERIARBESRFE AT
Bz LRAZBLENeREETR RS
VBRI (FEE20 ~ 22 2. 25) ©

EMREBESEREETCFHEIR (ZF—+
FZA=+—BR-ZZE—XRFEFMA—AH:
3%)FTE o

FETRAE A A1 BR X

ZPAR/RE - BEA AR ERREER

BN —REFEFIA

ZHRARRL - BEARANEREEE

Bl

SR E R T AR A
e WA
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31. B MEMEIIRK

31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F —E—+F ZE—RF
=B=+—H —A=+—H MA—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(ge=51) (5 =%1))
Trade payables B 5 REMNERR 4,430 4,366 2,743
Receipts in advance TR FRIE 41,760 313,309 423,912
Accrual TERRE M 60,743 10,213 8,764
Other payable HAbETERR 36,680 26,023 56,750
143,613 353,911 492,169

Note: Included in other payables was an amount of approximately MiaE - HAER BRI B IE LB 6,240,0007T (=F

—tF=A=+—8 : #%6,240,000 7T =
T—RFEMA—H : A%51,296,0007T) 2 5
B RZE—RE-A+—A5kE M~
M QB8R T 37.5% B BT AR A FE A FE4E
MiERsRE ZREAEER 28 RAE

REREFEE

HK$6,240,000 (31 March 2017: HK$6,240,000 and 1 April 2016:
HK$51,296,000) which represented the consideration payable to the
non-controlling interests in respect of the acquisition of the remaining
37.5% of issued share capital of a subsidiary on 11 January 2016. The
amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

RBEMK  BHRNEFRERAH2R

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. ZERIRAHTINT -
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F —E—+F ZE—REF
=A=+—B =A=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(gEE5) (FE5)

Within 30 days 30 HA

31 to 60 days 31260H 336 406 154
61 to 90 days 612 90H - 2,222 220
Over 181 days 181 HEAE 4,094 1,738 2,369
4,430 4,366 2,743

The average credit term on purchase of goods is 60-180 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

19 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

32. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE 32. REEHEAYE
A motor vehicle of the Group is held under a finance lease for the AEBEE_ZT—"F-A=1+—HLEFE
year ended 31 March 2016. The lease term was 3.4 years. The ZAEIRERENERE - HAIAS4F - B
obligation under a finance lease carried effective interest rate at BHEAEREGFEI79% < EREFIEGE -
3.79% per annum. Interest rate was fixed at the contract date. FMEREHHEET - BENRETENE
The lease was on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements T MW EF A S FRET L HE

had been entered into for contingent rental payments.

Minimum lease payment Present value of minimum lease payment
REAENT REAENRZRE
31 March 31 March 1 Apri 31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016

2\ ZZtF ZZEf ZB-N\f T+t CZTF
=ZB=t-H ZA=t-H MA—-A =R=+-B =A=1+—H mA—A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BB BETT BETT BB

Amounts payable under BEHEETERZIE

finance leases:
Within one year R—ER - - 1,400 - - 1,374
Less: Future finance charges il : AXRBAEFR - - (26) - - NA
Present value of lease obligations  FE#E 2 B E - - 1,374 - - 1,374

Less: Amount due within one year i : st AGEIEEZ

included under current R—ERZH 258

fabilties - - (1,374
Amount due for settlement I ZERREZE TR

after twelve months = - -

The Company’s obligation under a finance lease was secured AARRREREE T 2 AEHEHBAAZ
by the lessors’ charge over the leased asset. Such pledge was HEBEEER - R-_Z—+5_F F#
released upon the full repayment of the obligation under finance ERENBHEEREREERT 2 &IERR
lease in February 2017. B o

8 8 A R
—— w01
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—-F— )\ F=HA=+—HIFE

33. BANK BORROWINGS 33. RITE
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F —E—tF —E—RF
=HA=+—H —A=+—H mA—HA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(ge=5)) (5eE5))
Secured bank borrowings EHEPERITER - 57,986 330,987
As at 31 March 2017, the secured bank borrowings of RZZE—EF=A=+—08 2 E&RRTE
approximately HK$57,986,000 is repayable within one year LB HE 57,986,000 TTBR —F NEE I
and contain a repayable on demand clause (1 April 2016: EREKEERER(ZE—RFOA—H : &
approximately HK$330,987,000 was repayable within one year 78 5 330,987,000 LB R — F B 8 R 48
and without repayable on a demand clause). BEREREN) o
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—ZE-N\F —E—+F ZE—REF
=RA=+—H —A=+—H MA—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(FeE5) ($eE%1))
Effective interest rate: BRI
Fixed rate borrowings TEEMERK N/A 8% 11.62%
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

33. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

0)

(i)

33. IRTTIEN (&)

FisE
The secured bank borrowings were guaranteed by the directors of the (i) EEMRRITENHNBAREERTAERE
subsidiary and the related party which is wholly owned by Mr. Li. BEZBEEATIEER -
The amounts of banking facilities and the utilisation at the end of the (ii) RMEHR - RITBREREHASEERIIW
reporting period are set out as follows: T
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E2-N\F —T—tF ZT—REF
=A=+—8~ =A=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BB T T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(& =51) (#&E5)
Facility amount mME LR 150,096 394,844 481,436
Utilisations at 31 March R=ZA=+—HZESHA:HE
- Secured bank borrowings — B EIRIRITIE K - 57,986 330,987

As at 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 2018, the above banking
facilities were secured by assets pledged as set out in note 39.

RZZE-—REWNA—-RB TR _-F
—N\EFEZA=+—8 ' ElRTEE AT FE39
Fidl 2z BB E E R o

S AR R AT PR A WD
e AT
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

subscribe for 553,785,000 (2017: 69,765,000) ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.01 each at an aggregate consideration of

approximately HK$266,973,000 (2017: HK30,395,000) in which
approximately HK$5,538,000 (2017: HK$698,000) was credited to
share capital and the balance of approximately HK$261,435,000
(2017: HK$29,697,000) was credited to the share premium account.
Share option reserve of approximately HK$22,343,000 (2017:
HK$11,898,000) has been transferred correspondingly to the share

premium account in according with policy set out in note 4.

All the new shares issued during both years rank pari passu with the

existing shares in all respects.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. BRZX
Number of shares Share capital
RHEE RA
31 March 31 March 1 April 31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016
“B-0\f B+ ZEF ZB-N\§f _T+tF T F
ZA=t-B =ZA=1-H MA-B ZA=t+-H =A=+-H MA—-H
’000 '000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk ik ik BETT BETT BETT
Authorised ordinary shares SREESL0.01T
of HK$0.01 each: LEEEER
At the beginning and the end RABEEFIRER
of the financial year 10,500,000 10,500,000 10,500,000 105,000 105,000 105,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary SREESL0.01 T2
shares of HK$0.01 each: BETRATEER
At the beginning of the financial year ~— RETHEEEY 5318163 4935796 3,304,640 53,182 49,358 33,046
- Share options exercised (note () —BiTRERE () 553,785 69,765 18,800 5,538 698 188
- Issue of shares upon conversion —BEATRRESR
of convertible bonds (note (i) BRI (WL () 58,824 424242 1,909,091 588 4,242 19,091
— Shares repurchased and — R ER R
cancelled (note (ii) (P i) (58,800)  (111,640) (296,735 (588) (1,116) (2,967)
- Issue of shares (note (i) ~E7IR1 (3 ) 1,072,000 - - 10,720 - -
At the end of the financial year RIBERER 6,943972 5318163 4935796 69,440 53,182 49,358
Notes: F3E -
0] During the year ended 31 March 2018, options were exercised to (i) REE_T—)\F=ZA=1+—HBLEFERN "

fE R 1T - DARRAE 2N A /] 553,785,000
(= ZF — + 4 :69,7650000% ) F & @

BEEELOI Tz AR RREHNABE
266,973,000 7T (= Z —+4F : ¥ 30,395,000
JT) » HAp %788 5,538,0007C( —F—+4F ¢
78 #698,0007T ) B & A MR A K £ 58 40 7 1
261,435,000 7T (ZZ —+4F : ¥ 29,697,000
)BT AR ZER - BRERBLLBE
22,343,000 L ( = F —+ 4 : #% 11,898,000
T) BARIRFIRE 4 Pk 2 BUR MR R E 55
BER -

PRE R IEFEANE BTN NS 77 m R
BL TR EBRSMHAL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$50,000,000 were converted into 58,823,529 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price
of HK$0.85 per share. As a result, the amount of HK$46,002,000 was
recognised in convertible bond reserves within equity.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$140,000,000 were converted into 424,242,424 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price
of HK$0.33 per share. The amount of approximately HK$199,519,000
was recognised in convertible bond reserves within equity.

All the new shares issued during both years rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all respects.

During the year 2018, the Company repurchased its own shares through

34. BN (&)
fsE : (48)

(i)

(i)

REE-_ZT—-\E=ZA=+—HILFE X%
¥ /751 50,000,000 7T 2 AR (B4 B IR EIE
&2 40 (& 5 A3 %5 5 0.85 7T & & 12 4 58,823,520
REREEBE0.01 T2 LBk - Bt - B
46,002,000 7T 2 Yam A ez R 2 ATA R (B 5 7
HPER o

HE-_ZT—+F=A=1+—0 KE&LEABK
140,000,000 7t 2 Al R E# B R E T HRE
GRS 0.33 TLIE IR & 424,242,424 IR TR
FEEB0.01 L2 E @A - 5% 199,519,000
TLZ WS AR R 2 AT R AR (E 5 P AR -

FABBBITHRNES T MgERERNZ
R AL o

REZZF—N\FE  AABEREEBRIAER

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong as follows: HEBHRMHOT :
No. of
ordinary Aggregate
shares of consideration
HK$0.01 each Price per share paid
SREE
BH0.01 T2
Month of repurchase BEE A% ZEREE BRER efERE
Highest Lowest
BSE BIEE
HK$’000 HKS HKS HK$’000
BT ok ok BT
July 2017 —E—+F+A 22,085 1.16 1.11 25,297
Aug 2017 —ZE—+FN\A 32,545 1.13 0.97 34,966
Sep 2017 —T—+FANA 4,170 0.96 0.95 3,993
58,800

S AR R AT PR A WD
e AT
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) (Continued)

34. PR ()
fsE : (48)

During the year 2017, the Company repurchased its own shares through

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong as follows:

(i)

(#)

REZB—EFR RNRBEBE BB AR
HEARGBA - IR

No. of
ordinary Aggregate
shares of consideration
HK$0.01 each Price per share paid
BREE
BH0.01 T2
Month of repurchase BE A& ZEREE BRER EfHANRE
Highest Lowest
BafE RIEE
HK$'000 HK$ HK$ HK$’000
BT FEHE ok BT
Apr 2016 —ET—XRFIMA 27,465 0.69 0.65 18,608
May 2016 —ET—XRFHA 3,150 0.67 0.65 2,070
Jun 2016 N 1,000 0.78 0.78 782
Jul 2016 —E-REtA 20,000 0.79 0.72 15,060
Aug 2016 —ZTE—RENA 60,025 0.75 0.60 40,780
111,640

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

(iv) On 15 December 2017 and 23 January 2018, arrangements were made
for a private placement to independent third parties of 600,000,000
shares and 472,000,000 shares of HK$0.443 and HK$0.69 each
on the two issuance dates respectively. They represent a discount
of approximately 20.00% and 19.77% to the closing market price of
the Company’s shares on 15 December 2017 and 23 January 2018

respectively.

The net proceeds were used for general working capital of the

Company. These new shares were issued under the general mandate

granted to the directors of the Company at the annual general meeting

of the Company held on 28 September 2017 and rank pari passu with

other shares in issue in all respects.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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v)

AR AR AR M 8 -

R_E—+F+_A+HEBER=_ZE—NFE—A
—+=8 " AWEZETERSRBIE=S
{E & AL A B & 600,000,000 A% K2 472,000,000
B SR A 0.443 TR BH0.69TT ° HEI/H
—E—+tF+_A+REER=ZZE—NF—A
—+ =B RIEAR R BRD T E T ED
20.00% % 19.77% °

IS FIEFRAEARBN —REEER -
ZERBRD IRBEARRR T —LFNA
ZHNBAETHRRBFRE LR TARF
BRI REEMBETREDRITZEMEN
EESTEZERSFHL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

35. AJHAXIEZF

£ O S 5 e o B

CB2 CB3 CB4 Total
MRRES2 TRRESS TRRES4 &%
(note (i)  (note (ii &iii) (note (v))
(BEEq)  (PHEE (i Kiii) (FzE (V)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT
Liability component at 1 April 2016 —E-RXFMA-BZ
E%EBT}J 115,414 - - 115,414
Add: Liability component on mn: NP RRE BES R
initial recognition - 222,246 - 222,246
Add: Effective interest expense (note 9) 1l - BEEA S EH (Hi5E9) 5,017 3,841 - 8,858
Reclassification of accrued coupon BN BEEHRESRE
interest to other payables E R - (2,020) - (2,020)
Converted into ordinary shares B &AL mAR (F534(i)
(note 34(i) (120,431) - - (120,431)
Liability component at 31 March R-Z—+&=F=+—HEF
2017 and 1 April 2017 “ZtFNA-AZ
B &R - 224,067 - 224,067
Add: Liability component i RYOSHERE 2 AR
on initial recognition - 475,471 625,612 1,101,083
Add: Effective interest expense (note 9) i + B FI S B (F59) - 109,108 803 109,911
Reclassification of accrued coupon BN BEESE
interest to other payables HitEERR - (46,848 - (46,848)
Early redemption during the year RERIZRER (K (v)
(note (iv) - (91,846) - (91,846)
Converted into ordinary shares Deih LR (M52 34()
(note 34(i) - (43,372) - (43,372)
Liability component at 31 March 2018 R=ZF—/\F=H=+—H
Z aEHn - 626,580 626,415 1,252,995
The convertible bonds - liability component are classified under AMRES—BEISH IO EAIFERIDEE

non-current liabilities.

BT -

SRR R AR
o /\ﬁ‘iiﬁ&
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes:

0)

(i)

The Group issued CB 2 with zero coupon rate at a total principal value
of HK$600,000,000 to its ultimate holding company, Wincon Capital.
The convertible bonds will mature at two years after issuing of the
convertible bonds. The detail maturity dates of each batch of issue are
shown in following table at its principal amount or can be converted
into 1,818,181,818 shares at any time between the date of issue of the
convertible bonds and the maturity date at the bondholder’s option at
rate of HK$0.33 per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$140,000,000 were converted into 424,242,424 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price
of HK$0.33 per share. The amount of approximately HK$199,519,000
was recognised in convertible bond reserves within equity.

The Group issued convertible bonds with 7% coupon rate at a total
principal value of HK$279,500,000 on 17 February 2017 and 14 March
2017 (the “CB 3”) to an independent third party. The convertible bonds
will mature in 3 years from date of issue at its principal amount or can
be converted into 328,823,529 shares at any time between the three
months after the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity
date at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.85 per share. The
Company shall have the right, as from the expiry of 15 months following
the date of issue of the convertible bonds, to partly or fully redeem the
convertible bonds early, by giving one month’s prior notice in writing to
the bondholder.

The Group further issued CB 3 at a total principal value of
HK$630,000,000 on 28 April 2017, 5 June 2017, 28 June 2017 and
30 June 2017 to independent third parties. The convertible bonds
will mature in 3 years from date of issue at its principal amount or can
be converted into 741,176,471 shares at any time between the three
months after the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity
date at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.85 per share. The
Company shall have the right, as from the expiry of 15 months following
the date of issue of the convertible bonds, to partly or fully redeem the
convertible bonds early, by giving one month’s prior notice in writing to
the bondholder.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

35. AJ}RES (@)

fGE

()

N E B BT AR E 4858 A7 600,000,000 7T 2
TEBARRESR2 FEKKERAGKEE
AN o AR EF AR BT I R E S B R F R
Hy o BBITHOA ZFMBBAR TRIZEA S
BATRSESEAA(RBITIREES 2 A
EREW B B ) ERRERE0.33
TC2 Lt R 5 1,818,181,818 Rk °

HE-_Z—+F-A-+—HLEFE A28
A5 140,000,000 7T 2 Al R (B % B 12 B E
BT IRE N 0.33 LR & 424,242, 424 %
RNABGRAEESE0.01 T2 BB - £FH
75 15199,519,000 7T B 7 5 B AT 42 AR (& 5 6
PR -

AEER-_Z—+F_A+EtAR=FT—LF
;ﬂ+ma%§a$fﬁ 137%,%@%279500000

TT%ZEER AR ES (AT ESS])
F—RBUE=F o JBREFBREASE
BETARAIFANRBERELEFAA (R
BTAMRES 2 B =EAZEm B LM
BERS) AR IBIR GBI 085 T2 L R A
328,823,529 ik 15 - AR RIE BB EEITA
BmRES 2z A% 15E AEREERRERTE
ANBELE—EA B EEmBAN M0 SEEIR
FHEL A RRES

AEER-_ZE—tFMNA=+NE ZT—+
FRNARH - ZE—+FXRAZZFTNBERZE
—t+FRNRA=ZTRE—SRITASRAERBE
630,000,000 T2 FI#AREH S FEILE=F °
ARREF IR A EABITH R 3F
NEEISESF A A (RETIIRRESZA
B=1AAZERB EAEER) LR RRTRE
¥ 0.85 L2 Lh R8I B 741,176.471 BRARD ©
RATEEREEEITAHRRES 2 BE15M@A
EmEEBRNEFFAEARL—BAAZELEE
E 3 &0 3010 B BUR R B B A AR 5 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 35. A[HARRIE S (&)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

The convertible bonds issued during the year ended 31 March 2017
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as
follows:

M« (48)
(i) (5)

REHIBRRARBERZBE—_T—LF=A
=t RIEFERABRITZARBESNAT

amount of approximately HK$27,427,000 has been recognised
under the “Loss arising from changes in fair value of derivative

17 February 2017 14 March 2017 Total
—T—+tF —E—tF
—RA++H =A+mA &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT BT
Cash received BdGE S 220,000 59,500 279,500
Fair values of derivative financial TECRBEZARE
liabilities (Note) (F5E) 21,467 5,960 27,427
Fair values of convertible BEETARREFZAAE
bonds issued 241,467 65,460 306,927
Fair values of financial assets SREEZ AR 21,030 7,147 28,177
Equity conversion component e B IR IR (88,189) (24,669) (112,858)
Liability component on initial REITH VSRR
recognition at issue date BEZMHN 174,308 47,938 222,246
Maturity date ZIE5H 17 February 2020 14 March 2020
—T-TF ke Sl S5
—A++tA =A-+mA
Note: Within the total of fair value of derivative financial liabilities above, MEE : R EOTES B EZ AR ERED -

H7BHE 27,427, 000 L SEEEREZEZ
T—+F=A=+—HIEFEZAHE

financial liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss HR[ITESRHBEZARNEETESL
for the year ended 31 March 2017. ZK5IE ] NEERR o

The fair values of financial assets represented the early

ERMEENAABERTE T AREES

redemption options granted to the issuer of the convertible 1T AR F S Ol HAAE o

bonds.

SIS MR T AR A
e SAS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # %2 — =

—NFZRA=H—HILFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 35. ARG E & (@)

Notes: (Continued) MIsE - (48)

(i)  The convertible bonds issued during the year ended 31 March 2018 iy MEMUBRIAKERZBZE=-Z—/\F=A
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as =+ BIFERBETZARRESET
follows:

28 April 28 April 5 June 5 June 28 June 30 June
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
E-tE It ZE+E ZEtF ZEtE ZT-tF
BA-TNE MWA-t/\R ~ARA ~ARR  AAZTAR ~AZtH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTL BETT BT BETT BETT BT BRI
Cash received BhEs 68,500 20,000 91,500 50,000 170,000 230,000 630,000
Fair values of derivative financial liabiies (Note) ~ §54 B8 A4 E (1) 42539 12,420 69,932 38,214 65,716 19,775 348,596
Fair values of convertile bonds issued BEATARRRZARE 111,089 32420 161,432 88,214 235,716 349,775 978,59
Fair values of financial assets SBEEIDAE 4,309 1,268 8,567 4,682 12,99 21,538 53,350
Equity conversion component EREndh (63,022) (18,401) (100,160) (64,782) (121,202) (198,938) (556,475)
Liability component on initial recognition REGRENSED
at issue date LEERR 52,326 16,277 69,839 38,164 127,490 172,375 475,471
28 April 28 April 5 June 5June 28 June 30 June
Maturity date 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
%A ZBC%E CECTF CECRF OB CTCRE CE3CERf
mA-+\B MEA-+/\B ~NAEA ~ARE  A~AZTAB ~A=TH

Note: Within the total of fair value of derivative financial liabilities above,
amount of approximately HK$252,021,000 has been recognized
under the “Loss arising from changes in fair value of derivative
financial liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2017. The remaining amount of
approximately HK$96,575,000 was recognized under the “Loss

arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial liabilities”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended

31 March 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$50,000,000 were converted into 58,823,529 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price
of HK$0.85 per share. As a result, the amount of HK$46,002,000 was

recognised in convertible bond reserves within equity.

All the new shares issued during both years rank pari passu with the

existing shares in all respects.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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MisE : R EMSTESMBE s AR ELRES -
#)BHE252,021,000 L2 S EEREZE
T tHF=ZA=t+-RLFEZEH
Bak MTEeRaBrzAREEHE
2 E1E ] REER o #9785 96,575,000
THEEREE T\ HF=A=1+—
HIEFEZAMHBRER [TTEeRBE
ZAREEBELZEIR] NHER -

HE-_Z—- ) \E=ZA=+—HILFE  &X&%H
75 50,000,000 7T 2 AT G E 5 A B IS
0.85 7T 2 [EF 2 (B8535 5 58,823,529 IR T A%
EEBE0.01 T2 AR R L@ - FH L - A%
46,002,000 7T 2 & FERA I 2 I 80 AR AR (B 5 A

R EFE TR B MAE A 7 mis 8
BEBRNZERS MM -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZF - F—/\F=H=+—HIFZ

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

On 16 January 2018 and 22 March 2018, the Company had early
redeemed the CB 3 with principal amount of HK$12,500,000 and
HK$100,000,000 at redemption amount, including accrued coupon
interest, of approximately HK$13,078,000 and HK$103,630,000, which
held by two bonds holders, Safe Arena Limited and Like Faith Global
Investment Limited respectively. The accrual interest up to redemption date
is approximately HK$10,986,000, of which approximately HK$3,630,000
was unpaid at year end of the reporting period. The fair value of the liability
component was remeasured at the date of redemption with the difference
between the fair value of the liability component and the redemption
cost allocated to equity component, details are set out on note 26. As a
result, an aggregated loss of approximately HK$34,838,000 (i.e. loss on
early redemption of liability component of the convertible bonds and early
redemption options of approximately HK$11,282,000 and HK$23,556,000
respectively) was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Upon the redemption of all convertible bonds, the remaining value of the
conversion option reserve of approximately HK$89,355,000 was released
to accumulated losses.

The Group issued CB 4 with zero coupon rate at a total principal value of
HK$1,000,000,000 to the directors of the Company on 26 March 2018
as the consideration for the acquisition of 100% equity interest of United
Faith Group pursuant to the acquisition agreement dated 21 June 2017.
Details of such acquisition are set out in Company’s circular dated on
28 February 2018. The convertible bonds will mature at five years after
issuing of the convertible bonds. The detail maturity dates of each batch
of issue are shown in following table at its principal amount or can be
converted into 1,250,000,000 shares at any time between the date of
issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the bondholder’s
option at rate of HK$0.8 per share.

The convertible bonds issued during the year ended 31 March 2018
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as
follows:

35. A[}RES (@)

C (&)

RZE—NF—A+NBEZ=ZT—N\F=A
_+ B KRABAEREEE( a?ﬁﬁﬁm )
#) 7% ¥ 13,078,000 7T & 7% % 103,630,000 70
1R R BRI A E%5EE A Safe Arena Limited
K Like Faith Global Investment Limited %
BB 2 7K & %8 7% % 12,500,000 7T N5
100,000,000 7t 2 AI R E#3 - B EFE S A
B2 FEET R B 40 B8 #10,986,000 7T © H
m%&%s 630,000 TT A F R H AR Z AT © ‘Eﬁﬁ
ZARBERERE BEHGE  mMAaERn
Z/Afc BEERKANZ ZEEHEEEE 7
(FHIBEENIHEE26) © Bt + #9751 34,838,000
L2 B 1A EE (BMR R ER AT R E 5 A &SP
MZBEERRTERHE L BED LB
11,282,000 7T I 78 ¥ 23,556,000 7T ) 1A & 418
mERTHER - BT RREFHERE - 7]
AR E 5 i 2 #2585 1 89,355,000 JT i =
25EE -

$%|§ﬁ/\ )\fﬁ A= +/\E|§§TT$'§E
éﬁﬁaﬁé% 000,000,000 T2 TR E A B E
HFATARAES  FRBREARA-Z—+
FRAZT—HHRBRZREEEEERI
BEARE - ZWEEBENFBERNAARAE
HAE-_ZT—N\F-_A-1+/\BHEK - AT
EHBREITAIRRES B AT - 8317
R Z MBI AR TRIZEA SRR EE
HFREBARBITARKESZBZERBEH
fEIpaRY ) AR BIZBRER 0.8 T2 b R A
1,250,000,000 P& 7 °

REHUBRAARERZBE_FT—/\F=A
=T REFEADETZABMBRESOT

26 March 2018

—E-N\F

=H=+7H

HK$’000

BT T

Fair values of convertible bonds issued EETIRRKRESCARE 1,369,188
Equity conversion component RIS (743,576)
Liability component on initial recognition RETEBYILSERZ EEH 625,612

at issue date
Maturity date ZHAA 27 March 2023
—E-=
=A=++tH

A 8 A R
——ngem 2U1
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(vi)

The fair value of the above convertible bonds was valued by an
independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited (“JLL”"), as at issue date. CB 2 and CB 3 comprise
a liability component, an equity conversion component and early
redemption options whereas CB 4 comprises a liability component and
equity conversion component.

The fair values of the unlisted bond component were calculated by using
a market interest rate of similar non-extendable and non-convertible
bonds. The fair values of the convertible bonds were valued by using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The residual amount, representing the
value of the equity conversion component, is included in the convertible
bond equity conversion reserve under equity attributable to the owners
of the Company.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &% —E—/\F=H=+—HI F&
36. DEFERRED TAXATION 36. HELEFTISH
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are WA AT HOERFI T 2 R B IEEE
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax HEZHTIEBENREREMSTER—E
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income B R - RIS EAE RELEFRE
tax relates to the same fiscal authority. HaEEREE -
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets (liabilities), FRERIEEE (BE) CEEBERERTEE
after set off certain deferred tax assets against deferred tax A TELEHRBEERNELERBEER 5
liabilities of the same taxable entity, for financial reporting HranT
purposes:
The Group
AEH
At 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\E —E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(KeE5) (&E5))
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE - 1,675 4,935
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE (2,204) _ _
(2,204) 1,675 4,935

8 8 A R
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36. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 36. EIEMFHAE @)
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) IWTARFENBAFECHRAZ TBRIT
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior HBEaE(EE) RAEZEFHBR
years:
Unrealised
gain on
investments

Accelerated at fair value

tax through
depreciation  profit or loss Tax losses LAT Total

RER

BASRE

nE  EEzZREZ
BIBHE RERWEH BEER TiEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ABTL AETT AETT BB ABTT

At 1 Apri 2016 RZZE-7"FMA—-H

(As previously reported)  (FNSEATEHR) 372 219 (591) - -
Effect of business REAZSTEBE 22

combinations under

common control - - - (4,935) (4,935)
At 1 April 2016 RZZ—"EMA—H

(as restated) (&&5) 372 219 (591) (4,9395) (4,935)
Charged (credited) to ez (GTA)

profit or loss 409 (208) (201) 3,010 3,010
Exchange realignment [& = - - - 250 250
At 1 April 2017 RZE—t5MA—H

(as restated) (&&5) 781 11 (792) (1,675) (1,675)
Charged (credited) to REZRME (GTA)

profit or loss 402 782 (1,184) 3,853 3,858
Exchange realignment [& i = - - - 26 26
At 31 March 2018 RZE—-\F=A—H 1,183 793 (1,976) 2,204 2,204

204 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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36. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$437,796,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$383,734,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$337,839,000 as restated)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of approximately HK$11,976,000 (31
March 2017: HK$4,800,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$3,582,000) of
such losses.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining unused tax losses of approximately HK$425,820,000
(31 March 2017: HK$378,934,000 and 1 April 2016:
HK$334,808,000 as restated) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$3,588,000 (1 April 2017: HK$2,171,000 and 1
April 2016: HK$1,767,000 as restated) that will expire in the next
five years. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$3,280,000 (31
March 2017: HK$3,207,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$1,860,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$67,636,000
(31 March 2017: HK$2,567,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$2,098,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

6. IEIEATSHLA E ()

REBAR - AEBARSARBEEIBLE
437,796,000 ( — T —+E=A=+—
B : B #383,734,0000t & = F — N F Y
A — H: % #337,839,000 0 (4 & 71 )
AHEHEARK G - ERZEEBOEL
11,976,000 (= E—tF=HA=+—H : &
#4,800,0007C R =FE—RFMA—H : B
3,582,000 7T) HERELETIIB & E o

B A AR 2R i ) SRR 2 7 A TEDRD - Bl 4 5k
& T K B) A T 18 B 18 408 % 425,820,000
T(ZE—+FE=ZfF=+—H: BK
378,934,000tk —ZE—RXFWMAH—H : &
#& 334,808,000 7T (4L &) ) MEREAIRIERE
BHEE - AERBEBEREBENARRESF
[ 2 1B 4078 3,588,000 T (=T —+4F
MA—A : #B#2,171,0007t % —Z— /X F MY
B—H8 : ##%1,767,000 T (KEF)) - Efth
518 P AEFR AR AL EE o

RMEBR  AEEREUMRERERELD
13,280,000 ( ZFE—+F=H="+—
A B#3,207,000t R = F —RFMA—
B : % 1,860,0007T) ° AT AR REETS
FERRBLE R ] AR S AT R B RS 2 58 - W
I 4 kA5 B AT R B B A R R (R R
BEE -

BECEREHE  BZTEENF—HA—H
AR BE AR BB 2 B P BR AR M B R 2 AR B E
BURTENR - WERE HI B wER AT E
B AR 2 R5a 448 %67,636,0007T( =
T—tHF=A=1+—H : B¥2,567,0007TK
ZE-R"FMA—H : B%2,098,0007T) &
B2 ERERCRERBEELRE  REA
REBENEHZEEREE 2B ER/R
ZEER ARG TR LR AR RS R E -

S B A R4 )
e AT
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital structure to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the margin loans payable, obligation under a finance
lease, convertible bonds, amounts due to related companies / a
director and bank borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company comprising
share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risk associated with each
class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. @t TH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EMIENER
31 March 31 March 31 March
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F —E—+F ZE—RF
=H=+-—8 =A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEET T BET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7) (&ZE7)
Financial assets EMEE
FVTPL REBERZR AR EERE
- Held for trading investments ~ —#{EEERE 63,035 360,775 650,159
— Derivative financial instruments —f#TE & @ T A 142,216 32,988 711
Available-for-sale financial assets ]t H &4 ghE & 65,807 66,861 75,466
Loans and receivables (including &7k & FEWFUE (215
cash and cash equivalents) ReMRESEEY) 2,265,560 742,582 466,835
2,536,618 1,203,206 1,193,171
Financial liabilities cREE
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 &8 T A - 252,021 -
At amortised cost T SH R AR 1,369,750 946,204 1,327,123
1,369,750 1,198,225 1,327,123

8 B4 R 7
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale financial assets, other receivables and deposits,
loan and interest receivables, finance lease receivables,
derivative financial instruments, held for trading investments,
cash and cash equivalents, margin loans payable, trade
and other payables, amounts due to related companies,
amount due to a director, bank borrowings, obligation under
finance lease and convertible bonds. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate finance lease receivables,
loan and interest receivables, margin loans payable,
secured bank borrowings and obligation under
finance lease.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to floating-rate cash and cash
equivalents carried at prevailing market rates.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

38. @RI T H (%)

(b)

TRlEREEE RN RBER

AEENTFECRTABEAIREES
BEE « BEMEURRRFAES - &
WERRFE - EREEHREFIE - 17
HSERTA  HEEERE  Ha KR
SEEY  BRNRESENR ZEHRE
fhFERTERR - FETRRE A TIBRSK « BT
—HBEEHIE - BITER - BEHEER
ERAMERESF ZFeMITAEZF
BEREFEBEMZARKE - Bt EESR
T AR R 2 1E TSR (FIRE
% B RERREMERER) FE
B RmENE SRR o T XXEFI R
ZEBHEE TEETENREEZS
[BURR - ARER KA B RO B E
i

AEERETENEEERERE
RIE - BWERRFE - BN
RESER  CEBRTERK
BEHEAE@EAAEBNEE

G o
A

AREBRAEARITH SN X E
ZEBRENREEEYERR
ERENEER

AR B AT R ER R
A EEESEEMEER
A # 74 F8 HA 3R B KN o g B
EEEMEMBEITE ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ O S 5 e o B

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. € T H @)
(b) £REREERNRBEK @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
prevailing market rates arising from the Group’s bank
balances denominated in HK$ and RMB base deposit
rate stipulated by the PRC arising from the Group’s
bank balances denominated in RMB.

The directors of the Company consider that the
interest rate risk in relation to variable rate bank
balances is insignificant due to these balances are
either within short maturity period or the outstanding
balances are not significant.

FEEReRMEBEAR ZMERE
@A LR ENE 2 B B IR
Eigtit - AEBER & MEFEE
fEBEPRAEENEE A
R¥EFHE 2 S|RITAEBRPTAR T
SRR REBAARKEE
ZIRITEBREEZTBEREZA
REZEFRN KB ER -

ARREZRR  BRFEIRIT
BRZANXRERILTEX - REA

EEZ%%EE%ZﬂJEﬁEIEEﬂ%E%%

MERZ RMERERL TERX -

SRR R AR
o /\ﬁ‘iil“iiﬁ
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. @R T H @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) SEERERERNRBE @

policies (Continued)

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
PRC with most transactions mainly settled in HK$
and RMB. As at 31 March 2018, the Group holds
available-for-sale financial assets and bank deposits
denominated in AUD and USD. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the Group’s functional currency.
The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging the
potential foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

AEEEENFERTEEER
B EABORXBEBENEE
RANREEE -R_T—\F=
A=1+—8 A&EEFHRT
RETHEZAHRKESREE
RERITFHR » SMNERBRINE KRR
BEXZXCHEABEEXAFN
WHIAEENGEEE 2 BB HE
H%Ei o ANER 0 M HNE BRI
BB ERIMNER
&H—JEAZ‘EHT%J%iT/q:’/EEM\
Rk -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets RIREHR  AEEUBREBEE
denominated in currencies other than the respective ERZEBNREEUINZ
functional currencies of the relevant group entities at BEEGTEcEEEE ZREAED
the end of the reporting period are as follows: T~
Assets

31 March 31 March 1 April

2018 2017 2016

—E-N\F —tF ZE—REF

=HA=+—H —A=+—H MA—H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT BT

(Restated) (Restated)

€ =2l (geE=5)

AUD SEIT 65,876 66,932 75,832

RVB AR 95 2,947 2,976

usD ET 217 114 2,718

Others E 129 111 116

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &R T H ()

b) REAREEBENRBEEM®E)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

As the Group had no material foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 2018, no significant
impacts on the results of the Group would arise from
the changes in foreign currency rates, accordingly no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and these
investments are classified on the consolidated
statement of financial position either as available-for-
sale financial assets or held for trading investments.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. In addition, the management has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period.

ARAEER T —NFEOA—
H ZZ2—tFRk_ZT—N\F
ZA=+t—HBEAFRERIINE
FIEEREEREBE  AEEN
FETEEIMNEZ T X B M
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#T o
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

If the share price of the listed investments classified
as held for trading investments had been increased/
decreased by 20% (31 March 2017: 20% and
1 April 2016: 20%) and all other variables were held
constant, the post-tax loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$10,527,000 (31 March 2017:
HK$60,249,000 and 1 April 2016: HK$108,577,000)
resulting from the changes in fair value of these listed
investments.

If the share price of the listed investments classified as
available-for-sale financial assets had been increased/
decreased by 20% (31 March 2017: 20% and 1 April
2016: 20%) and all other variables were held constant,
the investment valuation reserve as at 31 March
2018 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$13,161,000 (31 March 2017: HK$13,372,000
and 1 April 2016: HK$15,093,000) resulting from the
changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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B AN4) 7 10,527,000 7T
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale
financial assets, held for trading investments, derivative
financial instrument, other receivables and deposits, loan
and interest receivables, finance lease receivables and cash
and cash equivalents.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the amount of contingent
liabilities in relation to financial guarantee issued by the
Group as disclosed in note 49.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has imposed various monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that its credit risk is
significantly reduced.

In respect of other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on their recoverability based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The directors
of the Company believe that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

In respect of loan and interest receivables and finance lease
receivables, representing financing advances to customers
under the Group’s loan financing and financial leasing
business, individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
financial background and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

In respect of the loan and interest receivables arising from
the Group’s loan financing business, 16% (2017: 47%) of
the total gross loan and interest receivables as at 31 March
2018 was due from the Group’s largest customer and 61%
(2017: 82%) of the total gross loan and interest receivables
as at 31 March 2018 was due from the Group’s five largest
customers for the Group’s loan financing business.

In respect of the finance lease receivables arising from the
Group’s financial leasing business, 100% (2017: 100%)
of the total gross finance lease receivable as at 31 March
2018 was due from the Group’s largest customer and 100%
(2017: 100%) of the total gross finance lease receivables
as at 31 March 2018 was due from the Group’s five largest
customers for the Group’s financial leasing business.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. LRI T H (&
(b) REREER N RBX @

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for loan and interest receivables is in the PRC,
which accounted for 55% (2017: 75%) of loan and interest
receivables as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for finance lease receivables is mainly in the PRC,
which accounted for 100% (2017: 100%) of finance lease
receivables as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

The directors of the Company consider the credit risk in
respect of other receivables, finance lease receivables and
loan and interest receivables are under control since the
management exercises due care in granting credit and
checking the financial background of these customers on a
regular basis.

The credit risk on liquid fund is limited because they are
deposited with banks, financial institutions or investment
counterparties with high credit ratings and the Group does
not expect any significant counterparty risk.

REBZEE D 2 RBKERRFS 2
EERBREFRFE HRZF—\F
kZZE—+F=A=1+—HZEKER
MFEZ55% (=T —+HF : 75%) °

REEZME SIS 2 EWENE &SI
ZEERBREBERRFER  HRZF
—N\ER-_FT—+FZA=+—AHZE
WREREFRIEZ 100% (—F—+H4F
100%) °

HREEEERR TEEMNEMREZ
ERFPZUMBES  AUARRESFR
SEREMBEIER - KR EHEER
BEREEEREMNSEERRTZE
i o

HRRBE S FHNERTT - SEEFR
ZEMEERIRERSET  AREZ
EFERBRARMASEERLEEME
RZRZEFRR -

SRR R AR
o Aiﬁﬂ“ﬁiﬁ
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of margin
loan from a financial institution and bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely by
the management of the Company. The directors of the
Company believe that the Group will be able to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable
future.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
secured bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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38. @Rt T H (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

b) REAREEENRBEEM®E)

More than More than
On demand one yearbut  two years but Total
or within less than lessthan  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows amount
REXS BR-F BBMF KRR E
R-%R BARME BOREE RELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BRI BETR BETR
As at 31 March 2018 R-E-NE=A=1+-H
Non-dlerivative financial HFlt2BEE
liabilities
Margin loans payable ERRESER 12,727 - - 12,727 12,357
Trade and other payables B 5 RE MR 101,853 - - 101,853 101,853
Amount due to adirector ~ [EN—ZEE30E 72 - - 72 72
Amounts due to related ERBELRRR
companies 1,773 - - 1,773 1,773
Convertible bonds AR ES 52,200 52,290 1,735,186 1,839,766 1,252,995
169,415 52,290 1,735,186 1,956,891 1,369,750

S AR R AT PR A WD

e AT
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. @R T H @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) 2REABEEBNREE(HE)

policies (Continued)

More than More than
On demand one year but two years but Total
or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows Amount
REXH Ba—F BBMF PSRk
R—FR BORFE BORLE mELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BBt
As at 31 March 2017 RZB-tF=ZA=1-8
(As restated) (&E5)
Non-derivative financial HFiTE2HEE
liabilities
Margin loans payable ERRESER 183,633 - - 183,633 178,285
Trade and other payables B3 REMEMER 40,602 - - 40,602 40,602
Amount dueto adrector B —ZEZEH 78,281 - - 78,281 78,281
Amounts due to related R EERRR
companies 366,983 - - 366,983 366,983
Bank borrowings RITER 57,986 - - 57,986 57,986
Convertiole bonds akES 17,545 19,565 299,065 336,175 224,067
Financial guarantee (note) 15 &(R (Hizt) 41,740 - - 41,740 -
786,770 19,565 299,065 1,105,400 946,204

21 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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38. @Rt T H (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

b) REAREEENRBEEM®E)

More than More than
On demand one year but two years but Total
or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows Amount
REXH Ba—F BBMF PSRk
R—FR BORFE BORLE mELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BBt
As at 1 April 2016 R-E-~ENA-H
(As restated) (BE3)
Non-dlerivative financial HFiTE2HEE
liabilities
Margin loans payable ERRESER 377,757 - - 377,757 376,861
Trade and other payables B3 REMEMER 68,257 - - 68,257 68,257
Amount due toadirector BN —BEZEH 65,414 - - 65,414 65,414
Amounts due to related R EERRR
companies 368,816 - - 368,816 368,816
Bank borrowings RITER 331,550 - - 331,550 330,987
Convertiole bonds wakES - 140,000 - 140,000 115,414
Obligations under finance ~ EETERE
leases 1,400 1,400 1,374
Financial guarantee (note) ~ BT&HE(R (FisE) 44,533 - - 44,533 -
1,257,727 140,000 - 1,397,727 1,327,123
Note: The amount included above for financial guarantee contract is MizE . FFALRWNVBRRENSBERETE

the maximum amount the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterpart to the guarantee. Based
on expectation at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that the Group considers that it is more likely than not
that no amount will be payable under the arrangement and the
fair value of such contract at initial recognition is insignificant.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee
which is a function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterpart which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

FHRBEREFLHBAROBRT - KE
B R ARBEEEREREBRIDEE
BRALE - REREHRNER - £
KERRRE A ERIEZ R PSR
FRAZAHRTGERFHN AR
EEBEX - R - WAFREREF
TRBERRERRRZAEERA
% i R R Z A REIE R BUR K &
F 3R BRI B RUGRRHIRE
BEERZ AR -

S AR R AT PR A WD
e AT
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or within one year” time band in
the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2018 and 2017
and 1 April 2016, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to nil,
HK$57,986,000 and nil, respectively. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the director of Company does
not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise

their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The director of Company believe that such bank borrowings
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount

to nil, HK$58,205,000 and nil respectively.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

38.

ST E )
b) EREBREEBENRBEEM®E)

MR ZE SR EE B IRITIERET AL
XEES T 2 [IRESRSE R —F N ] &
MEERN RZE—N\FRZZT—+F
=A=+—RARZZE—X"FHA—H"
ZERITERZRITRASEED B R
T« BH57,986,000T T o LB EA
SEHMBARE - RARESHER
171 BN TR R ZRENRRE K o K

NREBREZSRITERTRIERE]

BERWENERBIER - L - A%
i@%H)SUrIJ SRERLEIRAT « Bl
58,205,000 T & Z -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ O S 5 e o B

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. ®R T H )
(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the (c) EHEBRARABRZAON

consolidated statement of financial position E5TE
The following table provides an analysis of financial THRIBHESB TE 5 HIERKE
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of MEERNEMERRZAREE - I
each reporting period for recurring measurement, grouped REAEEETEREAR A B EE
into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value ZRRESERE—LANEE=LHR -
is observable in accordance to the Group’s accounting
policy.

31 March 2018

“E-\f=f=t-A
Level 1 Level 3 Total
E—A E=RA my
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ARTR BRI BETR

Financial assets at FVTPL RERERANERECEREE
Held for trading investments BEEERE

- Listed equity investments - FRARE 63,035 - 63,035
Derivative financial instruments (TESBTA

- Derivative financial assets in respect of early ~ —AEAARESRREEDHE

redemption options of convertible bonds L SREE - 142,216 142,216

Available-for-sale financial assets THHESREE
Listed equity investments IIRARE 65,807 = 65,807
Total ke 128,842 142,216 271,058

1 R
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. @R T H @)
(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the (c) EHHBRRERABRZAA
consolidated statement of financial position BEifE (&)

(Continued)

31 March 2017

“T—+EZA=t-H
Level 1 Level 3 Total
E—53 E=15 BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&7 (mE31) (mE71)
Financial assets at FVTPL RERREANERE SRERE
Held for trading investments BIEEERE
- Listed equity investments - IilARE 342,146 18,629 360,775
Derivative financial instruments (TEERIA
- Derivative financial assets in respect of early ~ — BB AEREHFRFERSHE
redemption options of convertible bonds ZITESREE - 32,988 32,988
Available-for-sale financial assets THHESHEE
Listed equity investments EIRARE 66,361 - 66,861
Total k] 409,007 51,617 460,624
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RERRRARERE ERERE
Derivative financial liabilities in respect of call ~ BEEITAARES 2 THEHE
options on issuance of convertible bonds JITESRER - 252,021 952,021

2 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z2 -LF— \F=A=+—HILFZ
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. ®R T H )
(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the (c) EHHBRRARAER AR
consolidated statement of financial position EEp=-AC-)
(Continued)
1 April 2016
-~ MA-H
Level 1 Level 3 Total
E—1RHl E ] 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(mE5)) (mE5) (B E5)
Financial assets at FVTPL REERRANEREZEREE
Held for trading investments BIEEERE
- Listed equity investments - IilARE 623,280 26,879 650,159
Derivative financial instruments (TEERIA
- Derivative financial assets in respect of -FEAEED
crude o future contract IS REE 711 - M
Available-for-sale financial assets IHEESHEE
Listed equity investments EIRAEE 75,466 - 75,466
Total ek 699,457 26,879 726,336
There were no transfers between level of fair value hierarchy IAREEFEMBAEFE S ERBIME
in current and prior years. ISR o

8 B4 R 7
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) . BR T E (@)
(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the (c) EHHBRRARAER AR
consolidated statement of financial position BEifE (&)

(Continued)

224

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements on NEBEE  —E-NFER-_ZE—+F
financial instruments as at the date of inception, 31 March —A=t+—HE-Z—RENA—AH
2018 and 2017 and 1 April 2016 as set out below: BASRIACE=FRAREFEZ
AR
Date of inception BH%4 B H#
Relationship of
Significant unobservable inputs
Valuation technique Key input unobservable inputs to fair value
TUEER\HER
B TERARE BXTUBERAYE NhEZBE

Derivative financial assets

EERAE

Derivative financial liabilities

EERaR

Binominal option pricing
model

A BT ERL

Binominal option pricing
model
ZEABETERE

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Volatility levels, spot price
and risk-free rate

REKTE - REBR
EERRE

Volatility levels, spot price
and risk-free rate

RIBKT - REER
ERERH

Volatility levels of
48.2%-50.3%
R1EKF 48.2%-50.3%

Volatility levels of
12.2%-50.2%
RIEK T 12.2%-50.2%

the higher the volatility rate,
the higher the fair value
RBEHEE  ArEEE

the higher the volatility rate,
the higher the fair value

KBEHES  AAEER



38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZF - F—/\F=H=+—HIFZ

consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2018

Valuation technique

fhiER

Key input

IRBARE

8. @Rt T H (&

)

(c) EHHBRRERABRZAA
BEF E @)

R=-EB-NE=A=+—H

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXFTRESABE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
TUEER\HER
MAEZRE

Derivative financial assets

EERAE

Held for trading investment

RIFEERE

Binominal option pricing
model
“EA ST ERE

Market approach

L3

Volatility levels, spot price
and risk-free rate

REKTE  REBR
ERRAE

Discount rate

Ik

Volatility levels of
83.9%-89.2%
R 1Bk F 83.9%-89.2%

Discount rate of 89.7%

8635 % 89.7%

the higher the volatility rate,
the higher the fair value
RBEHE  ArESE

the higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value
BRENS  DABHE

SR8 8 O 4 A PR )
e SAAS

225



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
o B BA 5 i 3K B G

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_—F—/)\F=HA=+—HIFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2017

Valuation technique

fhiER

Key input

IRBARE

. R T E @

(c) EHMBRRRABR A

i

T E ()

R=F—t&=A=+—H

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXFTRERABE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
TUEER\HBR
NhEZBE

J

Derivative financial assets

EERAE

Derivative financial liabilities

Binominal option pricing
model

A BT ERL

Binominal option pricing

Volatility levels, spot price
and risk-free rate
REKTE  REBR
ik

Volatility levels, spot price

Volatility levels of
48.5%-48.7%
IR 48.5%-48.7%

Volatility levels of

the higher the volatility rate,

the higher the fair value
RBEHE  AnEES

the higher the volatility rate,

model and risk-free rate 40.1%-45.8% the higher the fair value
TEERERE “EABERERE RIBKT - REER R 40.1%-45.8% KBEHE  AESE
BERTE
Held for trading investment ~ Market approach Volatility levels, spot price Volatility levels of the higher the volatility rate,
and risk-free rate 38.1% t0 122.3% the higher the fair value
BEEERE 5% KK REER IRIEKT 38.1%-122.3% RBEME  ArEES
BRI
Year ended 1 April 2016 BE-Z-"FHA-BLFE
Relationship of
Significant unobservable inputs
Valuation technique Key input unobservable inputs to fair value
TIEERAHER
fhER TERARE EXTTERBARE NAEZHE
Held for trading investment  Market approach Volatility levels, spot price Volatility levels of the higher the volatility rate,
and risk-free rate 35.9%-118.1% the higher the fair value
BEEERE Mk REKTE  HEBR R BE7KT 35.9%-118.1% RBEHS  ArEEE

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The fair value of derivative financial assets from early
redemption options and derivative financial liabilities
from the contractual provisions in relation to issuance of
convertible bonds were determined by using binominal
option pricing model that consider the possible future
prices for each period in time as well as the respective
probability. The fair value of held for trading investments
were determined by using market approach that reflects
recent market value of comparable companies with similar
business, adjusted for differences in nature, scope and
location of the business.

The fair value measurement of the derivative financial assets
is positively correlated to the volatility level. As at 31 March
2018, it is estimated that with all other variables held constant,
a decrease/increase in the expected volatility by 10%
(2017: 10%) would have increased/decreased the Group’s
loss by approximately HK$390,580,000/HK$330,482,000
respectively (2017: HK$1,345,000/HK$1,456,000).

The fair value measurement of the derivative financial
liabilities is positively correlated to the volatility level. As at 31
March 2018, it is estimated that with all other variables held
constant, an increase/decrease in the expected volatility
by 10% (2017: 10%) would have increased/decreased
the Group’s loss by HK$360,723,000/HK$344,664,000
respectively (2017: HK$4,054,000/HK$2,224,000).

No sensitive analysis is performed on the held for trading
investment as the impact is not significant to the Group’s
losses for both years.

38. ®R T H )

(c)

Aﬁﬂjﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁw / J
EFT &8 ()

RieRPBOMEEL 2 ITESREENR
RBEBBRITABRBES 2 ANGNESE
ZEEMABEZ AR ERREZES
HHF'?ZT ERIR(ERS R ABRE AT RENE - R
“EAMEEERIERE - KIEEE
TxéfZ’AﬁTETmFH MIZEETE - HRR
BBBUEBZ A ELRAR 2T
B WHEHUEE  HERUECER
{EHFE -

TEEMEEZRA f’lﬁ@uﬂ'iﬁﬁi&mm*zﬁ
EIE*BE% cHRZE—NF=ZA=+—

f&ﬂznﬁﬁﬁﬁ@“afﬁ%T
E‘Jﬁ,ﬁﬁ&ﬂlm—FFct/J:ﬂ‘lO%(—::
—tF 1 10%) & 5 BI I E A&
= [ /&5 18 49 78 % 390,580,000 7T/ 78
#330,482,000 (= —t 5 : B
1,345,000 7T,/ %% 1,456,000 7T) ©

TEemABBEz AR B EENE
KFE2ZEHE - R-_FT—-NF=A

=t—B RBFNAEEBEERR
T - RIFEERIE AT RE10% (=

T—tF :10%) 152 B m R
7N £2 [ /&5 18 78 % 360,723,000 7T 76
#344,664,000L (=T —tF : B
4,054,000 7T,/ 7815 2,224,000 7T) °
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) . R T A%
(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the (c) G BERRRABREZAA
consolidated statement of financial position BEifE (&)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements on MEEMEEETE=RANARETZE
recurring basis: 2 HIER
Early
Call options redemption
Held for ~ from issuance options on
trading  of convertible convertible
investment bonds bonds Total
BITTRR Tk
BFEE &5 BEEZRE
RE AEE BEHE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR BRI BRI AR

At 1 April 2016 W= FNA—H 26,879 - - 26,879
Recognition of derivative component R & 2 (T4 55
of convertible bonds (note 35) (M 35) - (279,448 - (279,448)
Issue of convertiole bonds EmRRES - 27,427 28,177 55,604
(Loss) gain arising on changes DREEREL (BE) s
of fair value (8,250) - 4,811 (3,439)
At31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 RZZ—tF=A=1—8
kZE-+#mA-A 18,629 (252,021) 32,988 (200,404)
Issue of convertible bonds BIARRES - 348,506 53,350 401,946
Early redemption of convertible bonds 122 @ | ARk E % - - (23,556 (23,556
Conversion of convertible bonds ERMRRES - - (10,751) (10,751)
(Loss) gain arising on changes of MREEPELL (BB e
fair value (18,629) (96,575) 90,185 (25,019)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=1+-H - - 142,216 142,216

22 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

Since the level 3 of financial assets and liabilities are not
quoted in an active market, valuation technique is used to
estimate the fair value. When estimating fair value using
valuation technique, observable inputs and data from the
practical market (e.g. spot price, risk-free rate, implied
volatility, etc) are adopted. If the observable inputs in the
market cannot be obtained, the observable input data
that are calibrated as closely as possible to the market
observable data are used for estimating the fair value.

Meanwhile, the credit risk, volatility, correlation, etc of
the Group and the counterparty are estimated by the
management. The changing of these factors will affect the
estimated fair value of the financial instruments, therefore
there were uncertainty of accounting estimation on the level
3 of financial assets and liabilities.

The above loss arising from changes in fair value of held
for trading investment for the year ended 31 March 2018
of approximately HK$18,629,000 (2017: HK$8,250,000),
gain arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial
assets for the year ended 31 March 2018 of approximately
HK$90,185,000 (2017: HK$4,811,000) and loss arising
from changes in fair value of derivative financial liabilities
for the year ended 31 March 2018 of approximately
HK$96,575,000 (2017: nil) are included in “Loss arising
from changes in fair value of held for trading investments”,
“Gain arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial
assets” and “Loss arising from changes in fair value of
derivative financial liabilities” respectively in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

38. ®R T H )

(c)

Aﬁﬂjﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁw / J
EFT &8 ()

HRE=ZRREREE KRB EREED
BWEBRME - BMERBAERMEFT AR
{8 ~ ERAERMGE R A ERRS
EVW%T%W%A%ﬁ&%ﬁ@Hﬁ
BE  BRBRNE BIKESE) -
BERETSABRBARE Wﬁ%
BRI TS A R BUR 2 KRR
BRBARBUGARAE-

C REEREF T2 EERR K
%&ﬁ@&%ﬁ@”%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%°
ZERFEMBLEE  HEESRTA
ZEEtanE Bt F=AFIEBE
ELBEFEGTA T -

B E—T - N\FZA=+—HLF
EZHEEERARAREEHELZE
EH) B 18,629,000 7L ( — T —+F -
75#8,250,0007T) * HEZT—\F=
A=Z+—HLEFENMESREEAR
BBy E A 2 Y E 497 15 90,185,000 7T
(ZZT—+tF : B%4,811,000T) &
ET-\F=A=1+T—RAILFENTE
SHBEAANEEYELE CBHBNBE
96,575,0007T (=& —+4 : M) hlEt
AGHERRZ [BIEEEREZ DR
BEPELECEE]  [TTEEREES
AREEHEEA WG IRITESHE
BZARNBEEBEEEER] A -

SRR R AR
—F— /\ﬁ‘iﬂ“ﬁiﬁ
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_—F—/)\F=HA=+—HIFE

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) . 2R T A @)

(c) EHUBURRERABRZAN

(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other current financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their corresponding fair values
due to short-term maturities. The directors of the Company
consider that carrying amounts of other non-current
financial assets and liabilities approximate to their fair value
as the impact of discounting of non-current assets is not

EH5H & (@)

ARABEERS - ARNEHRMEE
RE GBI ISR MIAB SRR AN G dR  B
RS EREER A REEEER
B2 ARERE - ARRIEFERL B
RIERBEEFEZFELTNEARIE
MBBUE RIS R - A MIE
nPeREENABRTIERZELAAE
HE

significant and the non-current liabilities are amortised at
market interest rates.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ DF S0 e W
For the year ended 31 March 2018 &% —E—/\F=H=+—HI F&
39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 39. HMEE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group pledged the RERERE $’$l?f$’§lﬁ?§2fﬁﬁ1ﬁ
following assets for bank borrowings, obligation under finance o RMEHEASE N EMRE AR LA
lease and margin loans payable granted to the Group. TEE °
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\EF —+tF ZE—RF
=A=+—-H =ZA=+—H MA—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(#e=:%1)) (#e=51)
Completed properties held for sale  grER7TIE R ATEIRISIHE
pledged for bank borrowings HENDRITYE - 664,152 1,182,656
Motor vehicles pledged for FAVE M SRR 2 )98
obligation under finance lease - - 2,834
Deposits placed in a financial RENREFEEFERZ
institution pledged for margin R & RS 2 175K
loans payable - - 773
Held for trading investments FIEMRBSE TR Z
pledged for margin loans payable BIEEERE 63,035 311,234 569,544
Available-for-sale financial assets TEMRESERERZ
pledged for margin loans payable AHEEe ﬁé{% 47,577 47,055 53,111
110,612 1,022,441 1,808,918

The directors of the subsidiary and a related company has

provided personal and corporate guarantee for the grant of bank

borrowings to the Group as disclosed in note 33.

MEAR R —HEEARESRAAKEE

SR 1T & 5K

FRAE A XA B ER (B an bl 5
33FTIEE) °

SRR R AR

o /\ﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_—F—/)\F=HA=+—HIFE

40. COMMITMENTS

(@) Operating lease commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

40. I
(a) BEMHAERIE

RIERR - AEBEREEVERRED
A R EREMARAREZ N2
REHEREASE - HEREmHOT -

31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F —E—+F —E—RF
=A=+—H =ZH=+—H mA—A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)

(BE7) (&)

Within one year R—FA 14,955 10,926 9,347
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5 —Z& R F R

(BEEMEBEEA) 18,419 6,435 3,855

33,374 17,361 13,202

The above lease commitments only include commitments
for basic rentals, and do not include commitments for
additional rental payable (contingent rents), if any, which
are to be generally determined by applying pre-determined
percentages to sales less the basic rentals of the respective
leases, as it is not possible to determine in advance the
amount of such additional rentals.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

40. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 40. 7 ()

(a) Operating lease commitments (Continued) (a) RKREMBERE @)
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by KEHHERBEAEERANAE
the Group for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for MERNNES - K EL BE—
a range of one to three years (31 March 2017 and 1 April E=F(ZE—+F=ZA=+—HK=
2016: one to three years) and rentals are fixed for a range of T—RENA—HB: —E=ZF)ER—
one to three years (2017: one to three years). E=FZ7HBR(ZE—FF: —E=
&) - HEHEFE -
Property rental income earned during the year was G A PTIREN 2 M0 & WAL B
approximately HK$88,000 (31 March 2017: Nil). The 88,000 (= E—+F=A=+—8
property is expected to generate rental yields of 0.97% on ) MEBBEEL097% 2HE
an ongoing basis. The property held has committed tenant Wk - P AGEHATHEME204F -
for 20 years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RIREHR - REB S5 T HER KK
with tenant for the following future minimum lease YNz HEREFBEELETA -
payments:
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\F —E—+F —E—RF
=A=t+-8 =A=t+-H mA—8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(#e=E%1)) (#e=51))
Within one year R—FR 189 - -
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2 —Z FHFN
(EEMFEREEA) 757 - -
After five years REF%E 2,392 - -
3,338 - -

SR MR T AT PR A
e AT
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_-—F—/)\F=HA=+—HIFE

40. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Capital commitments

40. 7 ()
(b) EBEAREE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the RIREEAR - NEBH A NE A FPE -
following capital commitments:

31 March 31 March 1 April

2018 2017 2016

—E-N\F —E—+F —E—RF

=A=+t—-H =A=+—H MA—H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT BETFT

(Restated) (Restated)

(F&E5) (F&E5)

For properties under development B EZEEREH )% 7,284 6,723 22,424

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—\F=A=+—HIFZE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 September
2012 for the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to its employees, the directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group and to encourage them to
contribute further to the development of the Group so as to
enhance value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The total number of shares in respect of which options might
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit was renewed, at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate
Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares which might be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any one year was not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without
prior approval from the shareholders in general meeting.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder must be approved by independent non-
executive directors of the Company. Where any grant of options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director or any of their respective associates would result in the
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options already granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1%
of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date
of such grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

41.

PARHD B 2 MR X

— AR AR B ([ A B ) RN = ——
FAA=T—RBBZRBERERRRM -
TEAMDARLES  BEAREMMEY
SHEERHERAEERIZ ARIEHHE
RER - THEBRSALEE RREES
N RTREARARERN 2 BE - {0
SARAREZBREIRTE -

RIBZET S AR A BIFT IR 2 BB AR
Z B BT SR B AN R R B R AL R
APEIE HE BTN 210% ([ 51 3R ER
B IRBERIEEHAEREREE
B - Wi 10% REEE L ZRE - FiRIE
& 8 R AR E S ERHERKR
T8 2 P A RIETTIE 2 BB T(E T 31T
ZEEZBRNEE  THBBARRTRE®
172 D #8802 30% °

REBERPBRRG 2 24 - RER—
(B4 E &% T ERME R A L 2 AR 8B
TMEHBBERARRZETHRMNZ1% -

BTAMES  TETHRABRTEREZ
B—HHEREHBESERRZBILIERNTT
EERE  WEMEZERRIELIENITE
FRWEREEABBEATRE 2 EREK
- SBREEEERLABETZEARAR
HERTEE R RS ER 2 IR M
M FEAT 2 AR RGO BB DR DT
BR7R 2 0.1% KB B8 18 % % 5,000,000 7T
BB ERERERARIRER C SEHE

S B A R A W)
e SAS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —F—/\F=HA=+—HI F&F

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES
(Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option might be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during the effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the
board of directors which shall not be later than 10 years from the
date of grant.

The exercise price was determined by the directors of the
Company, and would not be less than the highest of the closing
price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the share on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant,
and the nominal value.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE
. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES . AR AER 2 N FEST @)
(Continued)

Details of specific categories of options granted under the share IRIEE AR BIR B 2 SRR 2 1B T
option scheme are as follows:

Fair value Fair value Fair value
Vesting Exercise at grant date at grant date at grant date
Date of grant period  Exercise period price for consultants for employees for directors
BR EER g2
REH A Rt At RRLAH
RiEAH BEH  TEH (4 WALE MhfE HARE
19 April 2013 Note 19 Apri\ 2013 10 18 April 2018 HK$0.375 HK$0.12 HK$0.12 HK$0.17
ZE-=FRATAR i ZE-ZFBATAREZE-\EEATIR EH0.3757 B0 012 BT
26 April 2013 Note 26 Apri\ 2013 0 25 April 2018 HK$0.375 HK$0.12 HK$0.12 HK$0.17
ZE--ERACHAR B ZE--FRAZTREECIENE ER03T5T E%0121 BE0127T BRI
MAZT1H
3 February 2015 Note 3 February 2015 to 2 February 2020 HKS0.477 HK$0.19 HKS0.19 HKS0.19
“E-RF-AZA W#  —E-RF-AZRE-T-FF-ACA 04T T BE019TL BRI BB
11 November 2015 Note 11 November 2015 to 10 November 2020 HK$0.638 HK$0.27 - -
e = Mg —E-RFt- ﬂ+ AE-2-%% BE0638T ER02TT - -
T-AtA
28 December 2015 Note 28 December 201510 27 December 2020 HKS$0.792 HK$0.35 - HK$0.35
“E-RF+ZAZTNA bzt S-RETCACTN\REZRCEE B0 %0357 - BE0357
tﬂirtﬁ
19 December 2016 Note 19 December 2016to 18 November 2021 HK$0.738 HK$0.73 HK$0.73 -
ZE-R"ETZRTAR WE  ZE-RETC ﬂﬂlﬁﬁ_?: 3 BE0.7387T RO EE0T3T -
+—AT/NA
19 October 2017 Note 19 October 2017 to 18 October 2022 HK$0.488 HK$0.22 - -
“ET—tETRTNA i ZE-tETATNAZEZECZETAT/R BE0.488T E%0.22T - -
Note: MaE -
In accordance with the terms of the Scheme, these share options were vested RIBZETEIM G ZEBRENE LA EERE -

at the date of grant.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_—F— )\ F=HA=+—HIFE

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES 41. UK AER Z NZHEES (8)

(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TREEEE  EENEBEMENRARE
options held by directors, employees and consultants during the BERBEZE - —NF=-A=1T—RHLFE
year ended 31 March 2018: S -
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited  Transferred  Outstanding
at 1 April during the during the during the duringthe  at31 March
2017 year year year year 2018
RZB-tE RZE-NE
mA-A ZA=t-8
Option type EhREg HATE ERRi Rk B ERER HATE
Directors £z
19 April 2013 “Z-ZFMATNA 41,825,000 - (33,125,000) - - 8,700,000
3 February 2015 “2-1%-f=H 25,000,000 - (5,000,000) - - 20,000,000
28 December 2015 ZE-RETZAZTIA 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
Employees k&
26 April 2013 “E-CERACTAA 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - -
3 February 2015 “%-1%-A=H 5,000,000 - (3,500,000) - - 1,500,000
19 December 2016 “E-RFtZRTNA 53,000,000 - - - - 53,000,000
Consultants Ef
19 April 2013 “5-ZFMATNR 19,610,000 - (19,610,000) - - -
26 April 2013 “E-ZEmAZ15A 6,550,000 - (3,050,000) - - 3,500,000
3 February 2015 “&-1%-A=H 45,500,000 - (36,500,000) - - 9,000,000
11 November 2015 ZT-RET-Ar-A 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000
28 December 2015 ZE-RETZAZTIA 275,460,000 - - - - 275,460,000
19 December 2016 “E2- ETZRTAA 482,000,000 - (15,000,000) - - 467,000,000
19 October 2017 ZT—tETATAR - 536000000 (436,000,000 - - 100,000,000
1,010,945,000 536,000,000  (558,785,000) - - 993,160,000
Exercisable at the end of the year EXAAE 993,160,000
Weighted average exercise price METHTEE HKS$0.704 HK$0.488 HKS$0.482 - - HK$0.711
BloTaT  A%odse  AK048T - - BT

2 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
38 ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFEZE

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES 41. UK AER Z NZHEES (8)
(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TREEEE  EENEBERREE-_Z—+
options held by directors, employees and consultants during the FZA=+—RHIFEFE 2AXFIERE
year ended 31 March 2017: #E)

Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited  Transferred  Outstanding
at 1 April during the during the during the duringthe  at31 March

2016 year year year year 2017
R=B-nfF RoB-tfF
BA-A ZR=t-H
Option type b Lot WA EREd ERfE EREH EpEz HRTE
Directors E£
19 Apr 2013 “E-ZEmA+hA 44,050,000 - (2,225,000) - - 4825000
3 February 2015 “Z-1%-f-H 25,000,000 - - - - 25,000,000
28 December 2015 “E-RF+ZAZNA 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
Employees k&
19 Apri 2013 “E-ZEMATAR 7,125,000 - (4,265,000) - (2,860,000 -
26 April 2013 “E-ZERA-1RA 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
3 February 2015 “E-1F-f=H 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
19 December 2016 “E2 7 E+ZRTNA - 53,000,000 - - - 53,000,000
Consultants B
19 Apri 2013 “E-ZERmA+NA 33,875,000 - (17,125,000 - 2860000 19,610,000
26 April 2013 “E-ZERmACTAH 11,200,000 - (4,650,000) - 6,550,000
3 February 2015 “I-1F-fH 87,000,000 - (41,500,000) - - 45500,000
11 November 2015 “EF-1f+-F1-A 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000
28 December 2015 “ET-aFt-F-1/\H 275,460,000 - - - - 275,460,000
19 December 2016 “EFE+ZAtNA - 482,000,000 - - - 482,000,000
545710000 535,000,000 (69,765,000) - - 1010945000
Exercisable at the end of the year EXAAE 1,010945,000
Weighted average exercise price METSER HKS$0.635 HK$0.738 HKS0.436 - - HKS0.704
BR06T  AEOTBT  ER046T - - EROTMT

8 B4 R 7
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49,

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES
(Continued)

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$0.60
(2017: HK$0.98). The weighted average closing price of the
shares immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised is HK$0.56 (2017: HK$0.97).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, options were granted on
19 October 2017 (2017: 19 December 2016). The estimated fair
value of the options granted on the grant date was approximately
HK$118,400,000 (2017: HK$162,750,000) and was determined
by using the Binomial Model.

The significant inputs into the Binomial Model are as follows:

41

. DARRAD IR BB 2 15 R B S ()

RRAFEETE ZBRENS - RITER
M2 InEF R ERBH0B0T(ZF—+t
FB%50.987T) - EERBEAIEETTE R HA
Befn 2 g FHRHERSEHE06IT(=F
—tF BK0.977T) °

REE_Z—N\FZA=Z+—HBHLFE B
KREER-ZZFE—tFTATLBE(ZE—L
F:T—AE+-AThA)EBEH - RE
PR T ZEREZGBFTARBED B
575 %118,400,000C( = —+HF : B
162,750,000 7T) WA — B R ARTVEETFE o

R-FEA R AZ EZEENT

Date of grant
REBH

11 November ~ 28 December 19 December 19 October
2015 2015 2016 2017
—E-0f —E-1fF —E-RE —E—tE
+-A+-B +ZA=+NB  +ZA+hH TA+hA
Share price at the grant date REH BB RE HK$0.610 HK$0.770 HK$0.730 HK$0.465
B 0.6107T B¥07707T BE0.7307T BH0.465TC
Exercise price per share BRTEE HK$0.638 HK$0.792 HK$0.738 HK$0.488
B#0.6387T BH0.7927T #0738 7T #0488 T
Expected volatility ERREIEE 56.21% 56.18% 52.73% 68.45%
Expected life of options TEHIE R 1A 2.9 years 3 yearsE 5 years & 5 years
Expected dividend yield EHREE 0% 0% 0% 0%
Annual risk-free interest rate BE R ENE 1.15% 1.02% 1.66% 1.61%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous years. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES
(Continued)

The aggregate fair values of the above granted options were
approximately HK$118,400,000 (2017: HK$162,750,000) which
amounting to approximately HK$118,400,000 and nil (2017:
HK$146,621,000 and HK$16,129,000) were to be recognised
as share-based payments expenses granted to consultants and
employees respectively for the year ended 31 March 2018 with a
corresponding increase in equity.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the director’s best
estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the Group companies (the “employer”) in Hong
Kong and its employees are required to make contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation. The contributions
from each of the employer and employees are subject to a cap
of HK$1,250 per month before 1 June 2014 and HK$1,500 per
month, since 1 June 2014 onwards. During the year ended 31
March 2018, the total amount contributed by the Group to this
scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss was approximately HK$188,000 (2017: HK$209,000) (as
restated).

41.

42.

PARSAR A Bt 2 A kP S ()

T REEBREZAABEE EOB
#118,400,000C( = & — + F: H ¥
162,750,000 7T ) + £ A1 %9 7% # 118,400,000
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=T —HIEFEADRERAR TERRIE
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FEEIL AN o
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ERAREF
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HEBREBEFRERE - #E2F 8
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42.

43.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, subsidiaries in
the PRC are required to contribute to a state-managed retirement
plan for all its employees at a certain percentage of the basic
salaries of its employees. The state-managed retirement plan is
a defined contribution retirement plan and responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees. Under
the state-managed retirement plan, the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. During the year ended
31 March 2018, the total amount contributed by the Group to
this scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss was approximately HK$391,000 (2017: HK$376,000 as
restated).

BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON
CONTROL

The Group adopts merger accounting for common control
combinations in respect of the following transactions occurred
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

On 21 June 2017, the Group entered into the Acquisition
Agreement with Mr. Li, the controlling shareholder and director
of the Company, to acquire 100% equity interest of United
Faith Group for a consideration of HK$1,000 million, which was
settled by the issuance of the zero coupon convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000 million at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.80 per share with maturity on the 5th
anniversary of the issue date of the convertible bonds by the
Company to Mr. Li upon completion of the Acquisition on 26
March 2018. The principal activities of the acquired subsidiaries
are securities trading and properties development.

The substantial shareholder of United Faith Group prior to the
acquisition by the Group is Mr. Li. The aforesaid transactions are
regarded as business combinations under commmon control on 1
April 2016.

No significant adjustments were made to the net assets and net
results of United Faith Group and its subsidiaries (“the Acquired
subsidiaries”) as a result of the common control combination to
achieve consistency of accounting policies.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

43. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON 43, 24| T EEE 6 @)
CONTROL (continued)
The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement of profit BHEHEHEE - E—+F="A=+—HIFE
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 AHEENEMGANERZ SEEB ZFE
March 2017 by line items as follows: R
The Group The Group
(excluding (including
the acquired Acquired the acquired
subsidiaries) subsidaires subsidiaries)
bS] bS]
(TEER S WU B (BEH LS
WEAR) KEAR HEAR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT
Revenue Wegs 54,119 516,092 570,211
Cost of sales SHERA (1,167) (453,328 (454,495)
Gross profit £7 52,952 62,764 115,716
Other income Hip A 13,731 301 14,082
Gain (loss) on the disposal of held for HEFEEERE & (B1)
trading investments 26,019 (4,209) 21,810
Loss arising from changes in fair value BFEBEREZAREEDEE
of held for trading investments ZER (39,751) (21) (39,772)
Gain arising from changes in fair value of TESREE AN EEYEE
derivative financial assets bl G 4,811 - 4,811
Realised gain on settlement of derivative HETEeREE BB G
financial assets 907 - 907
Loss arising from changes in fair value TESRARL AR EEYES
of derivative financial liabilities ZE#B (279,448) - (279,448)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ARPESRHEE RESSE
financial assets (8,161) - (8,161)
Seling and distribution costs HE R KA (3,049) (7,180) (10,229)
General and administrative expenses —BRTRER (209,059) (10,027) (219,086)
Finance costs BARK (17,048) (562) (17,610)
Loss before tax BRERIER (458,096) 41,066 (417,030)
Income tax expenses R ER (12,185) (11,614) (23,799)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(BR) &M (470,281) 29,452 (440,829)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: FEGFE (FR)aH
The owners of the Company ARRIEBA (470,269) 29,452 (440,817)
Non-controlling interests FEES R (12) - (12)
(470,281) 29,452 (440,829)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

43. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON
CONTROL (continued)

The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
March 2017 by line items as follows: (Continued)

43. FKRZEHINER A G @)

BB E_TtF=A=t—BHILFE
EHBRLEMERARGERZERB ZFE
w8

The Group The Group
(excluding (including
the acquired Acquired the acquired
subsidiaries)  subsidiaries subsidiaries)
rEE rEE
(TEERBUE R (BERNE
M AE) M 2 E) M~ E)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB BETIT BETT
(Loss) profit for the year FE (BE) &R (470,281) 29,452 (440,829)
Other comprehensive FEHMGEERAE
expense for the year
ltems that may be reclassified BEpEET HHE R
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH -
Exchange difference arising on BEBNEBEEZ
translating of overseas operations b 54 A= 78 (7,339) (24,815) (32,154)
Total comprehensive (expense) income FEHA (BR) WAL
for the year (477,620) 4,637 (472,983)
Total comprehensive (expense) income ELFESS (BA) WAZE
for the year attributable to:
The owners of the Company EARHER A (477,608) 4,637 (472,971)
Non-controlling interests Fletle 3y (12) - (12)
(477,620) 4,637 (472,983)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

43. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON 43, H[EHEH|T 2754 6 (@)

CONTROL (continued)

The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2017 by line items as follows:

BN - E—tF=A=+—R2Z&HY
IRAREIHR 2FEMT

The Group The Group
(excluding (including
the acquired Acquired Intragroup the acquired
subsidiaries) subsidiaries elimination subsidiaries)
58 F5E
(FaERKE BB (BEHKE
HWEAR) HEAR SEEHE HEAR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment property RENE - 18,179 - 18,179
Property, plant and equipment nE - BERE 6,074 18,372 - 24,446
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 66,861 - - 66,861
Non-current prepayments and deposits FRBBEATERF LIRS 3,172 - - 3,172
Prepaid lease payment ERAENT - 2,619 - 2,619
Deferred taxation EERE - 1,675 - 1,675
76,107 40,845 - 116,952
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 7,493 - - 7,493
Prepaid lease payments BREERT - 68 - 68
Properties under development BEAE - 118,660 - 118,660
Complated properties held for sale BIENENEEINE - 664,152 - 664,152
Other receivables, prepayments HifEUdRs, - BUTER
and deposits Flike 8,297 204,033 - 212,330
Loan and interest receivables EYET R FIE 479,304 - - 479,304
Finance lease receivable el REREE 94,470 - (6,563) 87,907
Held for trading investments BEEERE 352,543 8,232 - 360,775
Derivative financial instruments fE4mIA 32,988 - - 32,988
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRLEEY 76,902 71,374 - 148,276
1,061,997 1,066,519 (6,563) 2,111,953
Current liabilities RB8E
Margin loans payable ERRELER 178,285 - - 178,285
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEGER 35,992 317,919 - 353911
Amounts due to related companies ERBEERRR 33,566 333,417 - 366,983
Amount due to a director EN—ZEE7E - 78,281 - 78,281
Derivative financial instruments fTESEBIA 252,021 - - 252,021
Tax payables R EE 15,638 14,975 - 30,613
Obligation under finance lease MEMERE - 6,563 (6,563) -
Bank borrowings BITER - 57,986 - 57,986
515,502 809,141 (6,563) 1,318,080
Net current assets RBEETE 536,495 257,378 - 793,873
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 612,602 298,223 - 910,825

S AR R AT PR A WD
e AT

245



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
o B BA 7 i 2 B G

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—-F— )\ F=HA=+—HIFE

43. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON 43, H[EHEH|T 2754 6 (@)

CONTROL (continued)
The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement of BIHR _FE—tF=ZA=+—BZ&HH
financial position as at 31 March 2017 by line items as follows: R RSEB ZHEWNT « (B)
(Continued)
The Group The Group
(excluding (including
the acquired Acquired Intragroup the acquired
subsidiaries) subsidiaries elimination subsidiaries)
rEE S 11
(FEERKE s (BERKE
WEAR) HEAE SEEHHE HEAR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Capital and reserves RAREE
Share capital B 53,182 - - 53,182
Reserves [ 335,365 298,223 - 633,588
Equity attributable to the owners NG Y PN
of the Company 388,547 298,223 - 686,770
Non-controlling interests SRR (12) - - (12
Total equity AR 388,535 298,223 - 086,758
Non-current liabilities FrRBaE
Convertible bonds mkES 224,067 - - 224,067
Deferred taxation ELHE - - _ _
224,067 - - 224,067
Total equity and non-current liabilities BRERERDER 612,602 298,223 - 910,825

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —F—/\F=H=+—HI FE

43. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON
CONTROL (continued)

The effect of the restatement on the Group’s basic and diluted
losses per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 is as follows:

43. HEHEH T EBE 6 (@)

HIHAEEREE- S —+tF=A=+—
BEFREZBRERARESER 2 ZEN
T

Impact on basic
and diluted losses

HEAR

BEpBEcye

As previous reported WMERFT2H 9.06
Effect arising from business combination HEEHTEBEAES

under common control % (0.57)

8.49

As restated =]
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #EZ _—F—/\F=A=+—HI F&E

43. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON 43.
CONTROL (continued)

The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement of

SR TR A6 )

BIER —E-RFOA—HZAHMBER

financial position as at 1 April 2016 by line items as follows: NESBE ZRFENT -

The Group The Group
(excluding (including
the acquired Acquired Intragroup the acquired
subsidiaries) subsidiaries elimination subsidiaries)
58 piN- 1)
(TR HE (BERKE
WEAR) WEAF SEREEH WEAF)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT BT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - WERRE 6,263 22,110 - 28,378
Finance lease receivables JENmARETE 6,579 - (6,579 -
Avallable-for-sale investments AfHERE 75,466 - - 75,466
Non-current prepayments and deposits ERBBENTERFLES 2582 - - 2,582
Prepaid lease payment ENBENT - 2,867 - 2,867
Deferred taxation EERE - 4,935 - 4,935
90,890 29,912 6,579) 114,223
Current assets RBEE
Inventories EE 7,607 - - 7,607
Prepaid lease payments BIRENR - 72 - 72
Properties under development EEDYE - 110,177 - 110,177
Properties held for sale BEHENNE - 1,182,656 - 1,182,656
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits ~ H IR - BRFER
Finge 10,781 64,382 - 75,163
Loan and interest receivables FEREFTRHE 229,056 - - 229,056
Finance lease receivable B EREDE 94,728 - - 94,723
Held for trading investments BIEBERE 629,910 20,249 - 650,159
Derivative financial instruments fTELRIA 711 - - 711
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLEEY 18,312 85,995 - 104,307
991,100 1,463,531 - 2,454,631
Current liabilities nBaE
Margin loans payable ENRESER 376,361 - - 376,861
Trade and other payables B9 REMENER 65,721 426,448 - 492,169
Amounts due to related companies EREERRT 2,215 366,601 - 368,816
Amount due to a director EN—2ESHE 9 65,405 - 65,414
Tax payables ERHR 3,375 3,837 - 7,212
Obligation under finance lease WEHERE 1,374 6,579 6,579) 1,374
Bank borrowings RITER - 330,987 - 330,987
449,555 1,199,857 (6,579) 1,642,833
Net current assets RBEERE 541,545 263,674 6,579 811,798
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAE 632,435 293,586 - 926,021

24 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFE

43. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON 43, H[EHEH|T 2754 6 ()
CONTROL (continued)

The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement of BHIEHN_E—NFNUA—HZA B
financial position as at 1 April 2016 by line items as follows: MERZEEMT - (8)
(Continued)
The Group The Group
(excluding (including
the acquired Acquired Intragroup the acquired
subsidiaries) subsidiaries elimination subsidiaries)
FEE rEE
(T EER LB wUiE (BIEW LB

WELR) WEBLAR SKERHE WEAR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BETT BETT

Capital and reserves BRARFEE

Share capital N 49,358 - - 49,358

Reserves s 467,663 293,586 - 761,249
Equity attributable to the owners iN/NEIE PN e 3

of the Company 517,021 293,586 - 810,607
Non-controlling interests FEEHI - - - -
Total equity MRS 517,021 293,586 - 810,607
Non-current liabilities *RBEAE

Convertible bonds AR ES 115,414 - - 115,414

Deferred taxation EERIE - - - -

115,414 - - 115414

Total equity and BEZRIEREBEE

non-current liabilities 632,435 293,586 - 926,021
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_—F—/)\F=HA=+—HIFE

44, DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 44,

Pursuant to a conditional agreement dated 30 March 2018,
the Group agreed to dispose of 100% entire equity interests
in Dingyi (China) Investment Limited (“Dingyi (China)”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its
subsidiaries (collectively as “Dingyi (China) Group”) to an
independent third party for a total cash consideration of
approximately RMB250,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$312,250,000). Details are set out in the Company’s
announcement on 30 March 2018.

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

ﬁ%%%@ﬁ
BEBHAEZE-—N\F=A=tHZHKH
Wi ZIK%H,EFW—%?% FE=FEER
NRAAE2ENBARSE(FR)REBR
AEN([SE(RED]) REMB AR (5ER
[RE(FE)EE]) 2 100% ik - BIRSK
B4 5 AR 250,000,000 7T (FHER LB
312,250,0007T) » S EHNARTHEH A
T N\EFEZA=ZTBHZRM -

BRERGIRZEERBEDN

HK$’000
BT T
Investment in associates REEREZIKE 300,103
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LIRS 59
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 1,757
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 301,919
Gain on disposal HE Wz 10,331
Total consideration wRE 312,250
Satisfied by: ATB AR
Deferred cash consideration included FIARFE ZELEHRSRE
in current assets 312,250
The deferred consideration was fully settled by cash in April 2018. BERENR-Z—N\FNAUBREBELEE -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEACHRSRITFE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEZIRE RELEEY (59)

Upon the completion, the Company ceased to control Dingyi
(China) Group. The subsidiaries disposed of during the year had
no significant impact to the Group’s operating, investing and
financing cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2018.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ O S 5 e 5 B

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

45. BRABALTZR S

(a) Transactions (@ X3
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BA SR H A 5 PRk R E AN
statements, the Group has entered into the following AEEDHEEBATIITIRS ¢
transactions with related parties:
2018 2017
—E-N\F T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT I PEMET T
Related company (note): faE AR (FisE) -
Aircraft — charter charges T — B B = 834
Aircraft — other costs and expenses - EME R
reimbursement paid N B 3R 85 = 1,445
The above related party transactions were carried out in Ll EEEAT XS THRE BRI XN
accordance with the terms mutually agreed between the TBEWEZIGTEIT ©
respective parties.
Note: One of the executive directors and substantial shareholder I I BIRERRAR(AIR ) ZHiTES
of Trillion Winner Investment Limited (“Trillion Winner”) is the RIFERE T —AKRATESALE -

beneficial shareholder of the Company.

SR R AT PR A WD
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& OF B4 85 i K B R
For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_—F—/)\F=HA=+—HIFE
45, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 45, BRABEANTZXK 5 (&)
(b) Balances (b) #eR
Details of the balances with related parties are as follows: HARE AT 2 EsEI s
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E-N\§ e N3
Name of Companies NGES =A=1-H =A=1-8B mA—A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(mE5) (B E5)
Wincon Capital KBER 1,773 33,566 -
AR EERAREBRAR A TS EERREERAR
("BEEBRE") (note () (SEEAREDE)) - - 22

Trilion Winner Trillion Winner - - 1,952

SEEXRALE (BRAN) REERRELE(BERAN)

("REEZE") (note (i) (TREER]) (K () - - 241

MImEELARERRAT AIMBELHREERAT

(Shenzhen Dingyi Jinta Investment Limited) ([ @& &A1) (M ()
("Dingyi Jinta") (note () - 333,417 366,601
1,773 366,983 368,816

Notes: MI3E -

0] One of the executive directors and beneficial shareholder (i) ZERNRZEP—BRNITEER
of those companies are the executive director and ExBRRARNRRRTEERE
substantial shareholder of the Company. ZPRE -

(ii) One of the executive directors and substantial (ii) REEARAZERP—BRITESRE
shareholders of S {E#& 7N is the beneficial shareholder of FERFARNARZEHRE °
the Company.

252 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZF - F—/\F=H=+—HIFZ

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of the directors and other members of
key management of the Company during the year were
disclosed in note 11.

Banking facilities

The directors of the subsidiary and a related party has
provided personal and corporate guarantee for the grant of
bank borrowings to the Group as disclosed in note 33.

Financial guarantee contract

45. BB AT 2R 5 (&)
(c) EEEEAEZMS

FARARREZRTEERAB ZHAM
B 2 IS AMEE 11 iR ER

(d) SRITRLE
AN EESBFTIKREE - B ARESE K —
ZAEMEAN LA EEERIRITHERE
AR A BER -

(e) MBEREN

31 March 31 March 1 April

2018 2017 2016

—B-0\F T £F  STAH

Name of Company YNGIEE =HA=+t—H =A=+—H WmA—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT BT T

(Restated) (Restated)

(4 =E%1)) (ge=51)

Dingyi Jinta SEEH - 41,740 44,533
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZ _—F—/\#F=A=+—HI F&E

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

46. RRBIFBEARNMAE

COMPANY
31 March 31 March
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
=A=+—H —A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BET T
Non-current assets FREEE
Interests in subsidiaries SEE NG 807,245 218,085
Plant and equipment B K A = 260
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 18,230 19,806
Non-current prepayments JERBNTAN IR
and deposits RiFtiEs - 2,165
825,475 240,316
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments E b ERFR « TN B R
and deposits FiiZe 2,895 7,476
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE LB A RBR X 1,790,963 629,190
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMT A 142,216 32,988
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFEY 109,730 19,272
2,045,804 688,926
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary FETHI B A RIFkIE 73,583 99,175
Trade and other payables Z 5 R HA BRI 64,681 27,146
Derivative financial instruments PTEESmMT A - 252,021
Tax payables FE IR - 10,648
138,264 388,990
Net current assets REBEEFRE 1,907,540 299,936
Total assets less current liabilities #EERADEE 2,733,015 540,252
Capital and reserves BRAR #E
Share capital N 69,440 53,182
Reserves (Note a) s (Mixa) 1,410,580 263,003
Total equity R 1,480,020 316,185
Non-current liability kRBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 1,252,995 224,067
2,733,015 540,252

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —F—/\F=H=+—HI F&E

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  46. KRR RIF &AM (@)

COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Reserves (a) e
Convertible
Capital Share  bonds - equity
Share  Contributed  redemption option conversion  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(note (i)
aRES
EXRE ERE  -hEER
RivaE BARS it it it EitEE L
(HizE )
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BRI EBTTL BBTTL BBTTL BBTTL ABTTL ABTTL
At1 April 2016, as “E2-ERA-A
previously reported (WEHZH) 1,438,956 56,215 14 149,129 199,519 (1,417,891) 424,942
Loss for the year EnfiE - - - - - (507,249) (507,249)
Issue of convertible EAMaRES R
bonds - equity BiAT7 (B3t 35(i)
conversion component
(note 35(i) - - - - 112,658 - 112,658
lssug of shares upon B ATARERE
conversion of B7iRd (W 40
convertible bonds R35())
(note 34(i) & 35(1) 315,708 - - - (199,519) - 116,189
Recognition of equty- AEEBMER
seftled share-based  BENRFAERA
payments vested (PsEa1)
(note 41) - - - 162,750 - - 162,750
Share repurchasedand ~ RIVBEE Riti
cancelled (note 4(i))  (HizE34fi) (76,184) - - - - - (76,184)
Share options exercised /T ERRIE (HzE340)
(note 34() 11,59 - - (1,89) - - 29,607
A3 Mach2017and  H=F—+F=A=1-A
1 April 2017, k=%-t£mA-A
as restated (&) 1,720,075 55,215 14 299,981 112,858 (1,925,140) 263,003
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z_—F—/)\F=HA=+—HIFE

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

46. R BIEARREK (&)

COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Reserves (Continued) (@) 1R @)
Convertible
Capital Share bonds - equity
Share  Contributed Other  redemption option  conversion  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(note]) (notefi)
TRRES-K
RHEE BARH AbGE EMEEEE  BRERE  RSLEE ZitFE hE
(W) (EE)
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETTL BT eI BRI BT eI EETT BT
A1 Apr 2017, as restated - RZF—+EEA-A
(EE5)) 1,720,075 5,215 - 14 299,981 112,88 (1,925,140) 263,003
Loss for the year ) 3= - - - - - - (r2,074) (72,074
Issue of comertble bonds &7 ARES -4

- equty conversion BRI (5080 )

component (note 33 (ii & v)) - - - - - 1,300,051 - 1,300,061
Issue of shares upon NERTARERREN

conversion of converible B (A 34(1) R 35i)

honds (note 34(i) & 3afii) 78,085 - - - - (46,002) - 32,083
Early redemption of RREETARES

convertiole bonds (B3 3501)

fote 3] - - - - - 9950 - 10950
Transfer uponredemption ~ EO T BREREES

of convertblg bonds (Mt 35(m)

fote 350) - - - - R I -3 -
Recognifion of equity-setled BEE BB EREE

sharebased payments AR BERAT

vested ote 41 GET) - - - Y - S 1Rk
Efect of business LRERT RO FE

combinations under

common control - - (79,421) - - - - (7195,421)
Share repurchasedand  TREEBERHA (a4

canceled fote 34 163669 - - - - - N )
Share options evercised 7B i3k 34p)

(note 34() 283,778 - - - (22,38 - - 261435
Issug of shares (note 4fv)) ~ Z17R (M3 34) 580,740 - - - - - - 580,740
Transacton costs attoutable ZTRHEERZHA

o issue of shares (3969 - - - - - - (3.969)
At 31 March 2018 RoE-\EZA=+-8 2,594,991 5,215 (795,421) 14 396,038 1,267,602 (2,107,859) 1,410,580
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46, KA A F&HAR 3% ()
COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Reserves (Continued) (a) & (@
Notes: PeE
0] As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the contributed surplus of i) RIE-NFRZZ—tF=A=+—

approximately HK$55,215,000 represents the difference
between the fair value of net assets of subsidiaries acquired and
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition and HK$48,989,000 represents the amount being
transferred from share capital and share premium as distributable
reserve.

Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to

B - B RB#BLB¥ 55,215,000 TLIEFT
WEHBARFEE L AR ERAAT
FUBFEITRD cEHEZ M =8
7% 48,989,000 JT 5 B B A 2 st i
BELERADIKFEE L S8 -

REBEARZE NN\ -FREAEKE
5])  ARR 2 HABBAH DK T K

shareholders. e

(ii) Other reserve represents the differences amongst the investment (ii) HihEEREWEEREEE IR EK AR
cost for acquisition of United Faith Group and elimination of the BER-_ZE—N\F=ZA=-+/NBZBRA
share capital of the United Faith on 26 March 2018. Details refer i M ERE - FI52HME2 R
to note 2 and note 43. 5143

8 B4 R 7
R 20
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —F—/\F=HA=+—HI F&F

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. KARIFENEBABZFEE
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March R-EBE-—NEL_ZE—+F=H=+—H "
2018 and 2017 are as follows: RRAFEEWMBRRZFBHT -
Place or country Issued and
of incorporation/ Class of paid up share
establishment/ shares capital/registered  Number of Proportion of ownership interest
Name of company operations held capital shares and voting power held by the Company Principal activities
AL/ /AL BRRARRE/ KAk fARER
e 3B FERAEH ifEx  Re#A RREELH )
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

SE-N\fZRS-B ZE-tFAtE
Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E& B L i

% % % %
Dingyi Group (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
BREB(R)ERLE B i b &R
Dingyi Resources Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 1 - 100 - 100 Investment holaing
RERRRRAA & il feab REAR
BESE(R REFAERLT ThePRO NA Regjstered capta of NA - 100 - 100 Investment adisary
RMB 50,000,000 and senvice and loan
paid-up capttal of financing
RMB22,082,000
R TR AT ARBS000000TTR TR BEERL
BRRAARE 20820007 RETRE
FRAREEEHARAT The PR NA Registered and peic-up NA - 100 - 100 Restaurant operation
captal of RMB500,000
& Tk e tEhes ¥l i
ARE500,0007
Dingyi (North America) Limited The BV Ordinary USt 1 100 - 100 - Investment holding
AEHRRHS il 1% REAR
Dingyi North America Seatfle LLC The USA /A - A - 100 - 100 Investment advisory
Senice
£ iyt - il BEEEL
Easy Prestige Limited The BVI Ordinary USs1 1 - 100 - 100 Investment holaing
and loan financing
EZARAA ABRRRES il 157 REERREHEE

25 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2018 and 2017 are as follows: (Continued)

47. KRB EBHB AR Z#H1E @

RIB-NFR-_ZE—+F=A=+—H"
ARBEEMBRATZFHBLT : (&)

Place or country Issued and
of incorporation/ Class of paid up share
establishment/ shares capital/registered  Number of Proportion of ownership interest
Name of company operations held capital shares and voting power held by the Company Principal activities
AL/ /BL/ BRARAREE/ KAk fARER
LRER EXhRaER e RERH ifEs  Rit#A RREELH TERE
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
“§-NEZR=t-B CT-tFSADtR
Directly  Indirectly Directly Inirectly
E& B B% i
% % % %
(olden Season Intemational Limed ~~~ The BVI Ordinary USSt 1 - 100 - 100 Securties racing and
trading of wine
LRARERLT ABHBRHS il 171 FHEEREREE
Ease Main Limited The BV Ordinary USS$1,000 1,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
and securfies
trading
BRERLT ABEARER il 10057 REERRESER
Dingyi Financial Services Hong Kong Orclnary HKS1 1 - 100 - 100 Loanfinancing
Investment Limited
RECRRRRERRLA Bt th b £RE
SRER(M)PERSAERAT  ThePRC NA Registered capitel NiA - 100 - 100 Financil leesig
of RMBB00,000,000 andloan
and paid-up capital of financing
RMBE5,700,000
1E TR SHRER AR 800,000,000 vl BERERENHE
RERREARF 700007
Xumao Ventures Limited The BVI Orclnary USSt 1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
JAREIRARA £BERRES il 15T EEES)
Hoping Medical Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 1 - - - 100°  Investment holding
ERERRAA &k il b REER

SR R AT PR A WD
e SAAS

259
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z —F—/\F=HA=+—HI F&F

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47, AAB = EWBA G 2 215 (@)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March R-EBE-—NELX—_ZE—+F=H=+—H "
2018 and 2017 are as follows: (Continued) RAREBWBAR ZFEBOT « (B)
Place or country Issued and
of incorporation/ Class of paid up share
establishment/ shares capital/registered ~ Number of Proportion of ownership interest
Narme of company operations held capital shares and voting power held by the Company Principal activities
AL/ /BL/ BRARAREE/ KAk fARER
LRER EXhRaER FisROER ifEs  Rit#A RREELH TERE
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Z2-N\fzA=1-H B )
Directly  Indirectly Directly Inirectly
E& B B% B

% % % %
NERBREER(ATARNT  ThePRC NA Registered capia NIA - - - 100" Proton medical
HKS700,000,000 and
paic up capital of
HK$68,565,000
il TR &A% 7000000007 Zeli E1ER
T RIR % 68,565,000
United Fatth Investment Limited The BVI Ordlnary 850,000 100 100% - - - Investment holding
BERERRAT ABEARES il 50 000%T REER
Wincon Asset Management Limited Hong Kong Ordlnary HK$10,000 10,000 - 100 - - Securtes frading
AEERERARAT s i EE100007 #5588
EISRREERLT The PRC NIA RABA0,000,000 NA - 100% - - Propertes
(levelopment
G TR ARESOOO0OT TR UEEES
* The subsidiaries were disposed during the year ended 31 March 2018. * WEBARREE-_E—N\E=A=+—H15F
Details are set out in Note 44. EEHE - FEHNMFT44 -
e The subsidiaries were acquired by the Group during the year ended 31 o WBARREBEZE-—E— \F=A=1+—HIF
March 2018. [ERAREEWEE -

2 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ O S 5 e 5 B

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z - ZF—/\F=A=+—HIFZE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other

subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of

these subsidiaries operates in the PRC, Hong Kong and the BVI.

The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as

follows:

Principal activities

FERER

Principal place of business

TREE R

ANRAREZMBRR S @)

B -

ERINFARREEARIETELAEEEEREE
WAEERELR - ARAEERRFIEMBHEL
AEMNESERREANTTE -

RBEHRR - ARABEEMEAEE L B
BEZNMBAT - ZEMEBARKREHRNT
B FEREBEBAREEEE - ZFHB
NAMEBRHHLLT

Number of subsidiaries

MELAREE
31 March 31 March
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —F—tF

=ZA=+-—H =A=+—H

Inactive The BVI 3 4
TmER REBEBRES
The PRC 4 1
FR L
Investment holding The BVI 2 2
AR ERERRES
9 7

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities neither at

the end of both years nor at any time during both years.

T P (8 6 JE R Bk R {8 4 2 (AR B - 5 Y
B AR EBITEAERSES o

A 8 A R
—— w201
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 EZ _—F—/\#F=A=+—HI F&E

48. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

)

(i)

(v)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, deferred cash
consideration for disposal of subsidiaries was included in
current assets of approximately HK$312,250,000 on 30
March 2018. Details are set out in Note 44.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, amount due to a
director and related party by the United Faith Group shall
be settled by certain held for trading investments in the
United Faith Group prior to completion of the Acquisition.
In the event that the amount of such assets is less than
amount due to a director and related party, the remaining
outstanding amount due to a director and related party of
approximately HK$2,232,000 and HK$185,194,000 was
unconditionally and irrevocably waived in full by Mr. Li.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, convertible bonds
with principal amounts of HK$50,000,000 were converted
into 58,825,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price of HK$0.33 per
share.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
acquired 100% equity interest of United Faith Group for
a consideration of HK$1,000 million, which was settled
by the issuance of the zero coupon convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000 million at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.80 upon completion of the
acquisition on 26 March 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, convertible bonds
with principal amounts of HK$140,000,000 were converted
into 424,242,424 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price of HK$0.33 per
share.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

48. FEIIEWRERH

U)

(i)

REBEZZZF-NF=A=1T—HI%F
- HEMBARIZEERRELN
71 312,250,000 LR = E—\F=H
Zt+HFARDEE - BN T
44 -

REBEEZT-N\F=ZA=+—HItF
Fvlk EEN—2EZRBEMEA

FIEARTERAIAE TREEEE Y
h¢§§&éiﬁoﬁaﬁ%é§@
HEREN—RESRABEEALR
B BRTITAEENEN—SESREH
A T RIBHEH 2,232,000 7T M
185,194,000 7T B3 2 56 A AR 54 R 1 ]
BE B EE -

HE-_ZT—)\F=A=+—HILFE "
& B A7 #50,000,0007T 2 AT AR &
HERETFEIRETREE0.33 T
#1/558,825,000/% TR E B &1 0.017T
2 EBAR o

BE-T)\FZA=t—HLFE "
AEBEEBEEERE100%E - K
EBREE10ET  BERNKER
—N\F =R Z+XB KRR
BEB0.80TBEITAZAFEE10E
TTZERSABRESEE -

HE-_Z—+F=-A=t+—HLFE"
R 4858 A7 140,000,000 JT,2 AT #
M (E A A SR B# 0.33 T2 EF#E B
B 5 424,242 424 W F R EE B
0.01 TLZ AR R EBAR °
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —F—/\F=H=+—HI F&E
49. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 49. HABEE
31 March 31 March 1 April
2018 2017 2016
—E2-N\F T+t ZE—RF
=A=+—H =HA=+—H MmA—A
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)

(=E51) (=E5)

Financial guarantee given to banks ~ SR F—RBREALT
in respects of a facility granted to ZIEERRITIEL 2
a related party B HEIR
- Dingyi Jinta —RESH = 41,740 44,533

8 B4 R 7
e 209
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z—F— )\ F=HA=+—HIFE

50. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 50. gt & ) REFTEA BEREER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRAEAEBRETZESMELBENEIE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash B BERERIFREES - BEFHME
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EERENAREREXNATIBERENEH
which cash flow were, or future cash flow will be, classified in the ReneERIBAMETHRSRENEE
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
Accrued
coupon
interest
Amount due Derivative  (included in
torelated  Amount due Bank  Marginloans  Convertible financial ~ “trade and
companies  toadirector  borrowings payable bonds liabilities - other payables’) Total
B8
EBE  BA-% fiff i€ ($A[88%
MEER  EEME BARR REGER  THRES  SRER  ApEMR) it
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000
BT BT EEfr EETR EETR T BT EETI
As at 31 March 2017 NE-+FZA=1-H 366,983 78281 57986 178,285 204,067 252021 6,667 1,164,290
Non-cash movements 249
Exchange diference ER%@ 0872 (1,656 2,986 - - - - 220
Fair vale change on derivative fivancia TEgEieE
Tbiies on cal aptions (note 26() BELAEEG (M og) - - - - - 9,575 - 9,575
Convertible bonds ssued as consideration for BT AREH#(EA
business comoination note 35() EBAFZRE( ) - - - - B2 - - M2
lssuance o convertibl bonds fnote 33l B ARES (sl - - - - - (5% -85
Loss on early redemption of comvertble bonds ~ REEE TR ER/EE
(note 35(u) (FsEasm)) - - - - 11,282 - - 11,282
Converted nto ordnary shares Rk e
(note 34835 i) (st 4 R 3sfi) - - - - (#3372 - - (#3372
Reclassficaton of accrued coupon terest o~ EXAHEESEEEE M
other payables (note 35) ERER (%) - - - - (46,849) - 16,848 -
Effect of business combinetion 1ot 33 v LIRS (185,194 23 - - - - - (87
Efectve inerest expense incured (note 9) BEEERHERT (o) - - - - 109911 - - 109,911
Finance costs ncurred (ote 9 BESRANA(HY) - - 29 2673 - - - 289
Financing cash inflows BE fﬁm/\ - - - 2851 475471 - - 478322
Financing cash outfiows BERER (200,888 (73621) 61,191) (171,452) (103,128 - - (610,280)
Asat 31 March 2018 NF-NEZf=1-H 1,773 mn - 1237 1252,99% - 53515 1,321,412

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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